SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
February 12, 2015
9:00 a.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, February 12,
2015. This meeting shall consist of a simultaneous teleconference call at the following locations:

BART Board Room Hotel Hume

Kaiser Center 20™ Street Mall — Third Floor 422 Vernon Street

344 - 20" Street Nelson, British Columbia V1L 4E5
Oakland, CA 94612 Canada

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board” form (available at the entrance to the Board
Room) and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to
discuss a matter that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public
Comment.

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.
Items placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted,
approved, or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is

received from a Director or from a member of the audience.

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings
as there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

M

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals
who are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be
made within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested.
Please contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information.

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in
the BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail.

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx), and via email
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/f CATRANBART/ subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBA
RT_1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda
packets (in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website no later than 48 hours in
advance of the meeting.

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23" Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-6011; or
telephone 510-464-6083.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary




Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may

desire in connection with:

1.

CALL TO ORDER

A.  Roll Call

B. Pledge of Allegiance.

C. Introduction of Special Guests.
i. Police Chaplains.

CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meetings of January 22, 2015 (Regular), and
January 29 and 30, 2015 (Special).* Board requested to authorize.

B. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 8944, Procurement of Quill, Bull Gear.*
Board requested to authorize.

C. Execution of Agreement No. 6M3281, with the Regents of the University
of California, Berkeley, for Membership in the Berkeley Seismological
Lab Earthquake Research Affiliates Program.* Board requested to

authorize.

BOARD MATTERS

A. Consideration of Position on Prosecution of Protestors at West Oakland
Station on November 28, 2014.* Board requested to approve. (Director
Saltzman’s request.)

ADMINISTRATION ITEMS

Director Keller, Chairperson

A. Resolution Enacting Ordinance of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid
Transit District to Prohibit the Use of Electronic Smoking (Vapor)
Devices (Electronic Cigarettes) on BART Trains, BART Facilities, and
BART Property Whenever They Are Found within the District.* Board
requested to adopt.

B. (CONTINUED from January 22, 2015, Board Meeting)
Independent Auditor's Report on the Basic Financial Statements and
Internal Control for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014.* For
information. .

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS
Director McPartland, Chairperson

A. Award of Contract No. 79HM-120, SFTS MB (San Francisco Transition
Structure).* Board requested to authorize.

* Attachment available 2 of 4



B. Sole Source Procurement with Knorr Brake Corporation for Brake, Split
Disc and Hub Assemblies.* Board requested to authorize. (TWO-
THIRDS VOTE REQUIRED.)

C. (CONTINUED from January 22, 2015, Board Meeting)
Customer Communications during Major Service Disruptions and
Improvement Initiatives.* For information.

D. (CONTINUED from January 22, 2015, Board Meeting)
Service Planning for Special Events.* For information.

6. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS, AND LEGISLATION ITEMS
Director Raburn, Chairperson

A. 2015 State and Federal Legislative Goals.* Board requested to authorize.

7. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

A. Agreement between Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority and San
Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District for Administrative Support.*
Board requested to authorize.

B. Review of the Draft Agenda for the Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Board
Meeting of February 18, 2015.* For information.

C. Report of Activities, including Update of Roll Call for Introductions
Items.

8. BOARD MATTERS

A. Board Member Reports.
(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are
available through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board Meeting.)

B. Roll Call for Introductions.
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.)

C. In Memoriam.
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.)

9. PUBLIC COMMENT

(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.)

* Attachment available \ 3of4



10.  CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room)

A.

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION

Name of Case: Kirchenbauer vs. Peters and BART, Alameda County
Superior Court Case No. RG13662225

Government Code Section:  54956.9(a)

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION

Name of Case: Shigeta vs. Washington Shoe Co., Nordstrom, and BART,
San Francisco County Superior Court Case No. CGC-10-
505362

Government Code Section:  54956.9(a)

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION

Name of Case: San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District vs. PPF
Industrial Whipple Road/Bowman Place, LP, et al., Case No.
RG13708269

Government Code Section:  54956.9(a)

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION

Name of Case: Doe vs. BART, Alameda County Superior Court Action
No. R14-740455

Government Code Section:  54956.9(a)

* Attachment available 4 0of 4
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SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,725th Meeting
January 22, 2015

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held January 22, 2015, convening at 5:02 p.m.
in the Board Room, 344 20™ Street, Oakland, California. President Blalock presided;
Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Josefowitz, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Radulovich,
Saltzman, and Blalock.

Absent: Director Keller.

President Blalock called for a moment of silence to recognize the contributions of Dr. Martin
Luther King Jr.

President Blalock announced that the order of agenda items would be changed.
Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were:
1. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of January 8, 2015.
2. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 8945, Procurement of Modular Buildings.

Mr. Michael Petrelis requested that Approval of the Minutes of the Meeting of January 8, 2015,
be removed from Consent Calendar.

Director Murray moved that the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation for Bid

No. 8945, for the procurement of three modular buildings, to Mod Space Corporation, for a price
of $204,824.00, including all applicable taxes, subject to compliance with the District’s protest
procedures and Federal Transit Administration’s requirements related to protest procedures.
Director McPartland seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes - 8:
Directors Josefowitz, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock.
Noes - 0. Absent — 1: Director Keller.

(The foregoing motion was made on the basis of analysis by the staff and certification by the
Controller/Treasurer that funds are available for this purpose.)

President Blalock brought the matter of Approval of the Minutes of the Meeting of J anuary 8,
2015, before the Board.

Mr. Michael Petrelis addressed the Board.

Director Murray moved that the Minutes of the Meeting of January 8, 2015, be approved.
Director McPartland seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes - 8:

-1-
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Directors Josefowitz, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock.
Noes - 0. Absent — 1: Director Keller.

President Blalock called for public comment on the matter of Resolution in the Matter of
Adoption of an Ordinance of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District to Prohibit the
Use of Electronic Smoking (Vapor) Devices (Electronic Cigarettes) on BART Trains, BART
Facilities, and BART Property Whenever They Are Found within the District.

The following individuals addressed the Board.
Ms. Serena Chen

Mr. Brian Davis

Ms. Liz Williams

Mr. Joseph Friedman

Mr. Bruce Fiedler

Mr. Jon Krueger

President Blalock called for Public Comment. The following individuals addressed the Board.
Mr. Pete Castelli
Reverend Daniel Buford
Dr. Michael Oshoosi Wright
Mr. Bill Kalman

Ms. Cynthia Crews
Ms. Shirley Pena

Ms. Betsey Stone

Mr. Charles Minster
Mr. Michael Lyon
Mr. Stan Woods

Ms. Mollie Costello
Ms. Vanessa Moses
Dr. Jennifer Davidson
Ms. Tes Welborn
Krystof

Ms. Cat Brooks

Ms. Elaine Brown
Hon. Desley Brooks
Ms. Karissa Lewis
Ms. Robbie Clark

Mr. Nedir Bey

Mr. Robert S. Allen
Ms. Levana Savon
Ms. Simone Combs
Ms. Sara Brink

Ms. Thorne Coyle
Ms. Anne Weills

Ms. Liz Derias

Ms. Ashley Yates

Mr. Bob Allen

Ms. Mignon Combs



Ms. Neva Walker

Mr. Zach Murray
Rabbi David J. Cooper
Ms. Wazi Maret Davis
Ms. Mary Elieisar

Mr. Eddie Dillard

Ms. Laila Williams
Mr. Ernest Stokes

Ms. Erin Stephens-North

Mr. Malkia Cyril

Ms. Rochelle Towers
Mr. Asa Dodsworth
Mr. Elliot Hughes

Ms. Alicia Garza

Mr. Richard Stone
Mr. Charlie Walker
Mr. Michael Petrelis
Mr. John Arantes

Ms. Tova Fry

Ms. Jessica Lehman
Ms. Andreana Clay
Ms. Patricia St. Onge
Ms. Kyla Lewis

Ms. Ronnishia Johnson
Mr. Josh Connor

Mr. Michael Gast

Ms. Celest Faison

Mr. Reuben Telushkin
Ms. Kelly Abraham
Mr. Jerry Grace

Ms. Rheema Calloway
Ms. Cynthia Monoz

The Board Meeting recessed at 8:17 p.m.

DRAFT

The Board Meeting reconvened at 8:30 p.m.

President Blalock called for Roll Call for Introductions.

Director Saltzman requested an item on the February 12, 2015 agenda addressing pending
charges and restitution for protesters at West Oakland Station on November 28, 2014. Director

Radulovich seconded the request
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Director Mallett requested staff study/evaluate methods for increasing public participation in
decision-making processes and bring the results back to the Board for discussion. Director
Murray seconded the request.

Director McPartland, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, announced that
the items on Customer Communications during Major Service Disruptions and Improvement
Initiatives and Service Planning for Special Events would be continued to a future meeting.

Director McPartland brought the matter of Award of Contract No. 01RQ-120, Construction of
Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Site, Track, and Systems, before the Board.
Mr. Thomas Horton, Manager of Earthquake Safety Programs, presented the item.

The following individuals addressed the Board.
Mr. Eddie Dillard
Omar

The item was discussed. President Blalock moved that the General Manager be authorized to
award Contract No. 01RQ-120, for Construction of Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Site,
Track, and Systems, to Proven Management, Inc., for the total Bid price of $18,769,845.00,
pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager, subject to the District’s protest
procedures and Federal Transit Administration’s requirements related to protests. Director
McPartland seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes - 8: Directors
Josefowitz, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock. Noes - 0.
Absent — 1: Director Keller.

Director Raburn, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation
Committee, brought the matter of Art Policy and Program: Issues, Opportunities, and Draft
Goals and Objectives, before the Board. Mr. Robert Powers, Assistant General Manager,
Planning and Development; Ms. Abigail Thorne-Lyman, Principal Planner; Ms. Jeannene
Przyblyski, Provost at the California Institute of the Arts; and Ms. Regina Almaguer, Regina
Almaguer Fine Arts, presented the item.

The following individuals addressed the Board.
Mr. Eric Murphy

Mr. Bill Purcell

Ms. Rachel Dinno Taylor

Mr. Jerry Grace

The item was discussed.

Director Saltzman, Vice Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter of
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District Pay Schedules before the Board. Ms. Allison
Picard, Assistant General Manager, Employee Services, presented the item. Director Murray
moved approval of the base pay schedules in effect January 1, 2009; July 1, 2013 and July 5,
2013; and January 1, 2015. President Blalock seconded the motion, which carried by electronic
and voice vote. Ayes - 7: Directors Josefowitz, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Radulovich,
Saltzman, and Blalock. Noes - 0. Abstain — 1: Director Mallett. Absent — 1: Director Keller.

4-
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Director Saltzman brought the matter of Resolution in the Matter of Adoption of an Ordinance of
the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District to Prohibit the Use of Electronic Smoking
(Vapor) Devices (Electronic Cigarettes) on BART Trains, BART Facilities, and BART Property
Whenever They Are Found within the District, before the Board. Mr. Benson Fairow, Deputy
Chief of Police, presented the item.

Mr. Jerry Grace addressed the Board.

Director Raburn moved adoption of Resolution No. 5286, In the Matter of the Adoption of an
Ordinance of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District to Prohibit the Use of Electronic
Smoking (Vapor) Devices (Electronic Cigarettes) on BART Trains, BART Facilities, and BART
Property whenever they are found within the District. President Blalock seconded the motion,
which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes - 8: Directors Josefowitz, Mallett, McPartland,
Murray, Raburn, Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock. Noes - 0. Absent — 1: Director Keller.

President Blalock called for the General Manager’s Report. General Manager Grace Crunican
thanked staff for the excellent job in keeping the trains running during the recent protests,
reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she had participated in, and gave a
report on the progress of outstanding Roll Call for Introductions items.

President Blalock called for the Independent Police Auditor’s Report. Mr. Mark Smith,
Independent Police Auditor, gave a presentation on the activities of the Office.

President Blalock called for Board Member Reports.

Director Mallett reported he had attended the Transportation Research Board meeting in
Washington, D.C. ’

Director McPartland reported he had been in the Emergency Operations Center during the recent
protests and thanked Police staff for their efforts.

President Blalock reported he had attended the Fremont mayor’s conference and the District’s
annual Martin Luther King day event.

Director Murray thanked staff for handling the Board Meeting logistics.
President Blalock, bringing In Memoriam before the Board, requested the Meeting be adjourned
in memory of Dr. Martin Luther King., Jr. Director Murray requested the Meeting be adjourned

in honor of the retirement of Sergeant Tommy Smith’s badge.

The Board Meeting was adjourned at 10:50 p.m. in memory of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. and
Sergeant Tommy Smith.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary
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SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,726th Meeting
January 29 and 30, 2015
A special meeting of the Board of Directors was held January 29 and 30, 2015. The meeting was
a Board Workshop. The first session, convening at 9:06 a.m. on January 29, was held in the
Renaissance Room of Renaissance ClubSport, 2805 Jones Road, Walnut Creek, California.
President Blalock presided; Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn,
Saltzman, and Blalock.

Absent:  None. Director Radulovich entered the Meeting later.

President Blalock recognized Mr. Alan Smith, Vice Chairperson of the BART Accessibility Task
Force, as a special guest.

President Blalock called for Public Comment. The following individuals addressed the Board.
Mr. Bob Haun

Mr. Joel Ramos

The Workshop was held.

Mr. Daniel lacofano, workshop facilitator, General Manager Grace Crunican, and Mr. Val
Menotti, Department Manager, Planning, gave a presentation on the Workshop Overview.

Director Radulovich entered the Meeting.

The item was discussed.

Ms. Kerry Hamill, Assistant General Manager, External Affairs, and Mr. Aaron Weinstein,
Department Manager, Marketing and Research, gave a presentation on Customer Satisfaction

Survey 2014. The item was discussed.

The Board Meeting recessed at 10:52 a.m.

The Board reconvened at 11:05 a.m.

Directors present: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn,
Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock.
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Absent: None.

Ms. Ellen Smith, Planning Division Manager, gave a presentation on BART Draft Strategic
Framework. The item was discussed.

Mr. Iacofano led the Roundtable Discussion on Approach to Priority Setting.

The Board Meeting recessed at 12:09 p.m.

The Board reconvened at 12:37 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn,
Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock.

Absent; None.

Ms. Abigail Thorne-Lyman, Principal Planner, gave a presentation on the Role of BART in the
Region. The item was discussed.

Mr. Thomas Tumola, Program Manager; Mr. Duncan Watry, Principal Planner; Mr. Dave Hardt,
Acting Chief Mechanical Officer, Rolling Stock and Shops; and Mr. Menotti gave a presentation
on District Infrastructure: Capacity, State of Good Repair, and Asset Management.

Director McPartland exited the Meeting.

The item was discussed.

The Board Meeting recessed at 2:45 p.m.

The Board reconvened at 2:53 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, Murray, Raburn, Radulovich,
Saltzman, and Blalock.

Absent: Director McPartland.

Mr. Paul Oversier, Assistant General Manager, Operations; Ms. Tamar Allen, Acting Chief
Maintenance and Engineering Officer; Mr. Hardt; and Mr. John McCormick, Department
Manager, Operations Planning & Support, continued the presentation on District Infrastructure:
Capacity, State of Good Repair, and Asset Management. The item was discussed.
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Mr. Carter Mau, Assistant General Manager, Administration and Budgets; Mr. Michael Tanner,
Manager, Grant Development and Compliance; and Mr. David Metz, of FM3 Partners, gave a
presentation on Financial Outlook and Funding Priorities. The item was discussed.

Mr. lacofano reviewed the day’s topics.

Director McPartland re-entered the Meeting.

Mr. Christian Peeples addressed the Board.

President Blalock announced the Board would enter into closed session in the Renaissance
ClubSport Board Room under Item No. 3-A (Public Employee Performance Evaluation) of the
Special Meeting agenda, and that the Board would reconvene in open session at the end of that

closed session.

The Meeting recessed at 5:18 p.m.

The Board reconvened in closed session at 5:53 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn,
Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock.

Absent: None.

The Board Meeting recessed at 7:16 p.m.

The Board reconvened in open session at 7:16 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Blalock, Fang, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn,
Radulovich, Saltzman, and Keller.

Absent; None.

President Blalock announced that the Board had concluded its closed session under Item 3- A,
and that there was no further announcement to be made.

The Meeting was adjourned at 7:16 p.m.
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The Board reconvened on January 30, 2015, at 9:09 a.m., in the Renaissance Room of
Renaissance ClubSport, 2805 Jones Road, Walnut Creek, California. President Blalock
presided; Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn,
Saltzman, and Blalock.

Absent:  None. Director Radulovich entered the Meeting later.
President Blalock introduced and welcomed Mr. Mark Green, former mayor of Union City.
Director Radulovich entered the Meeting,
President Blalock called for Public Comment. Mr. Alan Smith addressed the Board.

Mr. Jacofano reviewed the previous day’s discussions and gave an overview of the coming day’s
discussion items.

Mr. Robert Powers, Assistant General Manager, Planning and Development; Mr. Menotti, Ms.
Sadie Graham, Senior Planner; and Mr. Tian Feng, District Architect, gave a presentation on
Advancing Sustainability in the Region and at BART. The item was discussed.

Mr. Powers, Mr. Menotti, Ms. Graham, Mr. Tim Chan, Manager of Planning; and Mr. Jeffrey
Ordway, Department Manager, Real Estate and Property Development, gave a presentation on
Stations: Connecting and Creating Great Places. The item was discussed.

The following individuals addressed the Board.
Mr. Jerry Grace
Mr. Chris Finn

The Board Meeting recessed at 11:53 a.m.

The Board reconvened at 12:29 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn,
Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock.

Absent: None.
Mr. Tacofano led a discussion on Guidance on District Policies.
Mr. Chris Finn addressed the Board.

The Board Meeting recessed at 1:59 p.m.
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The Board reconvened at 2:11 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn,
Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock.

v Absent: None.

Ms. Allison Picard, Assistant General Manager, Employee Relations; Ms. Carol Isen, Chief
Employee Relations Officer; Mr. Art Hartinger, Meyers Nave Riback Silver & Wilson, a
Professional Law Corporation; Mr. Matthew Burrows, General Counsel; and Mr. Rick Bolanos,
Liebert Cassidy Whitmore, gave a presentation on Human Resources Modernization Initiatives
and Labor Report Follow-up. The item was discussed.

Mr. John Arantes addressed the Board.

The Board Meeting recessed at 3:36 p.m.

The Board reconvened at 3:54 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn,
Radulovich, Saltzman, and Blalock.

Absent:  None.
Mr. Jacofano led the discussion on Workshop Review.
Mr. Jerry Grace addressed the Board.
The Board Meeting was adjourned at 4:30 p.m.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary
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EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
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| Status: Approved | Date Created: 12/03/2014
TITLE:
Invitation For Bid #8944 - Procurement of Quill, Bull Gear
NARRATIVE:

Purpose: To obtain Board authorization to award Invitation For Bid (IFB) No. 8944 to
Qual-Tran Products of Hatfield, PA, in the amount of $350,640.90 (including sales tax) for the
purchase of bull gear quills.

Discussion: Each of the vehicles in the District's revenue vehicle fleet is powered by four
traction motors. Each traction motor is attached to an axle wheel assembly through a gearbox.
The gearbox is the main mechanical device that transfers power from the traction motor to the
axle. The District dismantles each gearbox during the gearbox rebuild process, which is part of
the five year truck overhaul program. As part of the rebuild work scope, the bull gear quill is
carefully evaluated and is replaced if worn or damaged beyond repair. The bull gear quill is also
replaced to support certain gearbox repairs.

This is a thirty-six (36) month estimated quantity Contract. Pursuant to the terms of the
District’s standard estimated quantity contract, during the term of the Contract, the District is
required to purchase from the supplier a minimum amount of fifty (50) percent of the Contract
Bid price. Upon Board approval of this Contract, the General Manager will also have the
authority to purchase up to one hundred and fifty (150) percent of the Contract Bid price, subject
to availability of funding.

A Notice Requesting Bids was published on September 26, 2014, and Bid requests were mailed
to seven (7) prospective Bidders. Bids were opened on October 21, 2014 and the following four
(4) Bids were received:

Unit Price Grand Total including
Bidder (540 _each) 9.50% Sales Tax
Qual-Tran Products  $593.00 C $350,640.90
Hatfield, PA
Merit Gear, LLC $710.00 $419,823.00

Antigo, WI



Mance & Associates, Inc $963.99 $570,007.28
Fremont, CA

Bombardier Transportation $1218.00 $720,203.40
Pittsburgh, PA :

Independent cost estimate by BART staff: $508,500.00 (including sales tax).

Staff has determined that the Bid submitted by the apparent low Bidder, Qual-Tran Products, is
responsive and the Bid amount of $350,640.90 (including 9.50% sales tax) is fair and reasonable
based on Bid competition.

The District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting does not apply to Emergency
Contracts, Sole Source Contracts, and Contracts under $50,000, or any Invitation for Bid.
Pursuant to the Program, the Office of Civil Rights did not set availability percentages for this
Contract.

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights set a
5% prime preference for this Contract. One of the four Bidders, Mance & Associates, is a state
certified small business. Application of the Small Business Program will not alter the award.

Fiscal Impact: The bull gear quills are scheduled to be procured over the Contract’s three (3)
year period at the following estimated annual costs:

FY 15 $70,128.18
FY 16 $140,256.36 -
FY 17 $140,256.36

Funding for $70,128.18 for FY20135 is currently available in the General Fund, Materials &

- Supplies Inventory build-up account. Subsequent funding for this Contract will be provided by
the Rolling Stock & Shops (RS&S) Maintenance, Repair and Other account #680230 as the parts
- are ordered from inventory. Any additional orders of bull gear quills over and above the
currently available funds of $70,128.18 for FY2015 will only be placed upon certification by the
Controller-Treasurer that funds are available. Expenditures for the out year portions of the
Contract will be included in future RS&S operating budgets which are subject to future board
adoption. :

Alternatives: An alternative to awarding the Contract would be to reject all Bids and
re-advertise the Contract. Re-advertising is not likely to lead to increased competition or lower
prices.

Recommendation: On the basis of analysis by Staff, and certification by the
Controller/Treasurer that the funds for FY2015 are avallable for this purpose, it is recommended
that the Board adopt the following motion.

Invitation For Bid #8944 - Procurement of Quill, Bull Gear 2



Motion: The Board authorizes the General Manager to award IFB No. 8944, an estimated
quantities Contract for Procurement of Quill, Bull Gear, to Qual-Tran Products of Hatfield, PA,
for the Bid price of $350,640.90 (including all taxes), pursuant to notification to be issued by the

General Manager, subject to the District’s Protest Procedures.

Invitation For Bid #8944 - Procurement of Quill, Bull Gear ‘ 3



| EXEGUTIVE DECISION DOGUMENT

; 'g" GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ D:

]Date Created 12/30/2014

Ag :'ement No 6M3281 w1th Un1vers1ty of Cahforma for Membershlp of Earthquake
. , - . Research Affillates Program S B

© NARRATIVE:
- PURPOSE : - ~ : S ‘
To obtam Board author1zatlon for the General Manager to execute an Agreement Wrth
The Regents of the Un1vers1ty of California, Berkeley (UCB) for a five-year membershlp
in the Berkeley Sersmologlcal Lab (BSL) Earthquake Research Afﬁhates Program
(ERAP) for an amount not to exceed $300 000 o ~

t DISCUSSION . ' : ] '
~ The ERAP is an 1ndustry membershlp program operated by UCB and adm1n1stered by the
~ BSL. BART has been a member of the ERAP since 2012. As an ERAP member, BART
o entltled to access to a continuous data stream containing real-time ground motion
~ observations. This data prov1des early warmng for many potent1a1 earthquakes BART t
o fuses this early warmng to automatlcally trigger the Train Control System to 1mt1ate train
o brakmg down to 26mph and to hold trains in statlons when approprlate The amount of
. warmng depends on how far the eplcenter is from BART The further away t the eplcenter :
"'1s the greater the Iength of the warmng, Wthh can be as much as one m1nute 1n some
- ';cases o e :

: A more detalled descnptlon of the ERAP 1ncludmg a hst of addltlonal membershlp o
jbeneﬁts can be seen at http: //earthquakes berkeley. edu/ERA acopy of Wthh is attached
to this EDD UCB s umquely cqmpped to provrde thls servrce and there 1s currently no
L reasonable alternatlve & : « o o

BART’s current membershlp in the ERAP explres in March 2015. ThlS Agreement is
i needed to renew BART’s membershlp in the ERAP. Pursuant to the Agreement BART’
membershlp in the ERAP will be extended for an ‘additional five years for an annual fee
of $60,000. This annual fee is the same as pa1d by all other ERAP members and is low :
- compared to fees for other sumlar mdustry affiliate programs run by UCB. The fee goes
~ towards the cost of the mfrastructure requlred to generate and feed the data, the general
o operatlng cost of ERAP and to support relevant research projects. The Ofﬁce of the
General Counsel Wlll approve the Agreement as to form pnor to executlon ‘



= In con]unctlon with th1s partnershrp, BART is part101pat1ng in the Cahforma Earthquakek L

- - E'Early Warning System (CEEWS) Standards Committee. CEEWS is mandated by L
- ;Cahforma Senate Bill 135, and will hkely lead to more competltwe optrons in the futurej o
- for dlssemlnatron of earthquake early warmng ; e e

: Th1s Agreement is funded under the M & E Operatlng Budget $60 000 per year w111 be o
made avarlable for FY 2016 to FY 2()20 o :

ALTERNATIVES ‘ : : : s
. ;Do not execute thrs Agreement In such case, BART’s membershrp in the ERAP w111 explre 1n e

: 'March 2015 and BART will no longer receive any earthquake early warmng serv1ces after that ; -

5 tlme e

“RECOMMENDATION

. MOTION

Approve the followmg motlon o

The General Manager is authonzed to execute Agreement No 6M3281 w1th The Regents -
 of the Umversrty of Cahforma Berkeley in an amount not to exceed $300,000 for i
membershrp in the Berkeley Selsmologlcal Lab Earthquake Research Afﬁhates Program

- }foraﬁve-year per10d S

UCB Eai’thquake Research Affiliates Program LR s - coviahy a2




Earthquake Research Affiliates
Program

The mission of the Berkeley Seismological Laboratory's (BSL) Earthguake
Research Affiliates (ERA) Program is to inspire, nurture, and sustain vibrant
‘public-private/industrial-academic partnerships focused on the development
and use of innovative earthquake information products including alert
services and other novel seismological measurement technologies. The
program is designed to promote the use of new research and technology and
provide a forum for inviting optimal and essential users to participate in the
development and testing of new technologies, with a goal of introducing them
into the marketplace.

UC Berkeley (UCB) has significant experience and a rich research history in
the area of seismology dating back to the installation of the first
seismometers in the western hemisphere in 1887. BSL currently operates
mote than 70 seismological and geodetic field stations throughout Northern
California with state-of-the-art instrumentation, communications and data
processing, and analysis and archiving capabilities. BSL draws on the diverse
strengths of the interdisciplinary earthquake and solid earth research
community at UCB. Augmenting these efforts, the ERA program provides a
forum for the exchange of ideas and information between industry and public
sector groups with an interest in BSL research and the scientists themselves.

The ERA program is designed to serve groups with an interest and need for
rapid, robust and reliable earthquake information. This includes industrial
groups with high-value equipment and products sensitive to earthquake
ground shaking, public groups responsible for the safety of large cross-
sections of society, and those actively working to reduce the impacts of
future earthquakes. Examples include transportation and lifeline agencies,
manufacturing companies, public and private utilities, emergency management
groups, the news media, and voluntary organizations. Current ERA members
include the Bay Area Rapid Transit District, University of California Police
Department, Berkeley (UCBPD), the San Francisco Department of Emergency
Management (SFDEM), and Google.

ERA membership benefits include:

¢ Invitation to ERA meetings where current developments are presented
and your feedback elicited

Participation in the earthquake early warning early adopter program.

Participation in special focus groups and workshops as necessary and
desirable

Access to the CISN Display—a dedicated earthquake information service
Access to other data feeds

Support from BSL researchers in the immediate aftermath of significant
earthquakes

e Connection to students interested in internship opportunities

For more information, please contact Dr. Jennifer Strauss (510-642-1067),
or jastrauss {at} berkeley {dot} edu.

Berkeley Seismclogical Lab
Contact us: infc@seisme. berkeley.edy
Site Map | Frivacy

Copyright € 2015 UC Regents; all rights reserved.

‘How much wa'rning tin‘iﬂé will you

have? The lines on this map.
show warning times for San
Francisco for major earthquakes
at other locations, and quickly
detected by an earty warning

system. The gray area marks

the "blind zone." There will be no
warning for earthquakes in this
area. '
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SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

T0: Board of Directors DATE: February 6,2015
FROM: General Counsel '
SUBJECT: Proposed Motion re: November 28, 2014 protest

At the request of Director Saltzman, following up on her stated intention to bring forward
for consideration at the February 12™ Board meeting a District position regarding the desired
outcome for protestors at the West Oakland BART station on November 28, 2014, below please
find a Proposed Motion for your consideration. The matter will be introduced by Director
Saltzman.

Proposed Motion:

The General Manager is directed to notify the Alameda County District
Attorney that the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District urges her
office to forgo the prosecution (including seeking restitution and/or
community service) of the Black Friday 14 for their November 28th actions
at the West Oakland BART station.

Matt Burrows



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

m -
S GENERAL MANAGERAPPROVA;,’/ S

j GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQD e k

L BOARTIATED ITEM: No .

,'To propose the enactment of an ordmance to prohlblt the use of e-c1garettes in the BART
- Dlstrlct, in the same manner as smokmg is proh1b1ted by State law ~ :

o ‘DISCUSSI()N

: E—Crgarettes are battery powered dev1ces used to vaponze thelr hquld contents for consumpt1on
in 2 manner similar to smoking tobacco 01ga:rettes ‘but without the combustlon and resulting
smoke. For the most part, the 11qu1d contents of these devices contain varying amounts of

= nicotine and other chemicals, and may be ﬂavored ‘The devices were first developed in Chma in

k 2004, with the intent to efficiently deliver nicotine to a user without the harmful effects of
i ,1nhalmg smoke E-c1garettes have been galmng in popularity in the United States and have
- attracted 1ncreased scrutiny over the last few years. A recent news article cla1ms there are 466

- ,brands of e-c1garettes representlng a rapldly grow1ng, three bllhon dollar mdustry

. In 2009 the Food and Drug Adm1mstrat10n (F DA) expressed 1ts concern over potentlal health
risks assocmted with the use of e-cigarettes. The agency specifically expressed concerns over
4 1ncreased youth nicotine add1ct1on the tox1c1ty of the substances contained in the dev1ces as well e
- as the lack f Study to determine whether or not the devices are safe. In Apl'll 2014, the FDA
an C :proposal to regulate e—c1garettes but the agency has yet to- 1ssue any rules ‘

BART currently regulates smoklng in and around its premlses through enforcement of the e
Callforma Penal Code (PC). PC Section 640(b)(3) makes it an infraction to smoke “...in or on a
~ system facrhty or vehicle in areas where those activities are proh1b1ted by that system ? Smokmg .
~ is currently a c1table offense throughout the D1str1ct E-mgarette use in the BART Dlstrlct is not i

currently regulated : ~ ~ ; : ~ : '

A Senate Blll (SB648/Corbett) was 1ntroduced inF ebruary 2013 Whlch Would have amended PC
' 1640(b)(4) to prohibit the use of e-cigarettes in the same manner as smoklng This bill passed the
Senate, but eventually falled in the Assembly Approprlatlons Commlttee after it was mgmﬁcantly‘
1 amended , : , : ] S

e Just as mth tobacco 01garette use, the pnmary concern from the D1str1ct comes frorn any harm e
‘that mlght result from second-hand exposure to the vapor del1vered from e—c1garettes Studles on



L Adoptionrof‘an:O'rd‘iknahee,to Restrict EQVCVi,garetté" USe‘in the BART System
, the' effects of e-lciga‘rette u'se are scarce and Sometimes conﬂicting‘ ‘

; ,‘ Several commumtres in Cahforma have 1ncluded e- mgarettes in the1r smoklng ord1nances Whrle

. ~ others have 1ncluded the devices in their tobacco retailer license programs. The Amerlcan

o Nonsmokers nghts Foundatron reports as of Januaryl 2015 43 ]urlsd1ct10ns in Callfornra ; .
~ have enacted laws regulatlng the use of e-c1garettes e ~ , :

;Trans1t agencles throughout the state have had a varled response o - mgarettes The Los Angeles o

o County Metropolitan Transportat1on Author1ty amended its munlc1pal code controlhng cigarettes
~ in March 2014 to 1nclude e-c1garettes Slrmlarly, the Santa Clara Valley Transportatlon Authorrty
s Worklng toward addmg the dev1ces to their spec1a1 district ordinance related to. smoklng in and
~around thelr facilities. Others, such as the San Diego Metropohtan Transit System and
- Sacramento Reglonal Trans1t District do not currently have ord1nances or rules addressmg the

use of e—crgarettes choos1ng 1nstead to wart for State or Federal guldelmes ' :

: | kCons1der1ng the fallure of SB648 to pass w1th any s1gn1ficant restrlctlons on the use of
‘e-cigarettes, the District’s only immediate option to create enforceable restnctrons on the use of

 the devices is through the enactment of an ord1nance In dorng so, the District may ban or restrict

the use of e-cigarettes under its own authonty, within the three counties (Alameda San : :
Francisco, and Contra Costa) included in the D1str1ct An ordinance passed by the Board would .
~ provide the authorlty needed to enforce e—crgarette use restrictions in a manner similar to those

~ for smokmg, as detailed in the California Penal Code. While such an ordinance would not T

~ initially be enforceable i in San Mateo County, having such an ordlnance would be the first step
 needed to approach those ]unsd1ct1ons through which BART passes to sohcrt their acceptance of ,
‘the ordlnance : : i \ , S ; 5

& Th15 ordrnance is exempt from Cahfornla Env1ronmental Quahty Act pursuant to CEQA |
~ Guidelines Section 15061 (b)(3), because it can be seen with certainty that the project will not i
have a 31gmﬁcant effect on the env1ronment and thus no further review under CEQA is requlred

' Th1s ordrnance was 1ntroduced and the tltle read durlng the January 22 2015 regular meetmg of . :
the Board of Dlrectors At that time, the Board wa1ved further reading and noticed February 12
o 2015 as the date for con51deratlons and adoptlon of the proposed ordlnance ‘

L FISCAL IMPACT

‘Some 1n1t1al cost would be realrzed due to s1gnage changes in statlons and on tra1n cars to. 1nclude ~
- the ban of e-cigarettes. Tentative plans for these changes involve the use of st1ckers to cover the

pertinent port1on of existing signage, ‘thereby allev1at1ng the need for new 51gns Public outreaeh
~ and educatron may also result in some add1t10nal cost : :

, The Dlstnct may 1 reahze some 1ncome from ﬁnes assoc1ated with the enforcement of an
‘ordinance, but that amount is l1kely to be neghgrble Conversely, the District may have expenses
o resultrng from legal challenges to an ordinance. While such challenges are a possibility, °
: partlcularly since the enactment of such an ordmance would be a first for the District, BART
: would lrkely have wrde—spread support from a broad coal1t10n of government and act1v15t



‘ ,k'Ado'ption' ot an Qrdinance to Restrict E—Cigarette Use ih Vthef BARTSystem - " -

il orgamzatrons :

‘ ];ALTERNATIVE

| e Should the Board WlSh to not enact an ordlnance 1t may st111 pass a resolut1on agalnst the use of : :
= e-01garettes Such a resolutlon would be more symbohc in nature and would not have the same L

- authorrty of an ordrnance Whlch would negatlvely 1mpact any enforcement efforts L

| The Drstrlct may also choose to support and encourage leglslatlon srmllar to the orrgmal versronf

of the failed SB648, but such an effort would likely be long—term and face many challenges.
L1kew1se Federal restr1ct10ns may eventually be put in place ere any State leglslatlon effort
i any Federal solutlon is also hkely to be long—term e i :

| i:RECOMMENDATION . . , - | o
Staff recommends the Board execute the steps necessary fo enact the proposed ordmance o
: estabhshmg the sarne restrlctlons on e—crgarettes as those currently enforced for smokmg

MOTION

- Adopt the attached Resolutron enactmg Ordmance No 2015 1§ entrtled "An Ordlnance of the San :
- Francisco Bay Area Rapld Trans1t District to Prohlbrt the Use of Electromc Smoklng v apor) '

~ Devices (Electromc Crgarettes) on BART Trains, BART Fac111t1es and BART Property
\ whenever they are found w1thm the Dlstr1ct" to take effect and be enforceable upon the explratlon of

30 days followmg its adoptlon
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BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In the Matter of the Adoption of an

Ordinance of the San Francisco Bay

Area Rapid Transit District to Prohibit

the Use of Electronic Smoking

(Vapor) Devices (Electronic Cigarettes)

on BART Trains, BART Facilities, and

BART Property whenever they are found

within the District / Resolution No.

WHEREAS, no ordinance of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
shall be passed by the Board on the day of its introduction, nor within three days
thereafter, nor at any time other than a special, regular, or adjourned regular meeting
(Public Utilities Code section 28793), and

WHEREAS, an ordinance entitled “ An ordinance of the San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit District to prohibit the use of electronic smoking (vapor) devices
(electronic cigarettes) on BART trains, BART facilities and BART property whenever
they are found within the District,” has been introduced and title read on January 22,
2015, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District has waived further reading of the proposed ordinance, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District had noticed February 12th, 2015 as the date for consideration and adoption of the
proposed ordinance, and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to adopt the proposed ordinance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT the Board of Directors of the
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District hereby resolves and orders that
ORDINANCE NO. 2015-1, AN ORDINANCE OF THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA
RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT TO PROHIBIT THE USE OF ELECTRONIC SMOKING
(VAPOR) DEVICES (ELECTRONIC CIGARETTES) ON BART TRAINS, BART FACILITIES
AND BART PROPERTY WHENEVER THEY ARE FOUND WITHIN THE DISTRICT,
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, is hereby adopted to be
enforceable thirty (30) days hereafter to the greatest extent possible under the laws of the State of
California.

Adopted:

SO ORDERED.
# # #
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ORDINANCE NO. 2015-1

AN ORDINANCE OF THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT TO PROHIBIT THE USE OF
ELECTRONIC SMOKING (VAPOR) DEVICES (ELECTRONIC CIGARETTES) ON BART TRAINS, BART FACILITIES
AND BART PROPERTY WHENEVER THEY ARE FOUND WITHIN THE DISTRICT.

WHEREAS, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District has a substantial interest in
protecting the health and welfare of its patrons and persons coming on to District property; and

WHEREAS, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District has a substantial interest in
protecting such persons from the health hazards associated with nicotine inhalation; and

WHEREAS, the potential health risks of the inhalation of vaporized nicotine are largely unknown;
and

WHEREAS, the manufacturing of electronic smoking (vapor) devices often employ the use of a
nicotine cartridge, designed to deliver vaporized nicotine to the user; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) conducted laboratory analysis of
electronic smoking device cartridges and found the following:

e Diethylene glycol, an ingredient used in antifreeze and toxic to humans, was found in
one cartridge;

e Certain tobacco-specific nitrosamines, which are human carcinogens, were detected in
half of the samples tested;

e Tobacco-specific impurities suspected of being harmful to humans — anabasine,
myosmine, and B-nicotyrine — were detected in a majority of the samples tested;

e All but one tested cartridge labeled as containing no nicotine did in fact contain low
levels of nicotine;

e Three identically labeled cartridges emitted markedly different amounts of nicotine with
each puff. Nicotine levels per 100 milliliter puff ranged dramatically from 26.8 to 43.2
micrograms of nicotine; and

®  One high-nicotine cartridge delivered trice as much nicotine to users as was delivered by
a nicotine inhalation product approved by the FDA for use as a smoking cessation aid
which was used as a control;

WHEREAS, electronic smoking (vapor) devices often mimic conventional tobacco products in
shape, size, and color, with the user exhaling a vapor similar in appearance to the exhaled smoke from
cigarettes and other conventional tobacco products, and

WHEREAS, the use of electronic smoking (vapor) devices in smoke free locations threatens to
undermine compliance with smoking regulations and reverse the progress that has been made in
establishing a social norm that smoking is not permitted in public places and places of employment; and
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WHEREAS, in accordance with similar health concerns, the State of California implemented
Health and Safety Code Section 119405, which prohibits the sale of electronic cigarettes to minors in
order to protect their welfare and to reduce the chances of nicotine addiction in youth; and

WHEREAS, it is the purpose and intent of the Board of Directors, in enacting this Ordinance, to
augment current laws restricting the use of tobacco products to include electronic smoking devices, thus
improving the health, safety, and welfare of its patrons and visitors by preventing the harmful effects of
nicotine and tobacco products in new forms and in new delivery devices to the extent permitted by law;
and

WHEREAS, Public Utilities Code Section 28793 authorizes the Board to pass ordinances; and

WHEREAS, Public Utilities Code Section 28763 authorizes the Board to do any and all things
necessary to carry out the purposes of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that the adoption of this ordinance, in the absence of
adequate State laws, is necessary to preserve the health and safety of BART riders, and those who come
on to BART facilities and properties;

NOW THEREFORE, be it enacted by the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid
Transit District: (Public Utilities Code Section 29795)

SECTION I. Chapter 8 of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District Ordinance Code is hereby
adopted and made a law of the District as follows:

8.10  Findings and declaration.
The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District Board of Directors does find that:
(a) Electronic Smoking (Vapor) Device Findings.

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District has a substantial interest in protecting the
health and welfare of its residents from the health hazards associated with nicotine ingestion.

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District has a substantial interest in protecting the
public health and welfare by prohibiting smoking and the emission of nicotine vapor in public places,
and in protecting the rights of non-smokers to breathe smoke-free and nicotine vapor-free air.

The potential health risks of the inhalation of vaporized nicotine are largely unknown.

The manufacturing of electronic smoking (vapor) devices, often known as electronic cigarettes,
remains largely unregulated.

Electronic smoking (vapor) devices often employ the use of a nicotine cartridge, designed to
deliver vaporized nicotine to the user.
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The World Medical Association has determined that electronic smoking devices are not
comparable to scientifically-proven methods of smoking cessation and that neither their value as
therapeutic aids for smoking cessation nor their safety as cigarette replacements has been established.

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) conducted laboratory analysis of electronic
smoking device cartridges and found the following:

e Diethylene glycol, an ingredient used in antifreeze and toxic to humans, was found in
one cartridge;

e Certain tobacco-specific nitrosamines, which are human carcinogens, were detected in
half of the samples tested;

e Tobacco-specific impurities suspected of being harmful to humans — anabasine,
myosmine, and B-nicotyrine — were detected in a majority of the samples tested;

e All but one tested cartridge labeled as containing no nicotine did in fact contain low
levels of nicotine;

e Three identically labeled cartridges emitted markedly different amounts of nicotine with
each puff. Nicotine levels per 100 milliliter puff ranged dramatically from 26.8 to 43.2
micrograms of nicotine; and

® One high-nicotine cartridge delivered trice as much nicotine to users as was delivered by
a nicotine inhalation product approved by the FDA for use as a smoking cessation aid
which was used as a control;

Electronic smoking devices often mimic conventional tobacco products in shape, size, and color,
with the user exhaling a vapor similar in appearance to the exhaled smoke from cigarettes and other
conventional tobacco products.

The use of electronic smoking devices in smoke free locations threatens to undermine
compliance with smoking regulations and reverse the progress that has been made in establishing a
social norm that smoking is not permitted in public places and places of employment.

In accordance with similar health concerns, the State of California implemented health and
Safety Code Section 119405, which prohibits the sale of electronic cigarettes to minors in order to
protect their welfare and to reduce the chances of nicotine addiction in youth.

(b) Declaration.

Accordingly, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District Board of Directors finds and
declares that the purposes of this District enactment are: (A) to protect the public health and welfare by
prohibiting the use of electronic smoking (vapor) devices and nicotine vapor inhalation in public places
and places of employment (i.e. where an employee works for a business or employer) when state
statutes would not otherwise apply; (B) to enforce the state law prohibiting smoking in the workplace;
(C) to guarantee the rights of nonsmokers to breathe smoke-free and nicotine vapor free air, and to
recognize that the need to breathe smoke-free and nicotine vapor free air shall have priority over the
desire to smoke; (D) to reduce addiction to nicotine and tobacco products by minors; and to generally



71858v3

promote the health, safety, and welfare within the District of all people who ride within BART trains, or
otherwise use BART facilities and BART owned properties against the health hazards and harmful effects
of the use of tobacco and nicotine products to the extent permitted by law.

8.20 Definitions.

The following words and phrases, whenever used within this ordinance and this chapter, shall be
construed as defined in this section:

“Business” means any sole proprietorship, partnership, joint venture, corporation, or other
business entity formed for profit-making purposes, including retail establishments where goods or
services are sold as well as corporations and other entities where legal, medical, dental, engineering,
architectural, or other professional services are delivered.

“Electronic Smoking (Vapor) Device” means an electronic and/or battery-operated device, the
use of which may resemble smoking, which can be used to deliver an inhaled dose of nicotine.
“Electronic Smoking (Vapor) Device” includes any such device and parts thereof, whether manufactured,
distributed, marketed, or sold as an electronic cigarette, an electronic cigar, an electronic cigarillo, an
electronic pipe, an electronic hookah, or any other product name or descriptor. “Electronic Smoking
(Vapor) Device” includes nicotine cartridges used in such devices, which may be separately sold or
distributed as refills. “Electronic Smoking (Vapor) Device” includes similar devices and cartridges that
purport to contain no nicotine.

“Employee” means any person who is employed by an employer in consideration for direct or
indirect monetary wages or profit, and any person who volunteers his or her services for a nonprofit
entity, and shall have the same meaning as the term “employee” as defined in Sections 3350 through
3352.94, inclusive, of the California Labor Code.

“Employer” means every person or public service corporation which has any natural person in
service, and shall have the same meaning as the term “employer” in Section 3300 and Section 3301 of
the California Labor Code.

“Smoking” means inhaling, exhaling, burning or carrying any lighted cigar, cigarette, weed,
plant, or other combustible substance in any manner or in any form. “Smoking” also includes the use of
an electronic smoking (vapor) device. For purposes of this enactment and this Chapter, the tobacco
smoking restrictions in section 6404.5 of the California Labor Code and Penal Code Section 640 shall
extend to restrictions on the use of electronic smoking (vapor) devices.

8.30  Prohibition on the Use of Electronic Smoking (Vapor) Devices within the BART District.

The use of Electronic Smoking (Vapor) Devices is prohibited on BART trains, BART facilities and
BART property whenever they are found within the District. Any use of Electronic Smoking (Vapor)
Devices shall be regulated pursuant to this ordinance in the same manner as tobacco smoking
restrictions in section 6404.5 of the California Labor Code and Penal Code Section 640, and shall subject
the violator to the penalties established by this ordinance when used within the BART District.
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Section 8.40 Limitation of Remedies.

In enacting and implementing this ordinance, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District is
only undertaking to promote the general welfare. It is not assuming, nor is it imposing on its officers
and employees, an obligation for breach of which it is liable in money damages to any person who
claims that such breach proximately caused injury.

Section 8.50  Preemption.

Nothing in this ordinance shall be interpreted or applied so as to create any power, duty or
obligation in conflict with, or preempted by, any Federal or State law. Even if not preempted by Federal
or State law, the provisions of this Chapter shall not apply if the Federal or State law is more restrictive
toward the practices, activities and/or uses banned herein. If the Board of Directors determines that a
provision included herein has become preempted by Federal or State law, that preempted provision
shall be automatically rescinded from this Chapter. Such rescission shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions of this Chapter.

Section 8.60 Penalties.

Any person found to be in violation of any provision of this ordinance or Chapter shall be guilty
of an infraction, and may be punishable by:

{a) A fine, not exceeding one hundred dollars ($100.00), for the first violation;

(b) A fine, not exceeding two hundred dollars ($200.00), for a second violation of this
ordinance or Chapter within one year;

(c) A fine, not exceeding five hundred ($500.00), for each additional violation of this
ordinance or Chapter within five (5) years.

Section 8.70  Statutory Severability.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Chapter is, for any reason held to
be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall
not affect the validity of the remaining portions of the Chapter.

Section 8.80 Liberal Construction.

It is the intention of the Board of Directors that this Chapter shall be liberally construed to
accomplish its remedial objectives and to be compatible with Federal and State enactments.

SECTION Il. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held to be unconstitutional and invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portion of this ordinance. The Board of Directors hereby declares that it would have passed this
ordinance and every section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that



any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared unconstitutional or
invalid.

SECTION III. This ordinance shall be and the same is hereby declared to be in full force and effect from
and after thirty (30) days after the date of its passage and shall be published once before the expiration
of fifteen (15) days after said passage, with the names of the Directors voting for or against the same, in
a newspaper of general circulation published in the Counties of the District. (Public Utilities Code
Sections 28794)

In regular session of the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
introduced on the ___ day of January, 2015, and finally passed and adopted this ___day of February,
2015, on regular roll call of the members of said Board by the following vote:

Directors:
Blalock: Josefowitz: Keller: Mallett: McPartland: Murray: Radulovich: Rayburn: Saltzman:
Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstain:

WHEREUPON, the Chair declared the above and foregoing ordinance duly adopted and SO ORDERED.

President

(Public Utilities Code Section 28796)

ATTEST:

District Secretary

(Public Utilities Code Section 28796)

71858v3
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NARRATIVE - ; B ¥4
Section 287 69 of the Pubhc Ut111t1es Code requrres that an annual aud1t be made of all books and :

. accounts of the District. For fiscal year 2014, the 1ndependent certified publlc accountlng firmof

o ’LMacras G1m and O Connell conducted the aud1t and 1ssued therr report on December 30 201 4

" The D1str1ct's annual fman01al report prov1des mformatron on the D1str1ct's Enterprlse Fund and
F1ducrary Fund. The Enterprlse Fund mcludes all revenues, expenses assets, liabilities and. net

~ assets related to the District's transit operations. The F1ducrary Fund shows all financial .
~ transactions of the Retiree Health Benefit Trust, Whrch was created. by the District to admrmster :
~ and account for assets which are restricted for the payment of retiree health premiums and
o admlmstratlve costs. The results of the. audit concluded that the Drstrrct's basic financial ,

~ statements for the year ended June 30, 2014 present fairly, in all material respects, the ﬁnancral

position of the Enterprise F und and the F 1duc1ary Fund, and are 1n conformlty Wlth accountrng

prrncrples generally accepted in the Umted States of Amerrca : o

As part of the examrnatlon the audrtors performed a revrew and evaluatron of the D1str1ct'
internal accountlng controls. The results of the evaluation are discussed in the Independent

i Auditor's Report on Internal Control. The report 1nd1cates that all of the prior year’s issues related -

‘to the PeopleSoft Financial system 1mplementat10n were addressed by the District in fiscal year
2014. ‘However, there is a significant deﬁc1ency finding related to review and accountmg of
51gmﬁcant transactions. In fiscal year. 2014, the District re—evaluated the various provisions of

~ the Settlement Agreement entered on April 27, 2007 between the D1strlct and San Mateo County
Transportat1on District (Samtrans), as well as the Tr1-Party Agreement between the District,
‘Samtrans and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), ‘which was entered on
- February 27,2007, and have concluded that the construction loans provided to the District by

- Samtrans and MTC during the construction of the SFO Extension amounting to $88,500 OOO

. were no longer required to be pa1d The District recognized the extlngulshment of thedebtin
N ﬁscal year2014 asa specral item in the District's financial statements The extmgulshment of the ;

R loans from Samtrans and MTC were not recognized by the District at the time of the transactlons E

. duetothe complex1ty of the language in the settlement agreements and key terms decided and
E agreed upon by all relevant partles were not conveyed to ﬁnance or understood by ﬁnance The



o report recommends that the Dlstrlct should estabhsh a procedure or process whereby members of
uﬁnance legal and operatlons are gathered to d1scuss key terms of 51gn1ﬁcant transactrons Sy

FISCAL IMPACT L
‘None. '

ALTERNATIVE — ’ LN ~ ~ ,
~ None. The Dlstrlct 1s requrred by law to have 1ts books and accounts audrted every year by an -

~ ,_~y1ndependent certlﬁed pubhc accountant

~ INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS ON THE BASIC FINANGIAL STATEMENTS AND INTERNAL CONTROL FO
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TITLE.
Sole Source Procurement of Brake, Split Disc and Hub Assemblies
(Two-Thirds Vote Required) ‘
© NARRATIVE:

PURPOSE: To obtain a Board finding that Knorr Brake Corporation of Westminster, MD is the
single source of supply of Brake, Split Disc and Hub Assemblies and that the purchase of this
equipment is for the sole purpose of duplicating or replacing equipment or material in use at the
District; and to authorize the General Manager to execute a sole source, estimated quantities
contract with Knorr Brake Corporation in the amount of $3,726,230.40 (including all taxes) for
the purchase of Brake, Split Disc and Hub Assemblies.

DISCUSSION: The District operates 669 revenue vehicles, each with four axles. Each axle uses
one brake, split disc and hub assembly. All varieties of BART revenue vehicles have friction
brake equipment designed, built and supplied by Knorr Brake Corporation. The brake, split disc
and hub assembly works in a system with brake calipers and brake control equipment to form an
integrated braking system. This assembly is inspected as part of scheduled maintenance, and
periodically must be replaced when considered unservicable. This procurement is to provide
ongoing parts replenishment to support these maintenance activities.

The brake, split disc and hub assembly is of a proprietary design and is unique to Knorr Brake
Corporation. Purchase of this equipment from Knorr Brake Corporation will guarantee
operational compatibility with the existing brake equipment.

Staff proposes to enter into a three (3) year estimated quantity contract with Knorr Brake
Corporation for the purchase of replacement assemblies. Pursuant to the terms of the District's
standard estimated quantity contract, during the term of the contract, the District is required to
purchase from the supplier a minimum amount of 50 percent of the contract price. Upon Board
approval of this contract, the General Manager will also have the authority to purchase up to 150
percent of the contract price, subject to availability of funding. Pursuant to Public Contract Code
Section 20227, the Board may direct the purchase of any supply, equipment or material without
observance of competitive bidding upon a finding by two-thirds of all members of the Board that
there is only a single source of procurement and that the purchase is for the sole purpose of
duplicating or replacing equipment currently in use.



Vehicle Systems Engineering has estimated the replacement cost for a quantity of 1,440 brake,
split disc and hub assemblies to be $3,726,230.40, including all taxes, based on a budgetary
estimate by Knorr Brake Corporation of $2,374 per assembly. District staff believes the Knorr
Brake Corporation estimate to be fair and reasonable based on previous procurements with Knorr
Brake Corporation. ‘

Bidder Quantity Unit Price Grand total including 9.00%
tax_

Knorr Brake Corporation
Westminster, MD. 21157 1,440 ea. $2,374.00 $3,726,230.40

The Procurement Department will review the contract to confirm compliance with the District's
procurement standards. The Office of the General Counsel will approve the contract as to form.

The District’s Non-Discrimination in Subcontracting Program does not apply to Emergency
Contracts, Sole Source Contracts and Contracts under $50,000 or any Invitation for Bid.
Pursuant to the Program, the Office of Civil Rights did not set availability percentages for this
contract.

Fiscal Impact: :
The Split Disc and Hub Assemblies are scheduled to be procured over the contract’s three (3)
year period at the following estimated annual costs:

FY 15 $621,038.40
FY 16 $1,552,596.00
FY 17 $1,552,596.00

Funding for $621,038.40 for FY2015 is currently available in the General Fund, Materials &
Supplies Inventory build-up account. Subsequent funding for this contract will be provided by
the Rolling Stock & Shops (RS&S) Maintenance, Repair and other account #680230 as the parts
are ordered from inventory. Any additional orders of Split Disc and Hub Assemblies over and
above the currently available funds of $621,038.40 for FY2015 will only be placed upon
certification by the Controller-Treasurer that funds are available. Expenditures for the out year
portions of the contract will be included in future RS&S operating budgets which are subject to
future board adoption.

Alternatives: None. There are no other sources of supply for these assemblies.

Sole Source Procurement of Brake, Split Disc and Hub Assemblies . ‘ 2



Recommendation: On the basis of analysis by Staff, and certification by the
Controller-Treasurer that the funds for FY2015 are avallable for this purpose, it is recommended
that the Board adopt the following motion.

Motion: The Board finds pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 20227 that Knorr Brake
Corporation is the single source of procurement of Brake, Split Disc and Hub Assemblies, and
that the purchase is for the sole purpose of duplicating or replacing equipment in use at the
District. The Board authorizes the General Manager to execute a sole source, estimated quantity
contract for Brake, Split Disc and Hub Assemblies with Knorr Brake Corporation, for a price not

to exceed $3,726,230.40, including all applicable taxes.

Sole Source Procurement of Brake, Split Disc and Hub Assemblies 3



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors DATE: January 15,2015
FROM: General Manager
SUBJECT: E&O Agenda Item Customer Communications During Major Service

Disruptions and Improvement Initiatives — For Information

The subject item was continued at the December 4, 2014 Board meeting. At the January 22™
Board meetng, staff will discuss the attached presentation on customer communications during
major service delays and improvement initiatives that have been implemented or are planned for
future implementation.

The presentation is the result of an inter-departmental committee that included staff from the
Transportation, Computer Systems Engineering and Communications departments, and the
Office of the Chief Information Officer.

If you have any questions, please contact Chief Transportation Officer Roy Aguilera at (510)
464-6797.

Grace Crunigan

Attachments

cc:  Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors DATE: January 15,2015
FROM: General Manager
SUBJECT: E&O Agenda Item Service Planning for Special Events — For Information

At the January 22, 2015 Board meeting, staff will discuss the attached presentation on Service
Planning for Special Events. The discussion will include the various types of special events, the
event planning process, service delivery tools, challenges and, lessons learned.

If you have any questions, please contact John McCormick, Group Manager Operations Planning
and Support, at (510) 464-7557.

Attachments

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff
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~ NARRATIVE: .

, tive 'Gd‘als L
'ePURPOSE TO review and aPprove the Dlstnct S 2015 State and Federal Leglslatlve Advocacy .

. Program

] DISCUSSION The 2014 general electlon resulted in 35 new members bemg elected to the
~ State Legislature. In Congress the Repubhcans 1ncreased their majorlty in the House of

Representatrves and took over the US Senate witha 54 member advantage A prlorlty w111 be to o -

- "’problem that mlght arlse in 2015 BART staff offers the followrng outhne of proposed state and

- k . rfederal legrslatlve goals and obJectlves for the year ahead

- 'Last year the leg1slature estabhshed in the state budget process and the Governor srgned 1nto

Gy law a Cap & Trade ‘program in response to landmark legislation Whrch set goals to reduce the S
o ﬁemlsswn of greenhouse gases (GHG) 1n the state The Cap & Trade program now pres ents the S o
o best optlon forlon nable ,’ e

o 0 Formula grants ‘to,tran51t~agen01es through the State Tran51t Ass1stance (STA) program o

- formula for operations and capital projects; ~ .
e ‘Transu and mtercrty rail competltlve grant program for capltal pro;ects and : e
. An affordable housmg and sustamable commumtles competltrve grant program o i

k . $872 mllllon was approved in the 2014 201 5 state budget to prov1de 1n1t1al support for these and o
- other programs to reduce GHG. In subsequent years, these 1 programs will receive SpCClﬁC S

G percentages generated by the total Cap & Trade auctlon revenue ralsed and thlS amount may



: grow dramatlcally as transportat1on fuels are now 1ncluded in the Cap & T rade program Over

.  the past few months compllcated g 'delrnes related to the. Cap & Trade pro gram have been

o developed by several state agencit suCh as the Cahfornra State Transportat1 onAgency, the

oy ‘Strateglc Grc Wth Councﬂ the Cahforma Natural ResourcesAgenc Caltra 5, the A1r Resources ; k,'f_ .

 Board, the ( Cahforma Natural Resources Agency, and the California Envrronrnental Protection
- Agency These agencies must undertake the complex process. of advancrng and unplementrng

~ these gu ehnes 0 drstrlbute fundrng ‘within each 'spec1ﬁc program. These evolvrng guldehnes

- ﬂ’ahlgh'p onty for BART

L \;,(2) ProtectExrstmg and Seek New State I ‘rans1t Fund g

- General'Fund “borrowmg

| : w111 become’ he I

: ‘"dmap as to how BART and other transrt systems may compete for llmrted o

L 'Last year: the BART Board opposed legrslatlon (AB 69 Perea) that would have delayed the

o ,,ﬁlnclusron of transportatlon fuels into the Cap & Trade program ‘That bill would have prevented L

~ the larger sums of revenue from berng rarsed that pubhc transit and affordable housrng programs o .
-~ will 1ncreasrngly depend upon Once agaln legrslatron has been 1ntroduced by Cap & Trade

opponents 0 ¢ say the program wrll raise gasohne pnces Workrng with the Calrforma Transit

| ~ Association (CTA) and other state transrt alhes to retam thrs key fundmg program should remam e .

o The last ession of the State Legrs]ature provr ;ed new optnnlsm that w111 help mrnlmrze what

~ had become perennial transit funding concerns. The balanced state budget reduced the risk of the,r ; e

funds from hrstorrc: pubhc transrt programs the' Governor ﬁnlshed

o ‘qush staterenewable energy goals upward in hrs Adrnrnrstratron In the context of the state’s o | ;
: 1nnovat1ve pohc1es to encourage renewable energy technologles and reduce the use of carbon for e

| are many hurdles that remaln to achreve hrgherlevels of renewable energy For example

BART's current agreements wrth PG&E 11rn1t the amount of solar generatlon 1nterconnected to

_ 2015Stateand Federal Legislative Goals



: the PG&E system wh1ch can be burlt on D1str1ct property Therefore to 1ncrease 1ts use of solar - - ;’ L

,energy, BART w111 need to elther amend its current agreements wrth PG&E or negotiate for

o modrﬁcat" 1 or removal of the lrmlt after the agreements expire in 2016 Th1s and other 1ssues e k, o !

! “'f’could 1nvolve leglslatlve and/or regulatory changes at erther the state or federal levels L

‘ :‘(4) kInvestl‘:/’ate/Pursue Issues Ralsed bv BART Pohce

o ;When necessary, BART has sought leglslatlon supported by BART Pohce to 1rnprove its ab111ty .

k' to ﬁght crime and ensure a safe system for its riders: and employees Some of these efforts have

. , 1nc1uded leglslatlon (AB 1586 Swanson) to establish an Independent Pohce Audltor anda

- ,‘k,fC1tlzen Revrew Board, (AB 716 Drcklnson) to allow a pllot program for a BART Proh1b1t10n .
- Order program, (SB 962, Leno) to support a kill switch for smait phones and last year’s BART ,
- sponsored bill (SB 1 154 Hancock) to clarlfy BART Pohce authorrty to respond to domestic

~ violence 1nc1dents on BART property ‘Witha Varlety of pollce actlons and civil demonstratlons o : o

i drawmg attentron around the nation, legrslatlve ideas -- such as those mvolvmg additional pohce e
& accountabrhty -- have been suggested and should be momtored in the State Capltol Inaddition,

o this  year some state transrt systems (and CTA) are hkely to pursue changes to the Pubhc Utilities
Code that 1nvolves improving transit agency ab111ty to cite for certain 1nfract10ns BART Police

. would hke to lnclude in that effort a clarlﬁcatlon that playrng loud d1srupt1ve mu51c on the BART . :

system can be c1ted as an 1nfractron

- B Proposed ?2014 Federal Advocacy Program for BART

| ::;"The two
. extended in July; 20 14 through May 2015 Heanngs on anew mult1 -year reauthorrzatlon w111

-year $‘105 brlhon Movmg Ahead for Progress in the 2lst Century Act (MAP 21) Was e

;move into full gear in the coming weeks with most dlscussrons focused on 1dent1fymg a source of e -
~ revenue to suppcrt hrghway nd tran51t pI‘OJGCtS as the nghway Trust Fund moves closer to e

. ’ 1nsolvency The House Committee Chatr for Transportatlon and Infrastructure Rep. Blll Shuster f: o

o f(R —PA), said last year that all revenue optrons to address shortfalls 1n the H1ghway Trust Fund

nd safety Many of these rmportant changes -

e P however have yet to be fully 1mp1emented as regulat1ons are stlll belng developed

E _:‘kfi(l) Partlclpate 1nReauthorlzat10n Effort

BART partrc1pated in the Cahforma Transrt Ass001at10n S (CTA) federal reauthorlzatlon task

- force in 2014 and should continue to be actlvely mvolved with other ‘major passenger rail

\ ’systems and wrth the Amerrcan Pubhc Transportatron Assocratron (APTA) to 1nﬂuence the
: k"followmg 1rnportant 1ssues 1n 2015 o . :

Overall Fundmg BART should contlnue workmg w1th 1ts congressronal delegat1on and .
", other passenger rarl systems to support a “full fundmg” reauthor1zat10n brll s1gned 1nto .

o 20155 'State'k“and,‘EyederalfLe‘gjsylatiyefGoa!s . f o o o . g i



G law. BART should contlnue to oppose proposals that would cut formula fund1ng by a “ .
e "s1gn1ﬁcant percentage ; B : : : g

S o State of Good Repalr (SOGR) & Formula Fundmg BART should contlnue to

‘“support the Administration's priority of SOGR fundmg and espec1ally the efforts by the - : -

, - Federal Transit Admlnrstratlon (FTA) to mcrease SOGR fundlng for the natlon s
i metropolltan ra1l systems o o .

. Transportatlon Enhancements/anablhty BART should contmue its support of the
+ ;&:Obama Administration’s efforts to maintain “llvab111ty” programs wh1ch assist transit
s _access goals and the enhancement of blcycle and pedestrlan pIOJGCtS Under Map 21 L
i funds for such enhancement programs were shlfted to the states ‘ - o

';\k : Core Capac1ty As part of the MAP—2l reforms the New Starts Program was renamed S :
- the “Capltal Investment Grant” program to 1nclude a “core capacrty” prov1sron allowmg i

‘, ;for the renovation of an ex1st1ng system w1th dlscret1onary funding if the project

o increases corridor capacity by 10%. ‘Encouraged by the FTA, BART worked closely W1th o -

: ‘ ', the MTC and submltted a Core Capaclty appllcatlon for a grant that could help fund a
e varlety of pIOJGCtS to allev1ate growmg capa01ty 1ssues on the system ' :

: . T,",Safety MAP 2l gave F TA the authorlty to monltor the safety of the nat10n s passenger r‘f -
- rail systems and restrict federal funding as a means of enforcement, and regulatrons are

o still bemg formulated Specrﬁc federal regulat1ons should be mon1tored and commented : S .

- kfk‘:on as approprrate

i (2) Seek Assrstance, 1f Necessarv, for New BART Rallcars

e f‘\BART has contlnued to educate the Bay Area congressronal delegatlon on the status of BART’s_' - o S
~ “Fleet of the Future” and has received good : support Should it be necessary, BART should seek\_ e

' ~congressronal ass1stance for the cars to accommodate the1r productlon e

‘ f:(3) Seek Fundlng for Transnt Securltv Needs

- Last year BART Was awarded the second of two trans1t securlty grants to help secure a cr1tlcal S

structural asset 1nvolv1ng the Trans Bay Tube BART securlty needs, however cont1nue to

o  warrant addltronal ﬁmdmg to guarantee a secure system for riders. BART should contmue to

: work wrth congress10nal allles to res1st efforts to cut appropr1at10ns for trans1t securlty needs

e ,(4) port a Permanent Trans1t Commuter Tax Benefit

. fIn recent years trans1t commuter tax beneﬁts have needed to be extended and restored annually | :
~ inorder to equalrze the transportatron frmge beneﬁts for parkmg and trans1t The BART Board

' ‘j has consrstently supported the | passage of leg1slat10n to estabhsh permanent par1ty between the o
o parkmg and tran51t portlons of the commuter tax beneﬁt However Congress has not been able’ L

- 2015 State and Federal Legislative Goals L L



s ”to garner enough support for a permanent fix and cont1nues to prov1de rellef on an annual ba31s.k S

o In 2014, the trans1t-park1ng beneﬁt parity provision was extended retroact1vely for the 2014 tax
L 'year In 2015 BART should contlnue to push for a permanent extensmn

o FISCAL,IMPACT

- 7N/A

~ RECOMMENDATION: o
. That the Board approves the followmg motlons :

ALTERN ATIVE

o The Board could dechne to support the spe01ﬁc state and federal goals

‘MOTIONS i e ~ o
: The Board approves the state advocacy prograrn as presented by staff at thls tlme

o The ,Board approves the ‘,federal advoCacy prograrn,‘jas p‘resented by staff at this tim'e; o

2015 State and Federal Legislative Goals
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. EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

_AGE PPROVAL . ,‘g:' s GENERALMANAGERACTIONREQD

L Approve and Forward to Board of Dlrectors; e

repared by: DorothyAdams

”{%&pzwob

- Bay Area Rapld Trans1t Dlstrlct for Admlnlstratlve Support e :
: ‘NARRATIVE ‘ et o . Ll
':jPPURPOSE

. For the BART Board to author1ze the execut1on of the Admmlstratlve Serv1ces Agreement :
: ”‘between the District and the Cap1tol Corr1dor J omt Powers Author1ty for a ﬁve-year term, i

| ‘;aeﬂecuverebnuuyzo 2015.

- ”BACKGROUND

E 2 Pursuant to the Jo1nt Exerc1se of Powers Agreement to Estabhsh the Capltol Corr1dor J o1nt
_ Powers Authorlty (JEPA), Sectlon 10.0 of the JEPA requires that the CCJPA enter into a contract

. with the Managmg Agency to 1dent1fy the respons1b1ht1es of the Managmg Agency Effectlve

o "February 20, 1999, the CCJPA and BART entered into an Admmlstratlve Support Agreement -

. (ASA) for an 1n1t1al term of three years to set forth the manner 1n whlch BART would prov1de all
j necessary admlmstratlve support to the CCJPA with its own staff to enable the CCJPA to '

. perform 1ts dut1es and respon51b111t1es Some of the key elements of the ASA 1nclude

o Descrlptlon of Managmg Agency S adm1mstrat1ve support dut1es
o ‘Appomted staff of Managing Agency; - ,

o ,?*Involcm procedures and avallabrhty, o :

~ Audit provisions;

e ,iLlab1hty (Allocated Losses) and

. ~~“:*In1t1al Term (through February 20 2002)

o Prlor to the exp1rat1on of the 1mt1al term of the ASA the CCJPA Board agreed at its February

e

‘ ement Between Capltol Corrldor J omt Powers Authorlty and San Franclsco G

2002 meeting to select BART as the Managing Agency and to extend the ASA with BART fora
~ further three-year term through February 2005 pursuant to the enablmg leglslauon then in effect .
~ BART concurred with this action by the CCJPA at its March 14, 2002 Board meetlng and the )
e ,‘iBoard Pres1dent executed the ASA effectlve through February 20 2005 ‘ Lo

i The CCJPA’s enabhng leg1slatlon Was further arnended to ellmmate the CCJPA’S sunset date

. (June 30, 2004) and also to lengthen the CCJPA Managmg Agency s agreement term from three‘ -



| ,"'Ad'm‘iﬂis ;'\eSprdrtAgreeméht‘

‘f'ito ﬁve years (effectlve February 2002) S0 that the CCJPA Board could better assess the

. fperformance of the Managlng Agency

L 1 Upon the explratlon of the renewal term of the ASA on February 20 2005 the CCJPA Board
. "'(CCJPB) has contmuously selected BART to continue in its role in prov1d1ng admlmstratlve

- support to the CCIPB for ﬁve-year terms inF ebruary 2005 (vahd through F ebruary 201 O) and

- again in February 2010 (valid through February 2015). The renewals of these ASAs were based o o

~ onthe contmulng success of the Cap1tol Corridor Servrce performance as well as the p0s1t1ve
. cross—beneﬁmal cooperatlve relatronshlp between BART and the CCJPA member agenc1es :

. Subsequently, at its November 19 2014 the CCJPA Board of Dlrectors approved the extensron :

o _ of the ASA with the District for another S-year term (F ebruary 2015—F ebruary 2020), once

- ~ again, c1t1ng their renewal of the ASA with BART was due to BART’S professional partnershrp .

~ withthe CCJ PA and the contmumg pos1t1ve results in the performance of the Capitol Corridor
~ services (i-e. natlon-leadlng on-time performance commitment to passenger/employee safety,

o increased rrdershlp and revenues, h1gh customer satlsfactron) The terms of the Agreement .

e durlng the renewal term remam the same.

' “Flscal Impact

| . Pursuant to the terms of the ASA and the Interagency Transfer Agreement (ITA) between the
~ CCIPA and the State of Cahforma all expenses incurred by BART as Managmg Agency of the ‘, :

- ccIpA w111 be reimbursed by the CCJPA through the State of Cahforma Therefore there is no- o L
: f'ﬁﬁscal 1mpact to BART L L o el :

'Recommendatlon L , r r ; -
. Accordmgly, the General Manager requests that the Board of Dlrectors of the San Franmsco Bay '

 Area Rapid Trans1t District adopt the followmg motion, authonzmg the District to enter the: o o

~ Adminis trative Support Agreement w1th the CCJPA for a ﬁve—year term as prOV1ded for by the
. amended statute , - . , o

fThe agreement has been approved as to form by the Ofﬁce of General Counsel

o ] The Board of Drrectors of the San Franc1sc0 Bay Area Rapld Tran51t Dlstrlct[

i ‘Qi(Board) hereby executes the Agreement Between the Capltol Corridor Joint Powers Authorlty’ -

and the San Francisco Bay Area Rap1d Trans1t Dlstrlct for Admmrstratlve Support for a ‘ ,
'consecutwe ﬁve-year term through February 19, 2020 under the same terms as the current o

: agreement

s . The Board hereby authorlzes and dlrects the Presrdent 0f the Board to execute the
Agreement on behalf of the Board : : e : ‘ S



CAPITOL CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Wednesday February 18, 2015

10:00 a.m. A simultaneous teleconference call will take place at:
City Council Chambers Santa Clara Valley Transportation Agency
. S‘“S‘l‘? C,lty Hall ) . 3331 North First Street, Conference Room C-118
(@F:N2IHE®) B8 701 Civic Center BIvd, Suisun City, CA San Josc, CA

CcO R [=]|pY@)=8 (secattached map)

DRAFT AGENDA
1. Call to Order

I1. Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
III.  Report of the Chair
IV.  Minutes of the November 19, 2014 Meeting

V.  Consent Calendar
1. CalEOS FY 14-15 Safety/Security Project Program
2. Budget Update: Oleum Tunnel Safety Improvement Project
3. CCJPA Operations Database Business Intelligence Project
VI.  Action and Discussion Items
Business Plan Update (FY 2015/16 —FY 2016/17)
Legislative Matters/Governor’s Draft FY 15/16 Budget
Capitol Corridor Project List: FY 14/15-FY15/16 Cap and Trade Transit/Intercity Rail Program
On-Board Information System Project Implementation Agreement
Vision Plan Implementation Program
Capitol Corridor Station Bicycle eLocker Project
Managing Director’s Report
Work Completed
a. Capitol Corridor Annual Performance Report (FY 2014)
b. CCJPA Annual Independent Audit (FY14)
¢. CCJPA/BART Administrative Services Agreement (February 2015 — February 2020)
d. Marketing Activities (November 2014 — January 2015)
9. Work in Progress
Oakland — San Jose Phase 2 Project
Sacramento-Roseville 3™ Track Environmental Review/Preliminary Engineering
Positive Train Control Update
Station and Platform Safety Upgrades
Proposition 1B Transit Safety/Security Improvement Projects
Proposed Extension of Capitol Corridor Trains to Salinas
g. Upcoming Marketing Activities
VII.  Board Member Reports
VIII.  Public Comments

IX.  Adjournment. Next Meeting Date: 10:00 a.m., April 15, 2015, at City Council Chambers, Suisun City
Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., City of Suisun City, CA

Notes:

Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item on this agenda. Please complete a "Request to Address the Board" form (available
at the entrance of the Boardroom and at a teleconference location, if applicable) and hand it to the Secretary or designated staff member before the
item is considered by the Board. If you wish to discuss a matter that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public
Comment. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes for any item or matter. The CCIPA Board reserves the right to take action on any agenda item.

RN~

mo a0 o

Consent calendar items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion unless a request for discussion or explanation is
received from a CCJPA Board Director or from a member of the audience.

*  Approval of the business plan requires an affirmative vote of at least two-thirds (11) of the appointed members.

The CCJPA Board provides services/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities who wish to address Board matters, A request must be
made within one and five days in advance of a Board meeting, depending on the service requested. Call (510) 464-6085 for information.

Action
Action

Action*
Action
Action
Action
Action
Action

Info
Info
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To the Board of Divectors of the San Francisco
Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Qakland, California

We have audited the financial statements of the Enterprise Fund and the Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund
of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014.
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards and Office of Management and
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of
our audit. We have communicated such information in our engagement letter dated November 3, 2014.
Professional standards also require that we conmunicate to you on a number of subjects. The information
on pages 3 through 5 satisfies these requirements.

In planning and performing onr audit of the District’s financial statements as of and for the year ended |

June 30, 2014, we considered the District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a
basis for designing our audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified a deficiency in internal control that we consider
to be a significant deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees. in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency. or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We
consider item #2014-1 in the accompanying Current Year Comnent section of this report to be a significant

deficiency.

PEWWTI QO CUTTY

Sar oo

Seatile





The District’s response to the significant deficiency identified in our audit is described in the Current Year
Comment section and was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. We will review the status of our recommendation
during our next audit engagement. We have also provided a status of our prior year comment beginning on
page 7 of this document.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management

and others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

M@m (oiki 5{ OCamel [P

Oakland, California
December 30, 2014





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA
RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Report to the Board of Directors
Year Ended June 30, 2014

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS - SIGNIFICANT AUDIT FINDINGS

L

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the basic financial
statements. As described in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, the District adopted the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 65, Trems
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities; and GASB Statement No. 66, 7 echnical Corrections
— 2012 — An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62.

We noted no transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the
financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and cwrent events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting
the financial statements were:

= Fair value of investments. The District’s investments are generally carried at fair value, which
is defined as the amount that the District could reasonably expect to receive for an investinent
in a current sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller and that is generally measured by
quoted market prices. ;

= Estimated allowance for losses on accounts receivable. The allowance for losses on accounts
receivable was based on management’s estimate regarding the likelihood of collectability.

= Useful life estimates for capital and intangible assets. The estimated useful lives of capital and
intangible assets were based on management’s estimate of the economic life of the assets.

s Estimated claims liabilities. Reserves for estimated claims liabilities were based on actuarial
evaluations using historical loss, other data, and attorney judgment about the ultimate outcome
of claims. . '

= Accrual of compensated absences. The District is required to report and accrue for compensated
absences as a liability, which is based upon the accumnlated hours owed to employees as of
June 30, 2014, at current salary rates and related employment taxes.

s Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits Plans’ employer and employee contributions. The
contribution requirements were based on actuarially determined studies.
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Report to the Board of Directors
Year Ended Tune 30, 2014

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS — SIGNIFICANT AUDIT FINDINGS (Continued)

L
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Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Pelicies (continmned)

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the accounting estimates described
above in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the District’s financial statements taken
as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statemients are
related to investments, long-term debt, pension benefits, and postemployment healthcare benefits.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Caorrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all kuown and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate leve] of
management. The attached schedule summarizes the uncorrected misstatement of the financial
statements. Management has determined that its effects are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the District’s financial statements taken as a whole. None of the misstatements
detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, esither
individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management as a financial accounting, reporting,
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the
financial statements or to the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements
arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated December 30, 2014,
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REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS — SIGNIFICANT AUDIT FINDINGS (Continued)
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Mamnagement Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about audititug and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion™ on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the District’s basic financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor”s opinion that may be expressed on those financial statesments,
our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations withr other
accountants,

Other Andit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the
Schedules of Funding Progress, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that
supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses fo our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSL

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

Our responsibility for other information in documents confaining the financial statements and our
report does not extend beyond the financial information identified in our andit report. We do not
have an obligation to perform any procedures fo corroborate other information contained in these
documents. The District will include its financial statements and our report in its annual geport.
However, we will read the other information in District’s annual report and consider whether such
information, or its manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with information, or the
manner of its presentation, appearing in the financial statements.

L





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA
RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Report to the Board of Directors
Year Ended June 30, 2014

CURRENT YEAR COMMENT
Comment #2014-1 (Significant Deficiency) — Review and Accounting for Significant Transactions
Condition and Context

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the District reevaluated language within the April 27, 2007 settlement
agreement between the District and the San Mateo County Transportation District (SamTrans), as well as
the Tri-Party Agreement dated February 28, 2007 between the District, SamTrans, and the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission (MTC). Upon reevaluation of various provisions within the two agreements,
the District determined that certain constiuction loans amounting to $88,500,000 from SamTrans and MTC
no longer required repayment. The District has reported this settlement as a special item in the District's
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Cause

The two agreements were part of a fast-paced, complex discussion over the funding of the SFO extension
project. Key terms decided and agreed-upon by all relevant parties were not properly conveyed by
operations to finance, or thoroughly understood by finance at the time of the transaction.

Effect

The District overstated its long-term liabilities by $88,500,000 in the previously issued financial statements
for the years ended June 30, 2007 through 2013.

Recommendation

We recommend the District establish a procedure or process whereby members of finance, legal, and
operations are gathered to discuss key terms of all significant transactions.

Management Response and Csrmeiéve Action

We agree with the finding. The District will implement the following procedures in order to ensure that
matters with significant financial impact will be recognized timely in the District’s records:

1. Periodic meetings between finance, operations, and legal will be held to discuss issues that
could have a significant financial impact to the District.

2. The District will implement a new procedure whereby all documents discussed to the Board of
Directors are in their final form.
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Year Ended June 30, 2014

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR COMMENT

Comment Summary Status
#2013-1 BAP system implementation (Material All issues were addressed in
Weakness) the cnrrent yeat.
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Ceriified Public Accounts

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of the San Francisco
Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Oakland, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Enterprise Fund and the Retiree Health
Benefit Trust Fund of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (the District) as of and for the
years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial positions of the Enterprise Fund and the Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund of the
District as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, effective July 1, 2012, the District adopted the provisions
of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as
Assets and Liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Marvters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the schedules of funding progress identified in the accompanying table of
contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the GASB who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 30, 2014 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

/%a;as Giti 5’/ O'Cmel

Qakland, California
December 30,2014






SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Introduction :

The following discussion and analysis of the financial performance and activity of the San Francisco Bay
Area Rapid Transit District (the District) provide an introduction and understanding of the basic financial
statements of the District for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. This discussion was prepared by
management and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes thereto, which
follow this section. '

The District is an independent agency created in 1957 by the legislature of the State of California for the
purpose of providing an adequate, modern, interurban mass rapid transit system in the various portions of
the metropolitan area surrounding the San Francisco Bay. The District started its revenue operations in
September 1972. It presently owns a 104-mile, 44-station system serving the four counties of Alameda,
Contra Costa, San Francisco and San Mateo. The governance of the District is vested in a Board of
Directors composed of nine members, each representing an election district within the District.

The Financial Statements

The basic financial statements provide information about the District’s Enterprise Fund and the Retiree
Health Benefit Trust. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).

Overview of the Enterprise Fund Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position reports assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and the difference as net position. The entire equity section is combined to report total net
position and is displayed in three components - net investment in capital assets, restricted net position; and
unrestricted net position.

The net position component net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings attributable to the acquisition,
construction or improvements of those assets.

Restricted net position consist of assets where constraints on their use are either (a) externally imposed by
creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
(b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position consist of net position that does not meet the definition of restricted or net
investment in capital assets. This net position component includes net position that has been designated by
management for specific purposes, which in the case of the District include allocations to fund capital
projects, and other liabilities, which indicate that management does not consider them to be available for
general operations.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position consists of operating and nonoperating
revenues and expenses based upon definitions provided by GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, as amended by GASB Statement No. 36, Recipient
Reporting for Certain Shared Nonexchange Revenues, and GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments, as amended by
GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State
and Local Governments: Omnibus. Accordingly, significant recurring sources of the District’s revenues,
such as capital contributions, are reported separately, after nonoperating revenues and expenses.





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Statement of Cash Flows is presented using the direct method and includes a reconciliation of operating
loss to net cash used in operating activities.

Financial Highlights
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

A summary of the District’s Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for fiscal years
2014, 2013 and 2012 is as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

2013 2012
2014 (Restated) (Restated)

Operating revenues $ 463,160 § 443274 § 401,855
Operating expenses, net (718,952) (712,485) (667,628)

Operating loss (255,792) (269,211) (265,773)
Nonoperating revenues, net 282,507 246,446 237,875
Capital contributions 326,690 419,852 355,462
Special item - settlement of loans 88,500 - -

Change in net position 441,905 397,087 327,564
Net position, beginning of year as restated 5,767,598 5,370,511 5,042,947
Net position, end of year $ 6,209,503 $ 5,767,598 $ 5,370,511

Operating Revenues

In fiscal year 2014, operating revenues increased by $19,886,000 primarily due to (1) an increase of
$9,683,000 in passenger fares, despite a slight decrease of 0.80% in average weekday ridership caused by
the labor strike, due to higher net average fares and longer trips; average weekday ridership dipped slightly
to 389,000 in fiscal 2014 compared to 392,000 in fiscal year 2013; (2) an increase of $4,312,000 due to
higher parking rates implemented effective in January 2014 at several stations; (3) an increase in ground
lease revenue of $4,798,000 primarily from recognizing ground lease prepayments received for the West
Dublin Station due to the reassignment of the original ground lease to a new lessee; and 4) increase in
advertising revenue of $497,000 primarily from the increase in minimum guaranteed amount received by
the District in fiscal year 2014, per poster advertising franchise agreement.

In fiscal year 2013, operating revenues increased by $41,419,000 primarily due to (1) an increase of
$39,582,000 in passenger fares, which is attributable to a 6.81% increase in average weekly ridership from
367,000 in fiscal year 2012 to 392,000 in fiscal year 2013; (2) an increase of $907,000 in parking revenue
coming from an increase in nonreserved and long-term parking fees which was an offshoot of the previously
noted general increase in ridership; and (3) an increase in advertising revenue of $662,000 due to increase
in the minimum annual guaranteed advertising revenue.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Operating Expenses, Net

In fiscal year 2014, operating expenses, net, increased by $6,467,000, primarily due to (1) an increase of
$10,618,000 in employees’ salaries and benefits, which were attributable to (a) an increase of $2,249,000
in regular wages, which is up only slightly since the expected wage increase were offset by non-payment
of wages during the strike to represented non-safety employees; (b) overtime increase by $4,271,000 partly
due to the strike; (c) provision in the new labor contract for additional qualified retirement contribution
increase operating expense by $3,208,000; (d) medical health insurance premium increase by 10.6% or
$5,072,000; (e) Employer portion of PERS contribution was higher by $1,193,000 due to increase in
contribution rate for both the miscellaneous and safety group from 11.736% (41.566% for safety) in fiscal
year 2013 to 12.269% (42.885% for safety) in fiscal 2014; (f) decrease of $1,341,000 in the District’s
reimbursement to employees for PERS employee contribution due to new contract provision that requires
employees to contribute 1% of their PERS eligible wages on the first year of the labor contract; and (g)
decrease of $4,034,000 since there were no negotiated lump sum wage payment in fiscal year 2014; (2) an
increase of $1,126,000 in bus service cost due to the strike; (3) an increase of $2,178,000 in depreciation
expense as more assets were put into service; and offset by (4) $7,934,000 reduction in workers
compensation as the latest actuarial report available as of June 30, 2014 did not result in a substantial
increase in liability.

In fiscal year 2013, operating expenses, net, increased by $44,857,000, which is primarily due to (1) an
increase of $12,865,000 in employees’ salaries and benefits largely from an additional 57 positions hired
during fiscal year 2013 ($2,253,000) to address targeted priority areas such as front line service and
compliance areas, an increase in overtime pay ($4,256,000) for operational needs, a slight increase in PERS
contribution ($853,000) due to new hires and an increase in contribution rate for the safety group from
38.001% in fiscal year 2012 to 41.566% in fiscal year 2013, an increase in annual Jump-sum payment to
employees ($1,005,000) per contractual agreement, and a 10% increase in medical health insurance
premiums ($4,498,000); (2) an increase of $6,778,000 in actuarially determined self-insurance reserves due
to anticipated increases in claims for both workers compensation and general liability; (3) an increase of
$1,963,000 in other post-employment benefit expenses due to a higher annual required contribution rate
from 12.45% in fiscal year 2012 to 13.02% in fiscal year 2013; (4) a net increase in materials and services
of $4,200,000 and traction power of $2,243,000 associated with maintaining the rail fleet as ridership
continues to increase; (5) an increase in depreciation expense of $7,464,000 as capital projects have been
completed and placed into use; and (6) an increase in clipper and interchange fees of $2,305,000 due to
continuing increase in the usage of the clipper card and credit card transactions used to purchased tickets at
the stations

Nonoperating Revenues, Net

In fiscal year 2014, nonoperating revenues, net, increased by $36,061,000 principally from (1) sales tax
revenue which grew by 6% or $12,588,000 as the economy in the San Francisco Bay Area continues to
thrive; (2) $18,702,000 increase in earmarked property tax revenue for the payment of the General
Obligation Bonds; (3) a decrease in interest expense of $2,802,000 primarily from the full payment of the
QTE lease/leaseback obligation in FY 2013, partially offset by increase in interest expense from the
issuance of sales tax revenue bonds in October 2012 and new General Obligation Bonds issued in fiscal
year 2014; (4) a decrease in investment income of $2,291,000 primarily due to the usage of the deposits for
the lease/leaseback to payoff the lease/leaseback obligations; (5) an increase of $2,716,000 in State Transit
Assistance received in fiscal year 2014 offset by $2,346,000 decrease in other federal operating assistance;
and (6) higher revenue in fiscal year 2014 due to the recognition of $4,675,000 loss from early termination
of lease/leaseback in fiscal year 2013.





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

In fiscal year 2013, nonoperating revenues, net, increased by $8,571,000 principally from (1) sales tax
revenue which grew by $13,347,000 due to a more vibrant economy in the San Francisco Bay Area; (2) an
increase in property tax revenue of $1,992,000 attributable to the rising property values within the District
boundaries and $1,315,000 increase in earmarked property tax revenue for the payment of the General
Obligation Bonds; (3) a decrease in interest expense of $5,855,000 primarily from an increase in capitalized
interest; offset by (4) a decrease in investment income of $8,695,000 due to a combination of lesser funds
available for investment and the decrease in the carrying value of investments; (5) a decrease of $1,013,000
in State Transit Assistance received in fiscal year 2013; and (6) a loss of $4,675,000 from early termination
of the lease/leaseback obligation with Wells Fargo Bank and CIBC Capital Corporation on June 26, 2013.

Capital Contributions

The revenues from capital contributions relate to grants and other financial assistance received by the
District from federal, state and local agencies to fund capital projects. The District receives mostly
reimbursement-type grants of which the District has to first incur eligible costs under the provider’s
program before qualifying for the grant resources. Revenues from capital contributions are recognized at
the time when the eligible project costs are incurred.

In fiscal year 2014, revenue from capital contributions decreased by $93,162,000 principally from (1) a net
decrease of $44,059,000 in grants revenue recognized in fiscal year 2013 from the Federal Transit
Administration associated with the procurement of rail cars without corresponding grants earned in fiscal
2014; (2) a decrease of $80,426,000 in grants received from MTC associated with reductions in funding for
the rail car procurement, a non-recurring funding, and the Oakland Airport Connector due to full utilization
of grant amounts received for the project as it gets near towards completion; (3) a decrease of $3,078,000
in contribution from the Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority “VTA” for the Warm Springs
Extension; (4) a decrease of $2,322,000 in Measure J funds received for the eBART Project; (5) a decrease
of $3,295,000 in contribution from the Port of Oakland for the Oakland Airport Connector Project; and
offset by (6) a net increase of $53,899,000 in funds earned from the State of California primarily from the
funding received for the rail car procurement project.

In fiscal year 2013, the revenues from capital contributions increased by $64,390,000 mostly from local
funds received from the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) to fund the rail car replacement
project ($15,500,000) and the Oakland Airport Connector Project ($31,000,000). The remaining increase
of $17,890,000 came from the Proposition 1B funds provided by the State of California for the EBART
project and the Warm Springs Extension.

The major additions in fiscal years 2014 and 2013 to capital projects are detailed on page 10.

Special Item

The special item of $88,500,000 in fiscal year 2014 refers to the principal balances of the construction loans
from San Mateo County Transit District (SamTrans) in the amount of $72,000,000 and MTC in the amount
of $16,500,000, which were extinguished upon the termination of the 1999 Memorandum of Understanding
between the District, SamTrans and MTC. ‘

There were no special items in fiscal years 2013 or 2012.
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Statements of Net Position

A comparison of the District’s Statements of Net Position as of June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 is as
follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

2013 2012
2014 (Restated) (Restated)
Current assets $ 1,115,063 $ 1,101,538 $ 999,970
Noncurrent assets - capital assets, net 6,894,032 6,519,471 6,077,309
Noncurrent assets - other 198,513 49,022 123233
Total assets ' : ' 8,207,608 7,670,031 7,200,512
‘Deferred outflow of resources 19,434 20,490 16,165
Current liabilities 287,053 352,075 385,592
Noncurrent liabilities 1,730,486 1,570,848 1,460,574
Total liabilities 2,017,539 1,922,923 1,846,166
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 5,689,954 5,290,181 5,058,253
Restricted 237,694 252,613 159,443
Unrestricted 281,855 224,804 152,815
Total net position $ 6,209,503 $ 5,767,598 $ 5370511

Current Assets

In fiscal year 2014 current assets increased by $13,525,000 primarily from (1) an increase of $119,293,000
from portion of the proceeds deposited in restricted cash equivalent and current investments from proceeds
of the 2013 General Obligation Bonds; (2) a net increase of $143,373,000 in unrestricted cash, cash
equivalent and current investments from collections of grants receivable; (3) an increase of $31,270,000 in
unrestricted and restricted cash and current investment due to timing of payment of vendor invoices; (4) an
increase of $967,000 in accrued property tax receivable; (5) an increase of $1,563,000 in materials and
supplies inventory due to timing in the usage of supplies used for repairs and maintenance; and offset by
(6) a decrease of $52,791,000 from payment of project expenses from the proceeds of the 2012 Sales Tax
Revenue Bonds, (7) a decrease of $50,454,000 for payments of seismic related project expenses funded by
the General Obligation Bonds; (8) a decrease of $143,373,000 in capital grants receivable; (9) a reduction
of $6,348,000 from receivables from Capitol Corridor, mostly for reimbursement for advances for capital
project expenses; and (10) a decrease of $30,664,000 in restricted cash and cash equivalent due to utilization
of advances received in prior years from proceeds from Proposition 1B funds.
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In fiscal year 2013, current assets increased by $101,568,000 primarily from (1) an increase of $35,356,000
on the receivables from funding agencies for reimbursement of paid and accrued capital project
expenditures due to timing in submission and receipt of payment of invoices; (2) an increase of $5,623,000
in receivables from the Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority, mostly for advances for capital project
expenses; (3) an increase of $34,577,000 in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents due to timing of payment
of vendor invoices; (4) an increase in current restricted investments of $99,999,000 representing unspent
proceeds from issuance of 2012 Series B Sales Tax Revenue Bonds for the Oakland Airport Connector
project; and offset by (4) a net decrease of $79,935,000 in restricted cash and cash equivalents from a
combination of the following: (a) an increase of $82,321,000 from unspent portion of advances received
from grantors from Proposition 1B funds allocated for various projects, (b) an increase of $11,086,000 from
a portion of the proceeds from the 2012 Series B Sales Tax Revenue Bonds deposited in a checking account,
(c) a decrease of $138,413,000 for payments of seismic related project expenses funded by the General
Obligation Bonds, and (d) a decrease from disbursements of $34,929,000 related to the 2002 SFO Premium
Fare Bonds for refund of excess premium fare to the General Fund from funds held by Trustee
($13,119,000) and for a portion used to defease the bonds in 2013 and for debt service payments
($21,810,000).

Noncurrent Assets - Other

In fiscal year 2014, noncurrent assets — other increased by $149,491,000 primarily from the following: (1) an increase
of $148,058,000 in restricted investments from portion ofthe proceeds from the 2013 General Obligation Bonds issued
in November 2013; and (2) an increase of $1,214,000 in property tax receivable for debt service of the General
Obligation Bonds. .

In fiscal year 2013, noncurrent assets — other showed a decrease of $74,211,000 principally from (1) a reduction of
$70,309,000 in deposits for sublease obligations ($24,565,000), interest receivable ($20,060,000), and investments
($25,684,000) used for the settlement of part of the District’s obligation for the early termination of the lease with
Wells Fargo Bank and CIBC Capital Corporation; (2) a decrease of $9,685,000 in previously deferred debt issuance
costs that were reclassified to expense as required by GASB 65, which was implemented in fiscal year 2014; (3) a
decrease of $4,403,000 in investments used to defease a portion of the 2002 Premium Fare Bonds; and offset by (4)
an increase of $5,653,000 in receivables from Capitol Corridor mainly to cover advances for capital expenditures.

Current Liabilities

In fiscal year 2014, current liabilities decreased by $65,022,000 primarily attributable to (1) a decrease of
$49,573,000 in payables to vendors and contractors due to the timing of receiving and paying their invoices;
(2) an increase of $3,860,000 in payables to employees due to timing paying the payroll at the end of the
fiscal year and in the remittances of payroll taxes and benefits; (3) a decrease of $2,959,000 in the accruals
of post- employment benefits estimated to be paid in the following fiscal year; (4) an increase of $4,061,000
in interest payable on long term debt primarily associated with the issuance of the 2013 General Obligation
Bonds; (5) reduction of $3,780,000 for sales tax revenue bond obligations due to timing of principal
payments required; (6) increase of $14,455,000 in principal payment required for the General Obligation
Bonds associated with the new bonds issued in November 2013; (7) $5,000,000 full settlement of
construction loan from MTC in fiscal year 2013, which reduced the liability in fiscal year 2014; (8) an
increase of $2,783,000 in current reserves required for workers compensation and general liability
insurance; and (9) decrease of $30,501,000 in the current portion of advances from grantors based on
projected fund utilization for fiscal year 2015.
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In fiscal year 2013, current liabilities showed a decrease of $33,517,000, which is primarily attributable to:
(1) a decrease of $22,407,000 due mainly to timing in the remittance of funds to Metropolitan
Transportation Commission related to the BART Car Replacement Funding Exchange Agreement — see
note 9 to the financial statements; (2) a decrease of $3,661,000 in payables to vendors and contractors due
to the timing of receiving and paying their invoices; (3) a decrease of $8,240,000 in the current portion of
long-term debt; (4) a slight decrease of $3,310,000 in the current portion of advances from grantors based
on estimated fund utilization; and offset by (5) an increase of $3,590,000 in payables to employees due to
the timing of remitting payroll taxes and benefits and from an increase in unfunded liabilities ($2,468,000)
for other post-employment benefits.

Noncurrent Liabilities

In fiscal year 2014, non-current liabilities increased by $159,638,000 primarily from (1) an increase of
$3,073,000 in payables to employees due to timing in the utilization of accrued benefits; (2) an increase of
$5,116,000 in non-current portion of accruals for unfunded post-employment benefits (3) a decrease of
$88,500,000 due to extinguishment of loans from SamTrans ($72,000,000) and MTC ($16,500,000) arising
from the termination of the 1999 Memorandum of Understanding between the District, SamTrans and
MTC; (4) increase of $240,000,000 in principal balance of General Obligation Bonds due to new bonds
issued in fiscal year 2014; (5) an increase of $27,1 13,000, net of amortization, on premiums from issuance
of bond obligation due to the newly issued General Obligation Bonds; (6) a decrease of $25,875,000 in
outstanding bond obligations from payments made in fiscal year 2014; (7) a decrease of $11,700,000 in
long-term, portion of bond obligations; (8) an increase of $13,776,000 in the non-current portion of
advances from grantors; and (9) a decrease of $4,695,000 for portion of deferred ground lease recognized
as income due to reassignment of ground lease by the original lessor to a new lessee, offset by an increase
of $1,100,000 for prepayment received on the new ground lease.

In fiscal year 2013, non-current liabilities increased by $110,274,000 primarily from (1) a net increase in
long-term debt of $12,172,000 due to (a) an increase of $64,956,000 from the issuance of 2012 Series A
and B Sales Tax Revenue Bonds in October 2012, net of debt service payments and increase in debt related
items; (b) an increase $4,189,000 in Jease/leaseback obligations due to accretion; () an increase of
$8,240,000 in long-term debt due to a reduction in the current portion; and offset by (d) a decrease of
$65,213,000 in lease/leaseback obligations from early termination of the leases with Wells Fargo Bank and
CIBC Capital Corporation; (2) an increase of $3,351,000 in accruals for unfunded other post-employment
benefits; (3) an increase of $92,421,000 in advances from grantors mostly from new funds received related
to projects funded by Proposition 1B; (4) an increase of $10,602,000 in the self-insurance reserve for
worker's compensation and general liability to align the reserve to the actuarially determined amount; and
offset by (5) a decrease of $6,687,000 in previously deferred gain due to the termination of the
lease/leaseback transactions. :
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Capital Assets

Details of the capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, as of June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are as
follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

2013
2014 (Restated) 2012
Land $ 559,222 $ 549,685 § 544,874
Stations, track, structures and improvements 3,158,779 3,087,961 3,069,628
Buildings 8,336 8,336 8,470
Revenue transit vehicles 175,086 197,933 266,561
Other 441,783 430,852 353,679
Construction in progress 2,550,826 2,244,704 1,834,097
Total capital assets V $ 6,894,032 $ 6,519,471 $ 6,077,309

The District’s capital assets before depreciation and retirements showed a net increase of $522,503,000 in
2014 and $588,301,000 in 2013. There were no major retirements in fiscal 2014 and 2013. Major
additions in capital assets included capital expenditures for the acquisition and/or major improvements
related to the following assets (dollar amounts in thousands):

2014 2013
Core system and extensions $ 337,869 § 422,181
Train control equipment 12,833 18,843
Revenue transit vehicles 124,059 110,326
Automatic fare collections and other
equipment 25,395 33,703

Core system and extensions projects included among others the Oakland Airport Connector, Warm Springs
Extension, the Hayward Maintenance Complex and the ongoing Earthquake Safety Program. Revenue
transit vehicle expenses are associated with the project to procure and replace the existing rail cars.

The District has entered into contracts for the construction of various facilities and equipment totaling
approximately $2,146,016,000 at June 30, 2014 and $1,694,140,000 at June 30, 2013.
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Long-Term Debt

The outstanding balance of total long-term debt (including current portion but excluding unamortized
balance of bond premium/discounts) as of June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are as follows (dollar amounts in
thousands): .

2014 2013 2012

Bonds payable from and collateralized by

a pledge of sales tax revenues $ 718,895 $ 742355 $ 626,455
Construction loans payable from the

net operating surplus of the SFO Extension - 88,500 88,500
Construction loan for temporary cash flow

requirements of the SFO Extension - 5,000 21,000
Lease/leaseback obligation, including accumulated

accretion, for rail traffic control equipment - - - 61,024
Bonds payable from the premium fare

imposed on the passengers who board

on or depart from the San Francisco

International Airport Station - - 52,570
General obligation bonds 648,275 410,690 412,540

Total long-term debt $ 1,367,170 $ 1,246,545 $ 1,262,089

Total long-term debt in fiscal year 2014 increased by $120,625,000 from a combination of the following
transactions: (1) a decrease of $23,460,000 due to schedule principal payments on Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds; (2) a decrease of $2,415,000 for scheduled principal payments on the General Obligation Bonds;
(3) adecrease of $5,000,000 for the final payment of construction loan for temporary cash flow from MTC;
(4) a decrease of $88,500,000 from extinguishment of construction loans from SamTrans ($72,000,000)
and MTC (§16,500,000) due to the termination of the 1999 Memorandum of Understanding between the
District, SamTrans and MTC; and offset by (5) increase of $240,000,000 from the issuance of new General
Obligation Bonds in fiscal year 2014.

Total long-term debt in fiscal year 2013 decreased by $15,544,000 from a combination of the following
transactions: (1) a net increase of $115,900,000 in outstanding sales tax revenue bonds after accounting for
the issuance of 2012 Series A and 2012 Series B Bonds for $241,560,000 in October 2012 and payment,
including defeasance, which totaled $125,660,000 in fiscal year 2013; offset by (2) a decrease of
$52,570,000 from retirement of all outstanding 2002 SFO Extension Premium Fare Bonds; (3) a net
decrease of $61,024,000 from the close out of all outstanding sublease obligations with Wells Fargo Bank
and CIBC Corporation due to the early termination of the leases; (4) a decrease of $17,850,000 due to
scheduled principal payments for the construction loan ($16,000,000) and general obligation bonds
($1,850,000).
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets

On June 12, 2014, The District’s Board of Directors adopted a balanced operating budget of $854,527,397
and a capital budget of $711,530,567 for the fiscal year 2015.

The fiscal year 2015 budget for operating sources is $56,947,019 higher than the fiscal year 2014 budget,
with strong ridership and sales tax growth the main factors. Through the first five months of the year total
system ridership has exceeded the budget by over 5%. In order to meet future increase in ridership and its
impact on system capacity, the District needs to invest on its aging rail vehicle fleet and infrastructure.

The current operating budget includes a total of $45,000,000 allocation to the Rail Car Sinking Fund as part
of BART’s $298,000,000 initial commitment for its share of the phase I acquisition of 410 rail cars. In
addition, BART’s Board of Directors also dedicated an estimated $19 million in additional revenue
generated from the productivity-adjusted inflation-based fare increase program towards its top three priority
capital projects — Rail Car Replacement Program, Hayward Maintenance Center and Automated Train
Control. The fiscal year 2015 operating budget also included $42,978,040 for other state of good repair
needs, such as the continuing program to replace floors in the current fleet, a lighting retrofit project and
the “baseline” State of Good Repair allocation that provides for local match on capital grants. Despite
these investments commitment, the District needs to aggressively seek other funding sources to increase its
existing capital resources in order to sustain its current state of reliability. The BART Asset Management
Plan Program has identified a wide variety of system infrastructure funding needs.

The largest program areas for capital expenditure next year will be system expansion and system renovation
which include the rail car replacement program, station modernization, replacement of train control system,
traction power, trackway renovation and other capital projects. System expansion projects include the
eBART, Warm Springs, the Silicon Valley extension programs, and construction of the Hayward
Maintenance Complex. Work will also continue on essential security upgrades, life safety improvements,
and ADA/system accessibility improvements.

BART opened a new extension to the Oakland International Airport this year, with regular passenger
service beginning November 22, 2014. The service is provided through a fast, frequent people mover
connection from the BART system to the airport.

Contacting the District’s Financial Management

The District’s financial report is designed to provide the District’s Board of Directors, management,
investors, creditors, legislative and oversight agencies, citizens and customers with an overview of the
District’s finances and to demonstrate its accountability for funds received. For additional information
about this report, please contact Scott Schroeder, Controller-Treasurer, at 300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box
12688, Oakland, California 94604.

12





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Enterprise Fund
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2014 and 2013
(dollar amounts in thoilsands)

Assets
Cuirent assets
Unrestricted assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Government receivables
Receivables and other assets
Materials and supplies

Total unrestricted current assets

Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments '

Total restricted current assets
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Unrestricted assets
Investments
Receivables and other assets
Restricted assets
Investments
Receivables and other assets

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Losses on refundings of debt
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Self-insurance liabilities
Unearned revenue
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Self-insurance liabilities, net of current portion
Unearned revenue

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service and other liabilities
Unrestricted

Total net position

2013
2014 (Restated)
293,447 123,682
624 569
248,837 392,210
18,044 28,649
28,129 26,566
589,081 571,676
466,272 429,578
59,710 100,284
525,982 529,862
1,115,063 1,101,538
3,110,048 2,793,967
3,783,984 3,725,504
22,704 22,620
267 334
162,277 14,202
13,265 11,866
7,092,545 6,568,493
8,207,608 7,670,031
19,434 20,490
187,731 232,892
37,575 30,875
18,067 15,141
43,680 73,167
287,053 352,075
80,807 72,170
1,416,356 1,275,319
34,093 34,007
199,230 189,352
1,730,486 1,570,848
2,017,539 1,922.923
5,689,954 5,290,181
237,694 252,613
281,855 224 804
6,209,503 $ 5,767,598

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Enterprise Fund
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
(dollar amounts in thousands)

2013
2014 (Restated)
Operating revenues
Fares $ 416,573 406,890
Other 46,587 36,384
Total operating revenues 463,160 443 274
Operating expenses
Transportation 174,958 177,699
Maintenance 226,227 228,766
Police services 56,308 52,303
Construction and engineering 19,539 19,021
General and administrative 147,031 143,285
Depreciation 147,652 145,474
Total operating expenses 771,715 766,548
Less - capitalized costs (52,763) (54,063)
Net operating expenses 718,952 712,485
Operating loss (255,792) (269,211)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Transactions and use tax - sales tax 221,149 208,561
Property tax 72,251 53,181
Operating financial assistance 96,312 47,728
Contribution for BART car replacement funding exchange program (72,000) (23,980)
Investment income 37 2,328
Interest expense (34,590) (37,392)
Other expense, net (652) (3,980)
Total nonoperating revenues, net 282,507 246,446
Change in net position before capital contributions and special item 26,715 (22,765)
Capital contributions 326,690 419,852
Special item - settlement of loans 88,500 -
Change in net position 441,905 397,087
Net position, beginning of year, as previously reported 5,390,042
Restatement for adoption of GASB 65 (19,531)
Net position, beginning of the year, as restated 5,767,598 5,370,511
Net position, end of year $ 6,209,503 5,767,598

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Enterprise Fund
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers

Payments to employees

Other operating cash receipts

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Transactions and use tax (sales tax) received
Property tax received

Financial assistance received

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Transactions and use tax (sales tax) received

Property tax received

Capital grants received

Expenditures for facilities, property and equipment
Principal paid on long-term debt

Payments of long-term debt issuance and service costs
Proceeds from Issuance of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
Proceeds from Issuance of General Obligation Bonds
Interest paid on long-term debt

Principal payments received from notes receivable
Contribution for BART car replacement funding exchange program
Cash paid on early termination of lease/leaseback obligation
Deposit refonded

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments
Purchase of investments

Investment income

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to

the Statements of Net Position
Current, unrestricted assets - cash and cash equivalents
Current, restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents

2014 2013
440423 $ 394,833
(185,662) (166,782)
(399,628) (390,717)
45703 28,834
(99,164) (133,832)
168,042 154,492
32,301 31,586
97,043 49,889
297,386 235,967
53,107 54,069
38,983 20,767
429,761 484,024
(542.257) (591,916)
(30,875) (196,080)

(652) (1,054)
- 264,999
270,840 -
(27,858) (35,883)
- 1,340
(75,533) (46,387)
- (25,408)
(126) (302)
115,390 (71,831)
99,999 30,087
(208,704) (100,199)
1,552 1,129
(107,153) (68,983)
206,459 (38,681)
553260 591,941
759,719 $ 553,260
293,447 $ 123,682
466,272 429,578
759719 $ 553,260

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

16





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Enterprise Fund
Statements of Cash Flows, continued
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
(doliar amounts in thousands)

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used in operating activities
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of deferred settlement costs
Net effect of changes in
Receivables and other assets
Materials and supplies
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Self-insurance liabilities
Unearned revenue

Net cash used in operating activities

Noncash transactions

Capital assets acquired with a liability at year-end
Lease/leaseback obligation additions

Donated land to the State of California

Reduction in interest receivable related to lease/leaseback obligation
Reduction in prepaid sublease and lease/leaseback obligation
Decrease in fair value of investments

Amortization of long-term debt premium, discount and issue costs
Addition of loss on early debt retirement

Amortization of loss on early debt retirement

Amortization of gain on lease/leaseback transaction

Amortization of ground lease

Special item - settlement of loans

2014 2013
(255,792) (269,211)
. 147,652 145,474
213 147
33,711 (18,020)
(1,563) 266
(20,356) (5,182)
3,012 11,756
(6,041) 938
(99,164) (133,832)
50,773 70,527
- 1,960
- (858)
- 26,602
- 24,565
1,515 2,382
(3,728) (3,614)
- (9,160)
1,056 998
- 2,189
534 534
88,500 N

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Retiree Health Benefit Trust
Statements of Trust Net Position
June 30,2014 and 2013
(dollar amounts in thousands)

2014 2013
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,101 §$ 910
Receivables and other assets 797 464
Pending trades receivable 7,650 16,176
Investments
Domestic common stocks 75,645 59,767
U.S. Treasury obligations 40,855 24,201
Money market mutual funds 5,502 15,542
Mutual funds - equity 53,772 42,782
Corporate obligations 19,630 24,050
Foreign stocks 1,946 2,379
Foreign obligations 710 976
Total investments - 198,060 169,697
Total assets 207,608 187,247
Liabilities ’
Accounts payable 141 94
Pending trades payable 5,286 21,514
Total liabilities 5,427 21,608
Net position held in trust for retiree health benefits $ 202,181 § 165,639

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Retiree Health Benefit Trust
Statements of Changes in Trust Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
(dollar amounts in thousands)

2014 2013
Additions
Employer contributions
Cash contributions b 27,031 10,393
Pay-as-you-go contributions - 15,463
Total employer contributions 27,031 25,856
Investment income (expense)
Interest income 4,015 3,600
Realized gain 11,026 4,655
Net appreciation in fair value of investments 11,322 8,386
Investment expense (405) (287)
Net investment income 25,958 16,354
Total additions 52,989 42210
Deductions
Pay-as-you-go benefit payments 16,337 15,463
Legal fees 9 1
Audit fees 18 18
Insurance expense 23 22
Administrative fees 60 -
Total deductions 16,447 15,504
Increase in trust net position 36,542 26,706
Net position held in trust for retiree health benefits
Beginning of year 165,639 138,933
End of year $ 202,181 165,639

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Reporting Entity

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (the District) is apublic agency created by the legislature
of the State of California in 1957 and regulated by the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District Act,
as amended, and subject to transit district law as codified in the California Public Utilities Code. The
disbursement of funds received by the District is controlled by statutes and by provisions of various grant
contracts entered into with federal, state and local agencies.

Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The basic financial statements provide information about the District’s Enterprise Fund and the Retiree
Health Benefit Trust Fund (the Trust). Separate statements for each fund category — proprietary and
fiduciary — are presented. The basic financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Revenues from
property taxes are recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied; revenue from sales taxes are
recognized in the fiscal year when the underlying exchange takes place; revenue from grants is recognized
in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied; and revenue from investments is
recognized when earned.

The Enterprise Fund, a proprietary fund, distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. The District’s operating revenues are generated directly from its transit operations and consist
principally of passenger fares. Operating expenses for the transit operations include all costs related to
providing transit services. These costs include labor, fringe benefits, materials, supplies, services, utilities,
leases and rentals, and depreciation on capital assets. All other revenues and expenses not meeting these
definitions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The Trust, a fiduciary fund, is used to account for assets held by the District as a trustee to pay retiree health
care premiums. The assets of the Trust cannot be used to support the District’s programs.

Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid investments with a
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. ‘

Investmemts

The District records investment transactions on the trade date. Investments in nonparticipating interest-
earning investment contracts (nonnegotiable certificates of deposits and guaranteed investment contracts)
are reported at cost and all other investments are at fair value. Fair value is defined as the amount that the
District could reasonably expect to receive for an investment in a current sale between a willing buyer and
a willing seller and for the District’s investments is generally measured by quoted market prices. As a
matter of policy, the District usually holds investments until their maturity.

Restricted Assets

Certain assets are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position because their use is subject
to externally imposed stipulations, either by certain bond covenants, laws or regulations or provisions of
debt agreements.
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SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
* June 30, 2014 and 2013

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capital Grants/Contributions

The District receives grants from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and other agencies of the U.S.
Department of Transportation, the State of California, and local transportation funds for the acquisition of
transit-related equipment and improvements. Capital grants receivables represent amounts expected from
governmental agencies to reimburse the District for costs incurred for capital projects (Notes 8 and 9) and
are reported as Government receivables on the Statement of Net Position.

Materials and Supplies
Materials and supplies consist primarily of replacement parts for the system and rail vehicles, which are
stated at cost using the average-cost method. Materials and supplies are expensed as consumed.

Bond Discounts, Premiums and Losses on Refundings ,

The bond discounts, premiums and losses on refundings, are deferred and amortized over the term of the
bonds as a component of interest expense. The unamortized portion of these items, except the losses on
refundings, which are reported as deferred outflows of resources, are presented as a reduction of the face
amount of bonds payable.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost or at fair value of donated assets, and depreciated using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 80 years. The District’s policy is to
capitalize acquisitions of capital assets with a cost of $5,000 or more and a useful life of more than one
year, and all costs related to capital projects, regardless of amounts. Upon disposition, costs and
accumulated depreciation/amortization are removed from the accounts and resulting gains or losses are
included in operations.

The District capitalizes, as intangible capital assets, easements and right-of-ways and internally generated
intangibles such as computer software. Easements and right-of-ways are not amortized as they have
indefinite useful lives while computer software is amortized over a period of 20 years.

Major improvements and betterments to existing facilities and equipment are capitalized. Costs for
maintenance and repairs that do not extend the useful life of the applicable assets are charged to expense as
incurred. The District capitalizes certain interest income and expense related to tax-free borrowings until
the assets are ready for their intended use. The amount capitalized is the difference between the interest
revenue and interest expense associated with the applicable tax-free borrowings. Amounts capitalized were
net interest expense of $22,350,000 in fiscal year 2014 and $17,900,000 in fiscal year 2013.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue consists of (1) prepayments of revenues related to license fees paid by
telecommunication companies for the use of the District’s right of way for wireless accessibility to their
customers; (2) estimated passenger tickets sold but unused; (3) advances received from grant agreements;
and (4) prepayments of ground lease revenues (Note 15).
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SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are reported and accrued as a liability in the period incurred. Compensated absences
have a total balance of $59,388,000 as of June 30, 2014 and $56,865,000 as of June 30,2013 and are shown
in the statements of net position in accounts payable and other liabilities (see Note 5) as follows (dollar
amounts in thousands):

2014 2013
Current liabilities $ 19,493 $ 20,043
Noncurrent liabilities 39,895 36,822
Total $ 59,388 $ 56,865

Pollution Remediation )

The recognition of pollution remediation obligations (including contamination) address the current or
potential detrimental effects of existing pollution by estimating costs associated with participating in
pollution remediation activities, such as site assessments and cleanups. There are no known material
remediation obligations that the District is currently or potentially involved in.

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets include capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding
principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net
position is restricted when constraints are imposed by third parties or by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation and include amounts restricted for debt service and other liabilities. AJ]
other net position is unrestricted. Generally, the District’s policy is to spend restricted resources first when
an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

Transactions and Use Tax (Sales Tax) Revenues

The State of California legislation authorizes the District to impose a 0.5% transaction and use tax within
District boundaries, which is collected and administered by the State Board of Equalization. Of the amounts
available for distribution, 75% is paid directly to the District for the purpose of paying operating expenses,
except for the portion that is paid directly to trustees to cover principal and interest payments of maturing
sales tax revenue bonds. The remaining 25% is allocated by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission
(MTC) to the District, the City and County of San Francisco, and the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District
for transit services. The District records the total transactions and use taxes earned (including amounts paid
to the trustees) as nonoperating revenue.

Property Taxes, Collection and Maximum Rates

The State of California Constitution Article XIII.A provides that the general purpose maximum property
tax rate on any given property may not exceed 1% of its assessed value unless an additional amount for
general obligation debt has been approved by voters. Assessed value is calculated at 100% of market value
as defined by Article XIII.A and may be adjusted by no more than 2% per year, unless the property is sold
or transferred. The State Legislature has determined the method of distribution of receipts from a 1% tax
levy among the counties, cities, school districts and other districts, such as the District.
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SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The District receives an allocation of property tax revenues for transit operations. Additionally, beginning
in fiscal year 2006, the District received property tax allocations for the debt service payments on the 2005,
2007 and 2013 General Obligation Bonds. As required by the law of the State of California, the District
utilizes the services of each of the three BART Counties of Alameda, Contra Costa and San Francisco for
the assessment and collection of taxes for District purposes. District taxes are collected at the same time
and on the same tax rolls as county, school district and other special district taxes. Property taxes are
recorded as revenue in the fiscal year of levy. Assessed values are determined annually by the Assessor’s
Offices of City and County of San Francisco, County of Alameda and County of Contra Costa on January
1, and become a lien on the real properties at January 1. The levy date for secured and unsecured properties
is July 1 of each year. Secured taxes are due November I and February 1 and are delinquent if not paid by
December 10 and April 10, respectively. Unsecured property tax is due on July 1 and becomes delinquent
after August 31.

Operating Financial Assistance
Financial assistance grants for operations from federal, state and local agencies are reported as nonoperating
revenue in the period in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied (Notes 8 and 9).

Collective Bargaining
Approximately 87% of the District’s employees are subject to collective bargaining. The current bargaining
units consist of the following;:

o  American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), Local 3993
o  Amalgamated Transit Union (ATU), Local 1555

e Service Employees International Union (SEIU), Local 1021

o BART Police Officers Association (BPOA)

e BART Police Managers Association (BPMA)

Capitalized Costs

The District initially charges employee salaries, wages and benefits to operating expenses by functional
expense category. Labor costs included in those amounts that are associated with capital projects are
subsequently adjusted to be included in the cost of the related capital asset. This adjustment is reflected in
the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as a reduction of operating expenses. The
amounts of $52,763,000 and $54,063,000 were capitalized during the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted

In 2014, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities (GASB 65). This GASB statement recognized, as outflow of resources or inflow of resources,
certain items that were previously reported as assets or liabilities. As a result, the District restated the
beginning net position of as of July 1, 2012 in the amount of $19,531,000 to write off unamortized bond
issue costs that were previously reported as an asset as well as those that were included in the unamortized
losses on refundings previously reported as a contra liability. The remaining unamortized losses on
refundings of $20,490,000 were reclassified from a contra liability to deferred outflows of resources.
Lastly, the District also restated fiscal year 2013 interest expense by $712,000 and construction in progress
in the amount of $422,000 due to the removal of previously amortized bond issuance costs. ‘

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections — 2012 - An Amendment of GASB
Statements No. 10 and No. 62. The portion of the statement, which may have applicability to the District,
enhances -the usefulness of financial reports by resolving conflicting accounting and financial reporting
guidance that could diminish the consistency of financial reporting. This statement modifies the specific
guidance on accounting for (1) operating lease payments that vary from a straight-line basis, (2) the
difference between the initial investment (purchase price) and the principal amount of purchased loan or
group of loans, and (3) servicing fees related to mortgage loans that are sold when the stated service fee
rate differs significantly from a current (normal) servicing fee rate. These changes would eliminate any
uncertainty regarding the application of Statement No. 13, Accounting for Operating Leases with Scheduled
Rent Increases, and result in guidance that is consistent with the requirements in Statement No. 48, Sa/es
and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenuyes,
respectively. Application of this statement is effective for the District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.
As of July 1, 2012, the District adopted this statement, which did not have a significant impact to its
financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements That Have Not Been Adopted
The District is currently analyzing its accounting practices to determine the potential impact on the financial
statements for the following GASB statements:

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — An
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. The significant changes in this statement address (1) the
measurement and reporting of pension obligations associated with defined benefit pension plans and (2) the
calculations of pension expense. GASB 68 also covers:

©  Reporting of deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources;

©  Methods and assumptions of pension calculations, including how to calculate the discount rate
to be used and how to attribute the pension liability to various periods;

©  Note disclosure and required supplementary information; and

o Defined contribution pension plan reporting,

Application of this statement is effective for the District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.
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SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statememnts
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In January 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Goverriment
Operations. This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related to government
combinations and disposals of government operations. The requirements of this statement are effective for
government combinations and disposals of government operations occurring in financial reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2013, and should be applied on a prospective basis. Earlier application is
encouraged. Application of this statement is effective for the District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

In April 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Financial Guarantees. This Statement requires a state or local government guarantor that offers a
nonexchange financial guarantee to another organization or government to recognize a liability in its
financial statements when it is more likely than not that the guarantor will be required to make a payment
to the obligation holders under the agreement. A nonexchange financial guarantee is a credit enhancement
or assurance offered by a guarantor without receiving equal or approximately equal value in exchange. The
provisions of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2013. Application
of this statement is effective for the District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

In November 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date — An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. The objective of this
statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition provisions of GASB 68. The issue
relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or
nonemployer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the
government’s beginning net pension liability. The provisions of this statement are required to be applied
simultaneously with the provisions of GASB 68.
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SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

A.  Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments of the Enterprise Fund

Cash, cash equivalents and investments are reported in the Enterprise Fund as follows (dollar amounts in

thousands):
2014 2013
Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

Current assets ,

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 293,447 § 466,272 $ 759,719 § 123,682 § 429,578 § 553,260

Investments 624 59,710 60,334 569 100,284 100,853
Noncurrent assets

Investments 22,704 162,277 184,981 22,620 14,202 36,822

Total $ 316775 $§ 688,259 $ 1,005,034 $ 146871 $ 544,064 § 690,935

Investment Policy

The California Public Utilities Code, Section 29100, and the California Government Code (CGC), Section
53601, provide the basis for the District’s investment policy. To meet the objectives of the investment
policy — (1) preservation of capital, (2) liquidity, and (3) yield — the investment policy, approved by the
Board of Directors, specifically identifies the types of permitted investments, as well as any maturity limits
and other restrictions. The following table presents the authorized investment, requirements, and
restrictions per the CGC and the District’s investment policy:

Investment Type Maximum Maximum % Maximum % with Minimum
Maturity (1) of Portfolio One Issuer Rating (2)
CGC District CGC District CGC Dis trict CGC District
U.S. Treasury Obligations (bills, bonds, or notes) 5 years 5 years None None None None None None
U.S. Agencies 5 years 5 years None None None None None None
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days 180 days 40% 40% 30% 30% None None
Commercial Paper (3) 270 days 270 days 25% 25% 10% 10% Pl P1
Negotiable Certificates 5 years 5 years 30% 30% None None None None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year 1 year None None None None None None
Reverse Repurchase A greements 92 days 90 days 20% 20% None None None Nomne
Local Agency Investment Fund N/A N/A None ) None None None None
Non-Negotiable Time Deposits 5 years 5 years 30% 30% None None None None
Medium Term Notes/Bonds (3) 5 years 5 years 30% 30% None None A A
Municipal Securities of California Local A gencies 5 years 5 years None None None None None None
Mutual Funds N/A N/A 20% 4) 10% 10% AAA AAA
Notes, Bonds, or Other Obligations 5 years 5 years None None None None None None
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 5 years 20% 20% None None AAA AAA
Financial Futures (3) N/A N/A None None None None None None

Footnotes
(1) In the absence of a specified maximum, the maximum is 5 years.
(2) Minium credit rating categories include modifications (+/-).

(3) District will not invest in these investment types unless specifically authorized by the Board.

(4) District may invest in an amount not to exceed $25,000,000.

27





SAN FRAN CISC@) BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

The District must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with fiscal agents under the terms of
certain debt issues. These funds are unexpended bond proceeds and funds set aside for debt service. The
table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents. The
table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements:

Maximum
Maximum Minimum Credit Percentage of Maximum Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality Portfolio In One Issuer

Sccurities o{the U.S. Government and its

agencies None None None None
Housing Authority Bonds or project

notes issued by public agencies or

municipalities fully sccured by the U.S. None None None None

Obligations of any slate, territory, or
commonwealth of the U.S. or any agency

or political subdivisions thercof None Aal/AA+ None None
Collateralized time deposits None A-1 None None
Commercial paper Nonec Aaa/AAA None None
Repurchase agreements None None None None
Money market mutual funds None None None None
Investment agreements None Aal/AA+ None None

Other invesiments approved by the
Board that will not adversely affect

ratings on bonds None None None None
Corporate bonds, notes, and debentures None Aal/AA+ None None
Local Agency Investment Fund None None None None
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SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

- Jume 30, 2014 and 2013

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
One of the District’s primary objectives is to provide sufficient liquidity to meet its cash outflow needs,
however, the District does not have any policies specifically addressing interest rate risk, except as outlined
in the CGC. A summary of investments by type of investments and by segmented time distribution as of
June 30, 2014 and 2013 is as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

Money market mutual funds*
U.S. government agencies
Commercial paper
Repurchase agreements

-Total investments

Deposits with banks
Certificate of Deposit
Imprest funds

Total cash and investments

Money market mutual funds*
Repurchase agreements
U.S. Treasury bills

Total investments

Deposits with banks
Certificates of deposit
Imprest funds

Total cash and investments

* weighted-average maturity
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2014 Investment Maturities (in Years)
Less  Than
Fair Value 1 1-5 6-10
b 146,302 $§ 146302 § - $ -
188,057 39,999 148,058 -
59,579 59,579 - -
36,822 - 36,822 -
430,760 § 245880 § 184,880 § -
569,642
857
3,775
S 1005034
2013 Investment Maturities (in Years)
Less Than
Fair Value 1 1-5 6-10
$ 137867 $ 137,867 $ - $ -
36,822 - 36,822
99,999 99,999 - -
274,688 $§ 237,866 § 36,822 $
412,854
854
2,539
$ 690,935





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
Jumne 30, 2014 and 2013

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Credit Risk

The District’s credit rating risk is governed by Section 53601 of the CGC which, among others, limits
investments in money market mutual funds to those funds with the highest evaluations granted by the rating
agencies, which is Aaam. The District has investments in U.S. Treasury and government agencies, bank
repurchase agreements (underlying of U.S. Treasury securities and others), and in money market mutual
funds. There are no investment limits on the securities of U.S. Treasury or certain U.S. government
agencies that are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government. The following is a
summary of the credit quality distribution for securities with credit exposure as rated by Standard & Poor’s,
Fitch Ratings and/or Moody’s as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 (dollar amounts in thousands):

2014 Credit Ratings
Fair Value AAA AA A Not Rated

Money market mutual funds $ 146,302 §$ 138,123 § - $ 8179 § -
U.S. Government agencies 188,057 148,058 - 39,999 -
Commercial paper 59,579 - - 59,579 -
Repurchase agreements 36,822 - - 36,822 -

Total investments 430,760  $ 286,181 § - $ 144,579 $ -
Deposits with banks 569,642
Certificate of deposit 857
Imprest funds 3,775

Total cash and investments $ 1,005,034

2013 Credit Ratings
Fair Value AAA AA A Not Rated -

Money market mutual funds $ 137,867 § 125546 § - $ 12321 § -
Repurchase agreements 36,822 - - 36,822 -
U.S. Treasury bills 99,999 - 99,999 - - -

Total investments 274688 § 225545 % - $ 49,143 § -
Deposits with banks 412,854
Certificates of deposit 854
Imprest funds 2,539

Total cash and investments $ 690,935

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District does not have a policy to limit investments in any one issuer to no more than 5% of the total
portfolio. However, the CGC Section 53601.7 requires that investments in one issuer do not exceed 5% of
the entity’s total portfolio at the time of purchase, except obligations of the United States government,
United States government agencies, and United States government-sponsored enterprises and no more than
10% of the entity’s total portfolio may be invested in any one mutual fund at the time of purchase. At June
30, 2014 and 2013, the investments with Bayerische Landesbank Investment Repurchase Agreement
amounted to $36,822,000, which exceeded 5% of the District’s total investment portfolio at 8.5% and
13.4% respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may
not be returned. The CGC Section 53652 requires California banks and savings and loan associations to
secure governmental deposits by pledging government securities as collateral. The market value of pledged
securities must equal at least 110% of the District’s deposits. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure governmental deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of
150% of the District’s total deposits. Such collateral is considered to be held in the District’s name.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments

For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the District
may not be able to recover the value of its investments. The exposure to the District is limited as the
District’s investments are held in the District’s name by a third-party safe-keeping custodian that is separate
from the counterparty or in the custody of a trust department, as required by bond covenants.

B. Imvestments of the Retiree Health Benefit Trust

Investment Policy

The investment objective of the Trust is to achieve consistent long-term growth for the Trust and to
maximize income consistent with the preservation of capital for the sole and exclusive purpose of providing
benefits to participants and their beneficiaries and defraying reasonable expenses of administering the Trust.
The District’s Board of Directors establishes the general investment policy and guidelines for the Trust.
Allowable investments under the Trust investment guidelines include:

o Cash equivalents such as U.S. Treasury bills, money market trusts, short-term interest fund (STIF)
trusts, commercial paper rated A1/P1, banker’s acceptances, certificates of deposits and repurchase
agreements;

e Fixed income securities, which include U.S. agency and corporation bonds (including Yankees)
and preferred stock and Rule 144A issues, and mortgage or asset-backed securities; and

e Equity securities, including U.S. traded common, preferred stocks and convertible stocks and
bonds, including American Depository Receipts.

Interest rate risk
The Trust’s investment policies mitigate exposure to changes in interest rates by requiring that the assets
of the Trust be invested in accordance with the following asset allocation guidelines:

Asset Class Minimum Maximum Preferred
Equity securities 45% 70% 60%
Fixed income securities 25% 45% 35%
Cash equivalents 3% 10% 5%

Fixed income securities have the following maturity restrictions: 1) maximum maturity for any single
security is 40 years and 2) the weighted average portfolio maturity may not exceed 25 years.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

A summary of investments by type of investments and by segmented time distribution as of June 30, 2014
and 2013 is as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

2014 Investment Maturities (in Years)
Less More
Fair Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
U.S. Treasury obligations $ 40,855 $ 24690 $ 9,657 § 4268 § 2240
Money market mutual funds* 5,502 5,502 - - -
Corporate obligations 19,630 978 12,867 1,796 3,989
Foreign obligations 710 218 492 - -
Investments subject to interest rate risk 66,697 § 31388 § 23016 § 6,004 $ 6,229
Domestic common stocks 75,645
Mutual funds- equity 53,772
Foreign stocks 1,946
Total investments $ 198,060
2013 Investment Maturities (in Years)
Less More
A Fair Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
U.S. Treasury obligations $ 24201 § 3% 6981 § 6,08 $ 11,131
Money market mutual funds* 15,542 15,542 - - -
Corporate obligations 24,050 784 14,822 3,815 4,629
Foreign obligations 976 - 804 172 -
Investments subject to interest rate risk 64,769 $ 16,329 $§ 22,607 § 10,073 § 15,760
Domestic common stocks 59,767
Mutual funds- equity 42,782
Foreign stocks » 2,379
Total investments $ 169,697

* weighted»average maturity
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Credit Risk

The Trust’s credit risk policy is defined in its Statement of Investment Policy approved by the District’s
Board of Directors. The policy states that the Board recognizes that some risk is necessary to produce long-
term investment results that are sufficient to meet the Trust’s objectives and that the Trust’s investment
managers are expected to make reasonable efforts to control risk. The investment policy requires that all
of the Trust’s assets be invested in liquid securities, defined as securities that can be transacted quickly and
efficiently for the Trust, with minimal impact on market prices. The investment policy also demands that
no single investment shall exceed five percent of the total Trust assets, at market value, except obligations
of the U.S. Government, short-term money market funds, index funds and other diversified commingled
accounts; and for actively managed equity accounts, where, for issues that comprise more than 4% of the
account’s stated benchmark, the limit shall be 125% of the weight of the common stock benchmark . The
following is a summary of the credit quality distribution for securities with credit exposure as rated by
Standard & Poor’s and/or Moody’s as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 (dollar amounts in thousands):

2014 Credit Ratings
Fair
Value AAA AA A BBB BB Not Rated

U.S. Treasury obligations $ 40,855 § - $ 40855 § - - $ - 3 -
Money market mutual funds 5,502 5,502 - - - - -
Corporate obligations 19,630 3,253 2,214 11,196 2,967 - -
Foreign obligations 710 - - 166 544 - -

Investments subject to credit risk 66,697 § 8755 §43,069 $11362 $ 3511 § - $ -
Domestic common stocks 75,645
Mutual funds - equity 53,772
Foreign stocks - 1,946

Total investments $ 198,060

2013 Credit Ratings
Fair
Value AAA AA A BBB BB Not Rated

U.S. Treasury obligations $ 24201 § - $242010 § - $ - $ - $ -
Money market mutual funds 15,542 15,542 - - - - -
Corporate obligations 24,050 6,299 2,345 12,559 1,567 1,280 -
Foreign obligations 976 - 418 167 391 - -

Investments subject to credit risk 64,769 § 21,841 $ 26964 $12726 § 1958 $ 1,280 §
Domestic common stocks 59,767
Mutual funds - equity 42,782
Foreign stocks 2,379

Total investments $ 169,697
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Concentration of Credit Risk
The Trust’s investment policies mitigate exposure to concentration of credit risk by diversifying the
portfolio and limiting investments in any one issuer to no more than 5% of the total portfolio.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the Trust
may not be able to recover the value of its investments. The exposure to the Trust is limited as the Trust’s
investments are in the custody of a third-party custodian that is separate from the counterparty.

Receivables and Other Assets

The District reports the following aggregated accounts as receivables and other assets in the statements of
net position as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 (dollar amounts in thousands):

2013
2014 (Restated)
Interest receivable - other investments b 2 3 2
Deferred charges 334 412
Deposit for power supply 10,960 10,774
Off-site ticket vendor receivable 3,318 3,315
Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority receivable (Note 15) 2,155 8,503
Property tax receivable 3,350 2,383
Prepaid expenses 3,986 9,638
Imprest deposits for self-insurance liabilities 1,192 1,063
Other 6,678 5,081
Allowance for doubtful accounts (399) (322)
Total receivables and other assets $ 31,576 § 40,849
Current, unrestricted portion $ 18,044 § 28,649
Noncurrent, unrestricted portion 267 334
Noncurrent, restricted portion 13,265 11,866
Total receivables and other assets, as presented in
the basic financial statements $ 31,576 § 40,849
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Capital Assets

Changes to capital assets during the year ended June 30, 2014 were as follows (dollar amounts in
thousands):
Additions  Retirements

Lives 2013 and and
(Years) (Restated) Transfers Transfers 2014
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land N/A $ 549685 § 9,537 ¢ - $ 559,222
Construction in progress N/A 2,244,282 522,503 (215,959) 2,550,826
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 2,793,967 532,040 (215,959) 3,110,048
Capital assets, being depreciated
Tangible Asset
Stations, track, structures and improvements 80 4,081,399 125,150 - 4,206,549
Buildings 80 10,732 - - 10,732
System-wide operation and control 20 598,338 9,789 3) 608,124
Revenue transit vehicles 30 1,103,557 - - 1,103,557
Service and miscellancous equipment 3-20 264,100 30,206 (2,332) 291,974
Capitalized construction and start-up costs 30 98,305 - - 98,305
Repairable property items 30 106,234 40,823 (492) 146,565
Intangible Asset
Information systems 20 41,292 454 - 41,746
Total capital assets, being depreciated 6,303,957 206,422 (2,827) 6,507,552
Less accumulated depreciation (2,578,453) (147,652) 2,537 (2,723,568)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 3,725,504 58,770 (290) 3,783,984
Total capital assets, net $ 6519471 $ 590,810 $ (216,249) $ 6,894,032
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Changes to capital assets during the year ended June 30, 2013 were as follows (dollar amounts in
thousands): .

Additions
and Retirements
Lives Transfers and 2013
(Years) 2012 (Restated) Transfers (Restated)

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land N/A $ 544874 % 5669 § (858) $ 549,685
Construction in progress N/A 1,834,097 588,301 (178,116) 2244282

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 2,378,971 593,970 (178,974) 2,793,967
Capital assets, being depreciated
Tangible Asset ‘
Stations, track, structures and improvements 80 4,008,657 72,742 - 4,081,399
Buildings 80 10,732 - - 10,732
System-wide operation and control 20 588,136 10,202 - 598,338
Revenue transit vehicles 30 1,103,557 - - 1,103,557
Service and miscellaneous equipment 3-20 219215 45,024 (139) 264,100
Capitalized construction and start-up costs 30 98,305 - - 98,305
Repairable property items 30 61,334 44,900 - 106,234
Intangible Asset
Information systems 20 41,292 - - 41,292

Total capital assets, being depreciated 6,131,228 172,868 (139) 6,303,957
Less accumulated depreciation (2,432,890) (145,702) 139 (2,578,453)

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 3,698,338 27,166 - 3,725,504

Total capital assets, net $ 6,077,309 $ 621,136 $ (178,974) $ 6,519,471

After the completion of the San Francisco International Airport Extension in 2004, which added 38 miles
of track and 10 new stations to the system, the District embarked on three expansion projects, which include
the East Contra Costa BART Extension (eéBART) in Contra Costa County, the Oakland Airport Connector
(OAC) in Alameda County and the Warm Springs Extension (WSX) also in Alameda County. The OAC
Project was completed and revenue operations began on November 22, 2014. Expected completion date
for the WSX Extension is in December 2015 and the eBART Extension in calendar year 2018.

The District has entered into contracts for the construction of various facilities and equipment totaling
approximately $2,146,016,000 at June 30, 2014, and $1,694,140,000 in 2013.
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Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities

The District reports the following aggregated payables as accounts payable and other liabilities in the
statements of net position as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Payable to vendors and contractors

Employee salaries and benefits

Accrued compensated absences

Net OPEB obligation

Accrued interest payable
Liabilities at the end of year
Less noncurrent portion

Net current portion

Long-Term Debt

2014 2013

$ 94912 § 144,037
25,524 21,664
59,388 56,865
59,378 57,22
29,336 25274
268,538 305,062
(80,807) (72,170)

$ 187,731 § 232892

Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 is summarized as follows (dollar amounts in

thousands):

2005 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds
2006 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

2006 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds
2010 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds
2012 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds
2012 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
Construction Loans

2005 General Obligation Bonds

2007 General Obligation Bonds

2013 General Obligation Bonds

Add (less):
Original issue premiums and discounts, net

Long-term debt net of accumulated accretion and
debt related items

Less: current portion of long-term debt

Net long-term debt

2013 Additions/ Payments/ .
(Restated) Aceretion Amortization 2014
§ 272455 % - $ (12,630) $§ 259,825
1,300 - - 1,300
101,245 - (2,190) 99,055
125,795 (1,530) 124,265
130,475 - (3,330 127,145
111,085 - (3,780) 107,305
93,500 - (93,500) -

37,725 - (980) 36,745
372,965 - (1,435) 371,530

- 240,000 - 240,000
1,246,545 240,000 (119,375) 1,367,170
59,649 30,840 (3,728) 86,761
1,306,194  § 270,840 $  (123,103) 1,453,931

(30,875)
S 1075319
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Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 is summarized as follows (dollar amounts in

thousands):

2001 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

2005 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds
2006 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

2006 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds
2010 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds
2012 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds
2012 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
Construction Loans

Lease/Leaseback Obligation

2002 SFO Extension Premium Fare Bonds
2005 General Obligation Bonds

2007 General Obligation Bonds

Add (less):
Accumulated Accretion on Lease/Leaseback Obligation
Original issue premiums and discounts, net

Long-term debt net of accumulated accretion and
debt related items

Less: current portion of long-term debt

Net long-term debt

2001 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (the 2001 Bonds)

Additions/

2012 Aceretion Payments/ 2013
(Restated) (Restated) Amortization (Restated)
$ 43,765 § - $ (43,765 § .

281,465 - (9,010) 272,455

64,915 - (63,615) 1,300
107,130 - (5,885) 101,245
129,180 - (3,385) 125,795
- 130,475 - 130,475
- 111,085 - 111,085
109,500 - (16,000) 93,500
44,375 - (44,375) -
52,570 (52,570) -
38,675 - (950) 37,725
373,865 (900) 372,965
1,245,440 241,560 (240,455) 1,246,545
16,649 4,189 (20,838) .
40,173 23,439 (3,963) 59,649

1,302,262 § 269,188 $  (265,256) 1,306,194

(39,115) (30,875)
$ 1,263,147 § 1275319

In July 2001, the District issued sales tax revenue bonds totaling $168,650,000 to fund the rehabilitation of
District rail cars and certain other capital improvements, to fund capital reserves to be utilized in connection
with the SFO Extension project and to refund certain outstanding bonds with principal amounts of
$41,175,000. The 2001 Bonds are special obligations of the District payable from and secured by a pledge
of sales tax revenues. In August 2005, 2001 Bonds with principal amounts totaling $19,640,000 were
refunded from the proceeds of the 2005 Bonds. Another refunding of the 2001 Bonds occurred in July
2006 when 2001 Bonds with principal amounts totaling $102,560,000 were refunded from the proceeds of
the 2006 Refunding Bonds. In October 2012, the remaining outstanding balance of $41,745,000 were
refunded from the proceeds of the 2012 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (2012 Series A Refunding

Bonds).
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Long-Term Debt (Continued)

2005 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (the 2005 Refunding Bonds)

In August 2005, the District issued the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2005A totaling
$352,095,000. The 2005 Refunding Bonds were used to advance refund $349,925,000 in aggregate
principal amount of sales tax revenue bonds related to the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1995, 1998,
1999, and 2001. The 2005 Refunding Bonds are special obligations of the District, payable from and
collateralized by a pledge of sales tax revenues. At June 30, 2014, the 2005 Refunding Bonds consist of
$170,705,000 in serial bonds due from 2015 to 2027 with interest rates ranging from 3.75% to 5.00%, two
5.00% term bonds in the amounts of $55,685,000 and $31,785,000 due in 2031 and 2035, respectively, and
one 4.50% term bond for $1,650,000 due in 2031.

2006 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (the 2006 Bonds) ,

In June 2006, the District issued sales tax revenue bonds with an aggregate principal amount of $64,91 5,000
to finance a portion of the cost of construction of a new transit station, the West Dublin/Pleasanton Station
including two parking facilities, pedestrian bridges, a bus intermodal facility and related improvements,
The 2006 Bonds are special obligations of the District payable from and secured by a pledge of sales tax
revenues. In October 2012, the 2006 Bonds with principal amounts totaling $63,615,000 were refunded
from the proceeds of the 2012 Series A Refunding Bonds. At June 30, 2014, the 2006 Bonds outstanding
consist of $1,300,000 in serial bonds due from 2015 to 2017 with an interest rate of 4.0%.

2006 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (the 2006 Refunding Bonds)

On November 30, 2006, the District issued the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2006A., with a
principal amount of $108,110,000 to advance refund a portion of the 2001 Bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of $102,560,000. The 2006 Refunding Bonds are special obligations of the District,
payable from and secured by a pledge of sales tax revenues. At June 30, 2014, the 2006 Refunding Bonds
consist of serial bonds amounting to $44,485,000 due from 2015 to 2028 with interest rates ranging from
4.0% to 5.0%, and term bonds totaling $54,570,000 of various maturity dates from 2029 to 2037 with an
interest rate of 4.25%. The term bonds are subject to redemption in part, by lot, from Mandatory Sinking
Account Payments required by the Indenture on certain dates, at the principal amount of the 2006 Refunding
Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest, if any, to the redemption date.

2010 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (the 2010 Refunding Bonds)

On May 5, 2010, the District issued the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2010, with a principal
amount of $129,595,000 to provide sufficient funds to refund a portion of the 1998 Bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of $143,825,000, to fund a deposit to the Series 2010 Reserve Account in the bond reserve
fund and to pay costs of issuance of the Series 2010 Bonds. The District funded from its own funds the
Bond Reserve Fund in the amount of $14,202,000. The 2010 Refunding Bonds are special obligations of
the District, payable from and secured by a pledge of sales tax revenues. At June 30, 2014, the 2010
Refunding Bonds consist of serial bonds amounting to $124,265,000 with interest rates ranging from 3.0%
to 5.0%, with various maturity dates from 2015 to 2029.
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2012 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (the 2012 Series A Refunding Bonds)

On October 4, 2012, the District issued the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2012A, with a
principal amount of $130,475,000 and a premium of $23,439,000 to provide sufficient funds, along with
$10,690,000 in other District funds, to refund $51,605,000 principal amount of the Association of Bay Area
Governments BART SFO Extension Bond (Airport Premium Fare), 2002 Series A, to refund the remaining
balance of the 2001 Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of $41,745,000, to refund $63,615,000
principal amount of the 2006 Series A Bonds, and to fund costs of issuance of the Series A 2012 Refunding
Bonds. The 2012 Series A Refunding Bonds are special obligations of the District, payable from and
secured by a pledge of sales tax revenues. At June 30, 2014, the 2012 Series A Refunding Bonds consist
of serial bonds amounting to $94,810,000 with interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% with various
maturity dates from 2015 to 2033, and a term bond in the amount of $32,335,000 due in 2037. The
refunding during fiscal year 2013 resulted in economic gain of $25,132,000 and cash flow savings of
$35,819,000.

2012 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (the 2012 Series B)

On October 4, 2012, the District issued the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2012B, with a principal
amount of $111,085,000 to provide financing for the Oakland International Airport Connector Project and
to fund the costs of issuance. The 2012 Series B are special obligations of the District, payable from and
secured by a pledge of sales tax revenues. At June 30, 2014, the 2012 Series B consist of serial bonds
amounting to $21,280,000 with interest rates ranging from 0.755% to 2.677% with various maturity dates
from 2016 to 2023, a term bond in the amount of $15,670,000 with interest rate of 3.477% due in 2028, a
term bond in the amount of $18,815,000 with interest rate of 4.087% due in 2033 and a term bond in the
amount of $51,540,000 with interest rate of 4.287% due in 2043.

Construction Loans

In March 1999, the District, MTC and San Mateo County Transit District (SamTrans) entered into a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), which provided additional funds for the SFO Extension project in
the form of construction loans from each agency.

As of June 30, 2013, the outstanding construction loans consist of funds received for the SFO Extension
project costs from SamTrans for $72,000,000 and MTC for $16,500,000 and $5,000,000 from MTC for the
project’s temporary cash requirements. The District provided $50,000,000 of its own funds to assist with
the financing of the SFO Extension project costs. The terms and conditions of the MOU provide that the
loans for project costs will be repaid, without interest, from the future net operating surplus generated by
the SFO Extension. Such repayments of the loans for project costs from SamTrans and MTC totaling
$88,500,000 plus reimbursement of the District’s $50,000,000, will commence after SamTrans’ capital
contribution to the District’s Warm Springs Extension project is fully paid.

As of June 30, 2014, the balances of the District’s obligations to SamTrans for $72,000,000 and MTC for
$16,500,000 were extinguished after the District reevaluated the provisions of the Tri-Party Financial
Agreement between the District, SamTrans, and MTC, which was in effect as of February 28, 2007. The
remaining balance of the District’s obligation with respect to the Project’s temporary cash requirements of
$5,000,000 was paid from the District’s general fund in June 2014 (See Note 14).
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Lease/Leaseback Obligation

On March 19, 2002, the District entered into a transaction to lease rail traffic control equipment (the
Network) to investors through March 19, 2042 (the head lease) and simultaneously sublease the Network
back through January 2, 2018 (the sublease). At the expiration of the sublease term the District has the
option to purchase back the remaining head lease interest.

At closing, the Network had a fair market value of approximately $206,000,000 and a book value of
$203,000,000. Under the terms of the head lease, the District received a prepayment equivalent to the net
present value of the head lease obligation totaling approximately $206,000,000, of which the District paid
approximately $146,000,000 to a Payment Undertaker. Under the terms of the agreement, the Payment
Undertaker committed to pay the debt portion of the District’s sublease obligation and to set aside funds to
enable the District to exercise its purchase option of the head lease interest, if it chooses to do so. Of the
remaining head lease proceeds, approximately $37,000,000 was deposited to a trust account to be used to
pay the remaining equity portion of the District’s sublease obligation and to set aside additional funds to
enable the District to exercise its purchase option of the head lease interest, if it chooses to do so. The
District received cash from the lease/leaseback transaction amounting to approximately $23,000,000. The
cash gain was deferred and was being amortized over a period of 15.75 years through January 2, 2018.

On September 2, 2009, the District entered into a Termination Agreement with Key Equipment Finance,
Inc., which is one of the three Equity Investors in the Lease/Leaseback transaction. Under the terms of the
Termination Agreement, the District bought back the portion of the head lease interest identified with Key
Equipment Finance for a total purchase price equal to the sum of (1) $30,559,000 plus (2) all principal and
interest related to the debt portion of the District sublease obligation to Key Equipment Finance Inc.,
Subject to the terms and conditions of the Termination Agreement, Key Equipment Finance, Inc.
acknowledge that all of its respective right, title, and interest in and to the Head Lease Interest, the Network
and the Software Rights are automatically terminated and all such right, title, and interest vest in the District.

On June 26, 2013, the remaining leases with Wells Fargo Bank and CIBC Capital Corporation were also
terminated. The total purchase price was equal to the sum of (1) $47,456,000 plus (2) all principal and
interest related to the debt portion of the District’s sublease obligations to Wells Fargo Bank and CIBC
Capital Corporation. The termination agreements specify that the transactions effected pursuant to these
agreements constitute an exercise by the District of the Purchase Option at the end of the term of the
sublease and that the District’s obligations under the head lease, the sublease and other operative agreement
were satisfied. The early termination of the leases with Wells Fargo Bank and CIBC Corporation resulted
in anet loss of $4,675,000 which is shown as part of other income (expense), net, in the District’s statements
of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.
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2002 SFO Extension Premium Fare Bonds (the Airport Premium Fare Bonds) '

On October 1, 2002, the Association of Bay Area Governments (“ABAG”) issued BART SFO Extension
Bonds (“Airport Premium Fare Bonds™), 2002 Series, in the amount of $56,715,000. The Airport Premium
Fare Bonds were issued for the benefit of the District’s SFO Extension project. The proceeds were used to
finance a portion of the costs of the SFO Extension project, including all system-wide and associated
improvements and expenditures related to the extension. The Airport Premium Fare Bonds are limited
obligations of ABAG payable solely from and collateralized solely by amounts received from the District
pursuant to a Pledge and Contribution Agreement, dated October 1, 2002, between ABAG and the District.
The Airport Premium Fare Bonds are not a general obligation of ABAG. The District’s obligation to make
payments under the Pledge and Contribution Agreement is limited to and payable solely from and
collateralized solely by a pledge of the premium fare imposed and collected by the District from passengers -
who board or depart the District’s rapid transit system at the San Francisco International Airport station,
The District’s obligation to make such payments under the Pledge and Contribution Agreement is not a
general obligation of the District. The payments of the principal and interest when due, are insured by a
financial guaranty insurance policy issued by an insurance company. In October 2012, the remaining
outstanding aggregate principal balance of $51,605,000 were refunded from the proceeds of the 2012 Series
A Refunding Bonds.

2005 General Obligation Bonds (the 2005 GO Bonds)

In May 2005, the District issued the General Obligation Bonds (Elections 2004), 2005 Series A with an
aggregate principal amount of $100,000,000. The 2005 GO Bonds constitute a portion of the total
authorized amount of $980,000,000 of general obligation bonds of the District duly authorized by at least
two-thirds of the qualified voters of the District voting on a ballot measure (“Measure AA”) at an election
held on November 2, 2004. The 2005 GO Bonds constitute the first issue of general obligation bonds being
issued pursuant to the Measure AA authorization.

The 2005 GO Bonds were issued to finance earthquake safety improvements to BART facilities, including
aerial trackway structures, underground trackway structures, including the Transbay Tube, and at-grade
trackway structures, stations, and administrative, maintenance, and operations facilities and to finance
additional retrofits to facilitate a rapid return to service after an earthquake or other disasters. The 2005 GO
Bonds are general obligations of the District, payable from and secured solely by ad valorem taxes upon all
property subject to taxation by the District, without limitation as to rate or amount (except for certain
personal property which is taxable at limited rates) levied in Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the
City and County of San Francisco. No other revenues of the District are pledged to the payment of the 2005
GO Bonds. At June 30, 2014, the 2005 GO Bonds consist of $17,130,000 in serial bonds due from 2015

- to 2027 with interest ranging from 3.60% to 5.00%, a $7,720,000 term bond at 4.50% due in 2031 and a
$11,895,000 term bond at 5.00% due in 2036. The District is required to make sinking fund payments on
the term bond due in 2031 beginning in 2028 and on the term bond due in 2036 beginning in 2032.
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2007 General Obligation Bonds (the 2007 GO Bonds)

On July 25, 2007, the District issued the General Obligation Bonds (Election of 2004), 2007 Series B with
a principal amount of $400,000,000. The 2007 GO Bonds constitute the second issue of general obligation
bonds being issued pursuant to the Measure AA authorization as discussed in the preceding paragraph
regarding the 2005 GO Bonds. Similar to the 2005 GO Bonds, the 2007 GO Bonds were issued to finance
earthquake safety improvements to BART facilities in the three BART Counties, including strengthening
tunnels, bridges, overhead tracks and the underwater Transbay Tube. The 2007 GO Bonds are general
obligations of the District payable from and secured solely by ad valorem taxes upon all property subject
to taxation by the District levied in Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the City and County of San
Francisco. No other revenues of the District are pledged to the payment of the 2007 GO Bonds. At June 30,
2014, the 2007 GO Bonds consist of $107,080,000 in serial bonds due from 2015 to 2028 with interest rates
ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%, and three term bonds totaling $264,450,000 due in 2033, 2036 and 2038
with interest rates ranging from 4.75% to 5.00%. The bonds maturing in 2033, 2036 and 2038 are subject
to mandatory sinking fund redemptions starting in 2029, 2034 and 2037, respectively.

2013 General Obligation Bonds, Series C (the 2013 Series C GO Bonds)

On November 21, 2013, the District issued the General Obligation Bonds, 2013 Series C (the 2013 Series
C GO Bonds) with a principal amount of $240,000,000. The 2013 Series C GO Bonds are general
obligations of the District, payable from and secured solely by ad valorem taxes upon all property subject
to taxation by the District, without limitation as to rate or amount (except for certain personal property
which is taxable at limited rates) levied in Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the City and County of
San Francisco. No other revenues of the District are pledged to the payment of the 2013 Series C GO
Bonds. The 2013 Series C GO Bonds constitute the third issue of general obligation bonds issued pursuant
to the Measure AA authorization to provide financing for earthquake safety improvements to District
facilities in the Three District Counties, including strengthening tunnels, bridges, overhead tracks, the
underwater Transbay Tube and the Berkeley Hills Tunnel.

At June 30, 2014, the 2013 Series C GO Bonds consist of $219,875,000 in serial bonds due from 2015 to
2034 with interest ranging from 2.0% to 5.00%, and term bonds totaling $20,125,000 due in 2037. The
serial bonds maturing on or after August 1, 2024 are subject to redemption prior to their respective stated
maturities, at the option of the District, from any source of available funds, as a whole or in part, on any
date on or after August 1, 2023, at the principal amount called for redemption, without premium, plus
accrued interest. The term bonds are also subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on August 1
beginning 2034, at the principal amount, without premium, plus accrued interest.

After the issuance of the 2005, 2007, and 2013 GO Bonds, the remaining General Obligation Bonds that
can be issued by the District as authorized under Measure AA is $240,000,000.

Defeased Bonds

On various dates, the District issued bonds to refund certain outstanding sales tax revenue bonds previously
issued by the District. In October 2012, $51,605,000 aggregate principal amount of the Airport Premium
Fare, 2002 Series A, $41,745,000 remaining aggregate balance of the 2001 Bonds, and $63,61 5,000
aggregate principal amount of the 2006 Series A Bonds were refunded from the proceeds of the 2012 Series
A Refunding Bonds.
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On the above described defeasances, the District placed in irrevocable trusts the required amounts to pay
the future debt service payments on the defeased bonds. The advance refunding met the requirement of the
in-substance debt defeasance, and the defeased bonds were removed from the District’s long-term debt.
Accordingly the trust accounts assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the District’s
financial statements.

As of June 30,2014, $63,615,000 aggregate principal balance of the 2006 Series A Bonds are outstanding.
These outstanding bonds were redeemed on July 1, 2014.

Arbitrage Bonds

The District is subject to certain bond covenants, including the rules set forth by IRS Code Section 148a,
which requires that interest earned on the proceeds of a tax exempt bond issuance does not exceed the
interest expense related to those bonds, which qualifies those bonds as arbitrage bonds. Any excess interest
income is subject to a 100% tax and is payable to the Federal Government. As of June 30,2014, the District
has recorded an estimated arbitrage liability amounting to $4,000 in 2014 and 2013, which is included in
accounts payable and other liabilities in the statements of net position.

Pledge of Revenue to Repay Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

The District issues sales tax revenue bonds primarily to finance a portion of its capital projects. The sales
tax revenue bonds are special obligations of the District, payable from and secured by a pledge of sales tax
revenues derived from a seventy-five percent (75%) portion of a transactions and use tax levied by the
District in Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the City and County of San Francisco in an amount
equal to one-half of one percent (0.5%) of gross retail receipts. The sales tax revenue bonds outstanding as
of June 30, 2014 consist of the 2005 Refunding Bonds, the 2006 Bonds, the 2006 Refunding Bonds, the
2010 Refunding Bonds, the 2012 Series A Refunding Bonds and the 2012 Series B Bonds. Interest on the
sales tax revenue bonds are payable on January 1 and July 1 of each year, and the principal on July 1 of the
scheduled year until 2043. The total principal and interest remaining on these sales tax revenue bonds is
$1,105,277,000 as of June 30,2014 ($1,161,730,000 as of June 30, 2013), which is 10.69% in 2014 (11.32%
in 2013) of the total projected sales tax revenues of $10,342,410,000 as of June 30, 2014 ($10,264,191,000
as of June 30, 2013). The total projected sales tax revenues covers the period from fiscal year 2015 through
fiscal year 2043, which is the last scheduled bond principal payment. The pledged sales tax revenues
recognized in fiscal year 2014 was $221,149,000 ($208,561,000 in fiscal year 2013) as against a total debt
service payment of $53,090,000 in fiscal year 2014, and $54,053,000 in fiscal year 2013 (exclude
$105,360,000 for the bonds refunded).
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Debt Repayments
The following is a schedule of long-term debt principal and interest payments required as of June 30,

2014 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

2005 Refunding Bonds 2006 Bonds 2006 Refunding Bonds
Year ending k :

June 30: Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 $ 13,445 $ 12,006 $ 145 $ 46 $ 2,070 $ 4111
2016 , 15,130 11,298 435 29 1,145 4,054
2017 15,920 10,543 720 - 1,390 3,985
2018 17,020 9,744 - - 1,105 3,940
2019 17,455 8,872 - - 1,520 3,880

2020-2024 33,535 38,758 - - 18,950 17,135
2025-2029 101,805 21,849 - - 23,395 12,588
2030-2034 36,975 6,003 - - 28,930 6,930
2035-2039 8,540 - - - 20,550 898
2040-2044 - - - - - -

$ 259,825 $ 119,073 $ 1,300 $ 75 $ 99,055 ¥ 57,521

2010 Refunding Bonds 2012A Refunding Bonds 2012B Bonds
Year ending

June 30: Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 $ 1,580 $ 6,027 $ 2,855 $ 6,008 $ - $ 3910
2016 1,620 5,962 2,985 5918 2,535 3,891
2017 2,925 5,845 1,640 5,852 2,555 3,864
2018 3,045 5,723 2,605 5,748 2,580 3,830
2019 - 3,165 5,597 3,045 5,626 2,615 3,785

2020-2024 75,310 17,864 19,415 25,639 13,920 17,947
2025-2029 36,620 3,841 29,285 19,492 16,215 15,434
2030-2034 - - 42,830 10,216 19,580 11,838
2035-2039 - - 22,485 1,176 24,065 7,131
2040-2044 - - - - 23,240 1,547

3§ 124265 $ 50,859 § 127,145 $ 85675 $ 107,305 $ 177
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2005 2007 2013
General General General
Obligation Obligation Obligation
Bonds Bonds Bonds Total
Year ending
June 30: Principal Interest - Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 $ 1015 $ 1701 $ 2010 $ 18,103 $ 14455 $ 10,448 $ 37,575 § 62360
2016 1,050 1,662 2,640 18,000 - 10,424 27,540 61,238
2017 1,090 1,621 3315 17,870 - 10,424 29,555 60,004
2018 1,130 1,576 4,050 17,706 19,815 9,732 51,350 57,999
2019 LI75 1,530 4,840 17,510 18,050 9,026 51,865 55,826
2020-2024 6,750 6,677 38,350 82,603 76,460 33,834 282,690 240,457
2025-2029 8,610 4,152 68,545 68,844 50,525 20,181 335,000 166,981
2030-2034 10,820 2,442 111,260 45,770 40,570 8,945 290,965 92,144
2035-2039 5,105 152 136,520 11,264 20,125 1,378 237,390 21,999
2040-2044 - - - - - - 23,240 1,547

$ 36,745 § 22113 $ 371,530 $ 297,670 $ 240,000 § 114,392 $ 1,367,170 § 820,555

7.  Risk Management

The District is partially self-insured for workers’ compensation, public liability and property damage
claims. The self-insured retention for workers’ compensation is $4,000,000 per accident and the limit of
liability is $10,000,000. The self-insured retention for public liability and property damage is $5,000,000
for any one occurrence. Claims in excess of self-insured retentions are covered up to a total of $145,000,000
by insurance policies. There have been no settlement amounts during the past three years that have
exceeded the District’s insurance coverage.

The self-insurance programs are administered by independent claims adjustment firms. Claim expenses and
liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be
reasonably estimated. Liabilities are discounted at a 3% rate, in part, upon the independent adjustment
firms® estimate of reserves necessary for the settlement of outstanding claims and related administrative
costs, and include estimates of claims that have been incurred but not yet reported, including loss adjustment
expenses. Such reserves are estimated by professional actuaries through June 30 and are subject to periodic
adjustments as conditions warrant.
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The estimated liability for insurance claims at June 30, 2014 is believed to be sufficient to cover any costs
arising out of claims filed or to be filed for accidents occurring through that date. At June 30, 2014
and 2013, the estimated amounts of these liabilities were $52,160,000 and $49,148,000, respectively.
Changes in the reported liabilities since the beginning of the respective fiscal years are as follows (dollar
amounts in thousands): ‘

2014 2013
Liabilities at beginning of year $ 49,148 $ 37,392
Current year claims and changes in estimates 17,754 25,748
Payments of claims (14,742) (13,992)
Liabilities at the end of year 52,160 49,148
Less current portion (18,067) (15,141)
Net noncurrent portion $ 34,093 $ 34,007

Federal Capital Contributions and Operating Financial Assistance

The U.S. Department of Transportation and other federal agencies provide capital funding to the District
for construction projects, planning and technical assistance. Cumulative information for grants which were
active during the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as follows (dollar amounts in
thousands):

2014 2013
Total approved project costs $ 1,628,029 $ 3,293,122
Cumulative amounts of project costs incurred and earned k $ 913,041 $ 1,482,164
Less: approved federal allocations received (882,567) (1,369,987)
Capital grants receivable - Federal $ 30474 $ 112,177

The District’s fleet replacement project consisting of construction for the A, B, C1 and C2 fleet replacement
was formally launched in 2013. To set aside funding for this program, the District and MTC, on May 24,
2006, entered into the BART Car Replacement Funding Exchange Agreement. Under the agreement, MTC
agrees to program federal funds to eligible BART projects that are ready to be delivered within the year of
MTC’s programming action. In exchange for MTC programming funds for ready-to-go BART projects,
the District will deposit an equal amount of local unrestricted funds into a restricted account established to
fund BART’s car replacement program. MTC is the exclusive administrator of the restricted account and
any withdrawal of funds from the account requires prior approval from the MTC Commission and the
District’s Board. In accordance with the agreement, MTC allocated Federal Section 5307 and 5337 Grants
for $72,000,000 in fiscal year 2014 and Federal Section 5307 Grants for $23,980,000 in fiscal year 2013 to
fund the District’s preventive maintenance expenses. In fiscal year 2014, the District remitted to MTC
$3,534,000 for fiscal year 2013 allocation on July 25,2013 and $72,000,000 for fiscal year 2014 allocation
between January — June 2014, the equivalent amount of its own funds, which were deposited by MTC to
the restricted account. The federal grant is shown as nonoperating revenue — operating financial assistance
and the District’s remittance to MTC is shown as nonoperating expense in the District’s financial
statements.
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In fiscal year 2013, the MTC commission and the District’s Board authorized a withdrawal of $15,500,000
from the restricted account to support the Rail Car Replacement Program. The amount received was
recorded as capital contributions. The restricted account for BART’s car replacement program held by
MTC, which is excluded from the District’s financial statements, reported a balance of $201,345,000 as of
June 30, 2014 and $125,528,000 as of June 30, 2013.

State and Local Operating and Capital Financial Assistance

The District is eligible to receive local operating and capital assistance from the Transportation
Development Act Funds (TDA). There was no TDA operating assistance received in fiscal years 2014 or
2013. The District was awarded TDA capital allocation of $2,300,000 in fiscal year 2010 of which $0 was
earned during fiscal year 2014 and $122,000 in fiscal year 2013. The District may be entitled to receive
state operating and capital assistance from the State Transit Assistance Funds (STA). These funds are
allocated by MTC based on the ratio of the District’s transit operation revenue and local support to the
revenue and local support of all state transit agencies. The District received STA operating allocations of
$20,837,000 in fiscal year 2014 and $18,596,000 in fiscal year 2013, of which $20,738,000 was earned in
fiscal year 2014 and $18,106,000 was earned in fiscal 2013. The District also received STA capital
allocations amounting to $1,170,000 awarded in fiscal year 2004, $227,000 awarded in 2008 and $97 1,000
awarded in 2011, of which $719,000 was earned during fiscal year 2014 and $100,000 was earned during
fiscal year 2013.

The District receives Paratransit funds provided to cities and transit operators from Alameda County
Measure B funds to be used for services aimed at improving mobility for seniors and persons with
disabilities. The Alameda County Transportation Commission is the administrator of Measure B funds. In
fiscal year 2014, the District’s revenues that relate to the Measure B funds were $1,763,000 ($1,714,000 in
fiscal year 2013) for the annual assistance for paratransit operating funds and $70,000 ($243,000 in fiscal
year 2013) from the Contra Costa Transportation Authority Measure J funds for operating expenses.

On February 28, 2007, the District, SamTrans, and MTC entered into a Tri-Party Financial Agreement
establishing the operational and financial arrangement regarding the BART San Francisco International
Airport Extension. To fund the operating costs of the SFO Extension, the agreement provided that (1) the
District will receive up-front funding of $24,000,000 from MTC and $32,000,000 from SamTrans from
their shares of Proposition 1B funds; (2) the District will also receive 2% of the
San Mateo County half cent sales tax, Measure A, which was reauthorized by the voters of San Mateo
County in 2004, for 25 years beginning in fiscal year 2009; this amount is currently equal to approximately
$1,200,000 per year; and (3) MTC shall allocate to the District additional STA revenue-based funds
beginning in fiscal year 2009, which would otherwise be available for allocation to SamTrans as a result of
the completion of the Traffic Congestion Relief Program projects, in an amount of $801,000 annually. The
above funds will be used first to cover any operating deficit on the SFO Extension and then to complete
SamTrans’ funding commitment of $145,000,000 to the District’s Warm Springs Extension Project. The
upfront funding of $24,000,000 from MTC was allocated to the District in 2008 in the form of a capital
grant funded by Regional Measure 2 (RM2) revenues. For the purpose of the Tri-Party Agreement, the
District is required to make a deposit to the reserve account in an amount equal to the capital reimbursement
received from MTC/RM2 revenues.
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As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the balance of the reserve account is as follows (dollar amounts in
thousands):

2014 2013
Reserve account at beginning of year $ 2091 § 19,369
Received/accrued 4,584 2,273
Add interest earnings 71 60
Total 25,556 21,702
Less: amount used to cover SFO Extension operating shortfall (801) (801)
Reserve account at end of year $ 24755 $ 20,901

In accordance with the Tri-Party Financial Agreement, the District recognized contributions in fiscal year
2014 of $2,329,000 from SamTrans ($2,273,000 in fiscal year 2013) and $2,255,000 from MTC ($0 in
fiscal year 2013).

PTMISEA Grants
The Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality, and Port Security Bond Act of 2006, approved by the

- voters as Proposition 1B on November 7, 2006, includes a program of funding in the amount of $4 billion

to be deposited in the Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement
Account (PTMISEA). Of this amount, $3.6 billion in the PTMISEA is available to project sponsors in
California for allocation to eligible public transportation projects.

The District has cumulatively received a total $294,977,000 in PTMISEA grant funds to fund various
BART capital projects. The grants received are in the form of cash for $289,462,000 and reimbursement
grants for $5,515,000.
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The following schedules show the changes in activities related to the PTMISEA grant funds during the

fiscal years 2014 and 2013 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Grant Fund Grant Fund
Balance at Grants Project Costs Balance at
2014 Beginning of Year Received Incurred End of Year
eBART Extension $ 16,646 $ 13,000 °* $ 10,610 $ 19,036
Ashby Elevator 261 - an 272
Station Modernization 115,675 (12,856) ° 5,480 97,339
Seismic Retrofit (33) - 178 @1’
Oakland Airport Connector 106 - 160 (54) 2
Warm Springs Extentsion 3,545 (144) ’ 2,309 1,092
Balboa West Side Entrance 82 - 82 -
Balboa Park Eastside - 800 * 23 777
Berkeley Station Entrance - 721 ¢ - 721
Access Improvements 6,001 (1,521 * 65 4,415
Station Signage' 2,043 - 460 1,583
Train Control 17,500 - - 17,500
$ 161,826 $ - $ 19,356 $ 142,470
Grant Fund Grant Fund
Balance at Grants Project Costs Balance at
2013 Beginning of Year Received Incurred End of Year
eBART Extension $ 28,257 $ - $ 11,611 $ 16,646
Ashby Elevator 249 - (12) 261
Station Modernization 21,081 99,188 4,594 115,675
Seismic Retrofit 152 - 185 (33) 2
Oakland Airport Connector 330 - 224 106
Warm Springs Extentsion 24,917 (100) ° 21,272 3,545
Balboa West Side Entrance 907 - 825 82
Access Improvements 487 5,514 - 6,001
Station Signage' 3,147 - 1,104 2,043
Train Control - 17,500 - 17,500
$ 79,527 - § 122,102 $ 39,803 $ 161,826

! This grant is on a reimbursement basis.
2 Covered by interest earnings.

3 Grants for $13,000,000 were reprogrammed from Station Modernization to eBART Extension with
additional grant funds reprogrammed from the Warm Springs Extension ($144,000) to Station

Modernization.

4 Grants for $1,521,000 were reprogrammed from Access Improvements to Balboa West Side Entrance

($800,000) and Berkeley Station ($721,000).

5 Grants for $100,000 were reprogrammed from Warm Springs Extension to Station Modernization.
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As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the unused portion of PTMISEA grant funds received in cash are shown on
the statements of net position as a component of unearned revenues as follows (dollar amounts in
thousands): '

2014 2013
Cash available, end of year $ 140,887 $ 159,783
Less noncurrent portion (120,887) (113,096)
Net current portion ‘ - % 20000 § 46,687

At the end of fiscal year 2014, the PTMISEA funds had earned interest income of $1,491,000 from
inception, of which $143,000 was earned in fiscal year 2014 and $108,000 in fiscal year 2013.

Employees’ Retirement Benefits

Plan Description

All eligible employees participate in the Public Employees’ Retirement Fund (the Fund) of the State of
California’s Public Employees” Retirement System (CalPERS) under the Miscellaneous Plan and the Safety
Plan of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District. The Fund is an agent multiple-employer defined
benefit retirement plan that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for 3,089 local public
agencies and school districts within the State of California. The Fund provides retirement, disability, and
death benefits based on the employee’s years of service, age and compensation. Most employees vest after
five years of service and may receive retirement benefits at age 50. These benefit provisions and all other
requirements are established by State statute and District contractual agreements.

Copies of CalPERS’ annual financial report may be obtained from their Executive Office by writing or
calling the Plan: California PERS, P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-2709, (916) 326-3420. A
separate report for the District’s plan is not available.

~ Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost

The Plans funding policy provides for periodic District contributions at actuarially determined amounts
sufficient to accumulate the necessary assets to pay benefits when due as specified by contractual
agreements. The individual entry age normal cost method is used to determine the normal cost. Under this
method, projected benefits are determined for all members and the associated liabilities are spread in a
manner that produces level annual cost as a percent of pay in each year from the age of hire (entry age) to
the assumed retirement age.
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The District’s covered payroll for employees participating in the Fund for the years ended June 30, 2014
and 2013 was $243,970,000 and $243,798,000, respectively. The District’s 2014 and 2013 payroll for all
employees was $290,551,000 and $289,571,000, respectively. The District, in compliance with the
collective bargaining agreements, also reimburses “classic” employees as defined by CalPERS for all or a
portion of the employee share of the pension contributions, which are 9% for public safety personnel and
7% for miscellaneous covered employees. The latest collective bargaining agreements require the District
to reimburse represented “classic” miscellaneous employees of Amalgated Transit Union (ATU), Service
Employees International Union (SEIU), and American Federation of State, County and Municipal
Employees (AFSCME), for their contributions, effective on July 1, 2013 in the amount of 6.50%, effective
on January 1, 2014 in the amount of 6%, effective January 1, 2015 in the amount of 5%, effective January
1, 2016 in the amount of 4% and effective January 1, 2017 in the amount of 3%. Contributions for non-
represented miscellaneous employees will be made at the same level but effective 6 months later in
conjunction with their wage increases. With the latest collective bargaining agreements for represented
BART Police Officer Association (BPOA) and BART Police Managers Association (BPMA) employees,
they will continue to be reimbursed for their contributions. However, they will contribute to the employer’s
share effective July 1, 2013 in the amount of 0.5%, effective January 1, 2014 in the amount of 1%, effective
January 1, 2015 in the amount of 2%, effective January 1, 2016 in the amount of 3% and effective January
1, 2017 in the amount of 4%. Contributions for non-represented safety employees will be made at the same
level as BPMA but effective 6 months later in conjunction with their wage increases. Under the California
Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), effective January 1, 2013, “new” employees as
defined by CalPERS and PEPRA who are not represented must contribute % of the total normal cost. The
contribution rate is 12% for public safety personnel and 6.25% for miscellaneous covered employees.
Currently, this does not apply to represented employees pending a court decision. State law currently
excludes represented employees from these contributions pending the outcome of a federal court case or
until January 1, 2016, whichever occurs sooner.

The employer annual required contributions for fiscal years 2014 and 2013 were determined by an actuarial
valuation of the Plans as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The contribution rates in fiscal year 2014
were 12.269% for the Miscellaneous Plan and 42.885% for the Safety Plan. The contribution rates in fiscal
year 2013 for the Miscellaneous Plan were 11.736% and 41.566% for the Safety Plan.

The three-year trend information for the Fund of the actuarially required employer contribution is as follows
(dollar amounts in thousands):

Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ended Cost (APC) Contributed (%)  Obligation

Miscellaneous Plan:  June 30,2012  § 26,355 100% §
June 30, 2013 26,565 100%
June 30, 2014 27,838 100% -
Safety Plan: June 30, 2012 6,950 100% -
June 30, 2013 7,250 100% -
June 30, 2014 7,324 100% -
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Funded Status and Funding Progress of the Miscellaneous Plan

As of June 30, 2013, based on CalPERS most recent actuarial report, the Miscellaneous Plan is 80.4%
funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $1,801,182,000, and the actuarial value of assets
was $1,449,050,000, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $352,132,000. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active miscellaneous employees covered by the plan) was $233,176,000,
and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 151%.

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI), following the
Notes to Financial Statements, presents three-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of
the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Funded Status and Funding Progress of the Safety Plan

As of June 30, 2013, based on CalPERS most recent actuarial report, the Safety Plan is 64.5% funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $243,522,000, and the actuarial value of assets was
$157,104,000, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued lability (UAAL) of $86,417,000. The covered
payroll (annual payroll of active safety employees covered by the plan) was $16,871,000, and the ratio of
the UAAL to the covered payroll was 512.2%.

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as RSI, following the Notes to Financial Statements, presents

three-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

CalPERS uses the rate stabilization methodologies in its actuarial valuations which have been shown to be
very effective in mitigating rate volatility. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used by
CalPERS to determine the District’s annual required contributions to the Miscellaneous Plan and Safety
Plan is shown below:

Valuation Date June 30,2013 June 30,2011 June 30, 2010

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal Entry age normal Entry age normal

Amortization method Level percent of payroll Level percent of payroll Level percent of payroll

Average remaining period Closed; 30 years as of the valuation Closed; 20 years as of the valuation ~ Closed; 17 years as of the valuation
date for the Miscellaneous Plan and date for Miscellaneous Plan; and date for Miscellaneous Plan; and
the Safety Plan* 24 years for the Safety Plan 22 years for the Safety Plan

Asset valuation method Market Value 15 year smoothed market 15 year smoothed market

- Investment rate of return 7.50% (net of administrative 7.50% (nét of administrative 7.75% (net of administrative
expenses) expenses) €xpenses)

Projected salary increases 3.30% to 14.20% depending on 3.30% to 14.20% depending on 3.55% to 14.45% depending on
age, service and type of " age, service and type of age, service and type of
employment employment employment for the Miscellaneous

. Plan; and 3.55% to 13.15% for the
Safety Plan

Inflation 2.75% 2.75% 3.00%

Payroll growth 3.00% 3.00% 3.25%

Individual salary growth A merit scale varying by duration A merit scale varying by duration A merit scale varying by duration
of employment coupled with an of employment coupled with an of employment coupled with an
assumed annual inflation growth of assumed annual inflation growth of  assumed annual inflation growth of
2.75% and an annual production 2.75% and an annual production 3.00% and an annual production
growth of 0.25% growth of 0.25% growth of 0.25%

* Initial unfunded liabilities are amortized over a closed period that depends on the plan’s date of entry into
CalPERS. Subsequent plan amendments are amortized as a level percentage of pay over a closed 20-year
period. Gains and losses that occur in the operation of the plan are amortized over a 30-year period with
Direct Rate Smoothing with a 5-year ramp up/ramp down. If the plan’s accrued liability exceeds the
actuarial value of plan assets, then the amortization payment on the total unfunded liability may not be
lower than the payment calculated over a 30-year amortization period.
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Money Purchase Pension Plan

Most District employees participate in the Money Purchase Pension Plan (MPPP), which is a supplemental
retirement defined contribution plan. In January 1981, the District’s employees elected to withdraw from
the Federal Social Security System (FICA) and established the Money Purchase Pension Plan. The District
contributes an amount equal to 6.65% of eligible employees’ annual compensation (up to $29,700 after
deducting the first $133 paid during each month) up to a maximum annual contribution of $1,868 for all
employees except those represented by BPOA and BPMA pursuant to their labor agreements effective
January 1, 2010. An additional contribution to the MPPP equal to 1.627% of eligible compensation is
provided to all employees except for represented sworn police officers. Payment of this additional
contribution was also suspended for all CalPERS eligible individuals, with various effective dates, pursuant
to labor agreements and District policy as a cost saving measure. These payments resumed on July 1, 2013.
However, under the latest labor agreements with ATU, SEIU, and AFSCME, the District retained 0.0888%
of the 1.627% contribution. The District also retained this same amount for non-represented employees.
In addition, the District retained $37 per month of the 1.627% for ATU, SEIU, and AFSCME employees
who elected medical to pay for medical premiums.

The annual compensation limit subject to the additional contribution is established by the Internal Revenue
Code Section 401(a) (17). Each employee’s account is available for distribution upon such employee’s
termination.

The District’s total expense and funded contribution for this plan for the years ended June 30, 2014 and
2013 were $9,895,000 and $5,776,000, respectively. The Money Purchase Pension Plan assets at June 30,
2014 and 2013 (excluded from the accompanying financial statements) per the plan administrator’s
unaudited reports were $285,335,000 and $258,290,000, respectively. At June 30, 2014, there were
approximately 222 (238 in 2013) participants receiving payments under this plan.

The plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. This report may be obtained by writing or calling: BART Investments Plans
Committee, 300 Lakeside Drive, Oakland, California 94612, (510) 464-6238.

Other Postemployment Benefits

In addition to the retirement benefits described in Notes 10 and 11, and specified in the District’s contractual
agreements, the District provides certain other postemployment benefits (“OPEB™) to employees, which
may include medical benefits to retirees and surviving spouses, retiree life insurance, survivor dental and
vision benefits, and medical benefits to survivors of active employees. Most employees who retire directly
from the District or their surviving spouses are eligible for medical benefits if the employee retires at or
after age 50 with a minimum of 5 years of service with the District, elects to take an annuity from CalPERS
and makes a timely election of retiree medical.
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Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

In compliance with GASB requirements, the District accounts for OPEB on an accrual basis and created
the Retiree Health Benefit Trust. The purpose of establishing the Trust is to facilitate the provision of
medical benefits and other health and welfare benefits (“retiree medical benefits”) for the qualifying retirees
of the District; to provide the means for financing the costs and expenses of operating and administering
such benefits; to hold Trust assets for the sole and exclusive purpose of providing benefits to participants
and beneficiaries; and to defray the reasonable expenses of administering the Trust and designated plans.
Assets placed into the Trust cannot be used for any other purposes and are not available to satisfy general
creditors of the District. Under California state law, the restrictions on the use of any proceeds from
liquidation of the Trust are significant enough to render the Trust effectively irrevocable. The Trust is
administered by one or more Trustees appointed by the District’s Board of Directors. Currently, the Board
has appointed the District’s Controller-Treasurer as the Trustee. The Trust issues a publicly available
audited financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The
financial report may be obtained by writing to Retiree Health Benefit Trust, San Francisco Bay Area Rapid
Transit District, 300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, California 94604.

Currently, the Trust covers the funding only for the “retiree medical benefits”, which include retiree medical
benefits and medical benefits provided to widows and widowers of retirees. It does not fund the “additional
OPEB?” which includes the retiree life insurance premiums or the cost to the District of additional benefits
available to survivors of employees and retirees who, at the time of hire, elected to contribute to a survivor
health benefit program. Survivors of employees and retirees who elected this program and who continue
to contribute are eligible for medical, dental and vision coverage at a cost of $15/mo. The District has not
yet made the decision whether the additional OPEB will be incorporated in the existing Trust or whether a
new and separate trust will be established.

Basis of Accounting. The financial statements of the Trust are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Beginning with fiscal year 2007, the Trust implemented the GASB Statement No. 43, Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, which established the accounting
and financial reporting standards for plans that provide OPEB. The Trust recognizes contributions from the
District in accordance with the provisions contained on the District collective bargaining agreements, as
described briefly in the following discussion.

Method Used to Value Investments. Investments are reported at fair value as determined by the financial
institutions, which have custody of the investments based on quoted market prices.

Funding Policy and Long-Term Contract for Contributions. The District’s current collective bargaining
agreements with its unions (CBA) describe the District’s funding commitments to the Trust. Beginning
fiscal year 2008, the District is funding the Trust with a “ramp up” (increasing) percentage of the “full”
annual required contribution (ARC) in addition to funding the pay-as-you-go amount outside of the Trust
every year for the following six years. Including fiscal years 2007 and 2008, this “ramp-up” contribution
funds an eight-year period covering fiscal years 2006 through 2013. The CBAs include the baseline “ramp-
up” percentages, which is the minimum amount that the District is committed to contribute to the Trust
during the “ramp-up” period. The District shall commission an actuarial study of the retiree medical
insurance plan liabilities and funding needs, including the ARC, every year. The revised “ramp-up”
percentage shall be the basis of the District’s contribution to the Trust, except when it is less than the
baseline “ramp-up” percentage. In addition, in fiscal year 2009 the District contributed into the Trust a lump
sum make up payment reflecting the amounts it would have contributed for fiscal years 2006 and 2007,
which was actuarially calculated at $14,629,000.
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Beginning in fiscal year 2014, the District contributed to the Trust each pay period an amount equal to the
full GASB compliant ARC. Also effective on July 1, 2013, retiree health insurance premiums and related
administration fees are paid by the Trust.

Funding Policy. The actuarially calculated ARC for fiscal year 2014, using the June 30, 2012 actuarial
valuation, as a percent of covered payroll for the year, are 10.90% (12.20% in fiscal year 2013) for retiree
medical benefits and 0.95% (0.82% in fiscal year 2013) for additional OPEB, which amounted to
$27,076,000 and $2,187,000, respectively ($29,695,000 and $2,070,000 in fiscal year 2013). In fiscal year
2014, the District contributed cash equivalent to the full annual required contribution to the Trust amounting
to $27,031,000 for the retiree medical benefits and zero for the additional OPEB to partially fund the OPER
cost for the year. In fiscal year 2013, the District contributed cash to the Trust amounting to $10,393,000
for the retiree medical benefits and zero for the additional OPEB to partially fund the OPEB cost for the
year. In addition, the District made payments in fiscal year 2013 on a pay-as-you-go basis, net of retirees’

~and surviving spouses’ share, medical insurance premiums totaling $15,463,000 for 1,866 retirees and

surviving spouses. The district also paid in fiscal year 2014 life insurance premiums amounting to $76,000
(874,000 in fiscal year 2013). The District does not charge any administration cost to the Trust. Currently,
most retirees pay $132.01 per month for their share of the medical premium and the balance is paid by the
District. The following tables show the components of the District’s annual OPEB cost, the amount
contributed to the Trust, pay-as-you-go payments and changes in the net OPEB obligation for fiscal years
2014 and 2013 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Retiree Medical Benefiis
2014 2013

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 27,031 $ 29,695

~ Interest on net OPEB obligation 3,045 2,786
Adjustments to ARC (3,000) (2,786)

Annual OPEB Cost 27,076 29,695
 Contributions made (27,031) (25,856)

Increase in Net OPEB obligation 45 3,839

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 45,106 41,267

Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 45151 § 45106

Additional OPEB
2014 2013

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 2321 $ 2070

Interest on net OPEB obligation 515 430
Adjustments to ARC (649) (430)

Annual OPEB Cost 2,187 2,070
Contributions made (76) (74)

Increase in Net OPEB obligation 2,111 1,996

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 12,116 10,120

Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 14227 § 12,116
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The total net OPEB obligations of $59,378,000 in fiscal year 2014 and $57,222,000 in fiscal year 2013 are
shown on the statements of net position as a component of accounts payable and other liabilities.

The three-year trend for the OPEB costs and net OPEB obligation follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

Annual Percentage of Net

Year OPEB Annual OPEB Cost OPEB
Ended Cost Contributed Obligation
Retiree Medical Benefits June 30,2012 § 28,002 87.9% § 41267
June 30, 2013 29,695 87.1% 45,106
June 30,2014 27,076 99.8% 45,151
Additional OPEB June 30,2012 1,813 3.6% 10,120
June 30, 2013 2,070 3.6% 12,116
June 30,2014 2,187 3.5% 14227

Funded Status and Funding Progress of the Retiree Medical Plan. As of June 30, 2013, based on Keenan
and Associates (Keenan)’s most recent actuarial report, the Retiree Medical Plan is 55.6% funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $297,955,000, and the actuarial value of assets was $165,639,000
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $132,316,000. The covered payroll (annual
payroll of active miscellaneous and safety employees covered by the plan) was $243,406,000 and the ratio
of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 54.36%.

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as RSI, following the Notes to Financial Statements, presents
the three-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Funded Status and Funding Progress of the Additional OPEB Plan. As of June 30, 2013, based on
Keenan’s most recent actuarial report, the Additional OPEB Plan is zero percent funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $33,027,000, and the actuarial value of assets was zero, resulting in an
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $33,027,000. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
miscellaneous and safety employees covered by the plan) was $243,406,000, and the ratio of the UAAL to
the covered payroll was 13.57%.

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as RSI, following the Notes to Financial Statements, presents
the three-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future.
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Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan in effect and
include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

The latest OPEB actuarial valuation was performed by Keenan in June 2015 using District data as of June
30, 2013. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used by Keenan to determine the District’s
annual required contributions to the OPEB plans is shown below:

Valuation Date

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method

Remaining amortization
period

Asset valuation method

Discount rate

Inflation rate
Payroll growth rate

Health care cost trend rate
for the first year

Ultimate trend rate

Year that rate reaches the
ultimate rate

June 30, 2013

Entry age normal
Closed, Level percent of
payroll

20 years

Market value

6.75% for the retiree medical
plan; 4.25% for the additional
OPEB

2.75%

3.00% per year

6.00%
3.75%

2020

Board of Directors’ Expenses

June 30, 2012

Entry age normal
Closed, Level percent of
payroll

21 years

Market value

6.75% for the retiree medical
plan; 4.25% for the additional
OPEB

2.75%

3.00% per year

6.50%
3.75%

2020

June 30,2011

Entry age normal
Closed, Level percent of
payroll

22 years

Market value

6.75% for the retiree medical
plan; 4.25% for the additional
OPEB

2.75%

0% through 2012-2013; then
3.00% per year

7.00%
3.75%

2020

Total Directors’” expenses, consisting of travel and other business related expenses for the years ended June
30, 2014 and 2013 amounted to $33,000 each year.

Special Item

In March 1999, the District, SamTrans and MTC entered a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that
provide a total of $198.5 million to the SFO Extension Project, with BART to provide $50 milllion,
SamTrans $72 milllion, and MTC an amount sufficient to generate $76.5 million ($16.5 million for project
budget items and $60 million for project cash flow requirement). The agreement stipulated that following
the completion of the SFO Extension, if operating surplus is generated, such surplus shall be applied toward
satisfying the $145 million SamTrans” SFO Project Cost share as well as capital contribution to the BART
system, for the Warm Springs Extension.
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Special Item (Continued)

On April 27, 2007, the District and SamTrans entered into a settlement agreement and release of claims.
The agreement provided among others that SamTrans will be relieved of any and all responsibility for
payment of operating costs, as well as capital costs, associated with the SFO extension. In order to facilitate
the assumption by the District of responsibility for all future operating and capital costs associated with
the SFO Extension and permanent relief of SamTrans of any cost responsibilities associated therewith, the
District, SamTrans and MTC entered into a Tri-Party Financial Agreement, which became effective on
February 28, 2007, please refer to Note 9 for more details. The Tri-Party Agreement provides that with the
exception of the Loan Extension Agreement, which requires the District to pay MTC for the SFO project’s
temporary cash requirement, MTC, Samtrans and the District agree that the March 1999 MOU shall
terminate and shall be of no further force and effect for any purpose whatsoever.

In fiscal year 2014, the District recognized the extinguishment of the construction loans from SamTrans
($72,000,000) and MTC ($16,500,000) after it concluded based on the reevaluation of the language stated
in the Tri-Party Financial Agreement that repayment of those debt are no longer required. A special item
settlement of loans amounting to $88,500,000 was recognized in fiscal year 2014.

Related Organizations and Joint Venture Projects

Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority

The Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated December 31, 1996, between the District and five other
transportation authorities in surrounding counties (Agencies) provided for the creation of the Capitol
Corridor Joint Powers Authority (Capitol Corridor), a public instrumentality of the State of California.
Capitol Corridor was formed for the purpose of administering and managing the operation of the Capitol
Corridor Rail Service as part of the California intercity passenger rail system. The District is the managing
agency of Capitol Corridor and in that capacity shall provide all necessary administrative support to Capitol
Corridor. Capitol Corridor entered into an Interagency Transfer Agreement with the State of California
and assumed administration and operation commencing on July 1, 1998. The initial term of the Interagency
Transfer Agreement was for three years beginning July 1, 1998, and was extended for three additional years
effective July 1, 2001. In 2004, State legislation was enacted that eliminated the sunset date of the
Interagency Transfer Agreement, which now exists indefinitely.

The governing board of Capitol Corridor consists of six members from the District and two members from
each of the five other Agencies. Neither the District nor the other Agencies are responsible for any debt,
liabilities and obligations of Capitol Corridor and the District would not be entitled to any of Capitol
Corridor’s net assets should it terminate.

The District charged Capitol Corridor a total of $3,464,000 for marketing and administrative services during
2014 and $3,909,000 during 2013. In addition, Capitol Corridor reimburses the District for its advances
for capital project expenditures and other operating expenses. Reimbursements for expenses incurred by
the District on behalf of and in providing services to Capitol Corridor are netted against the corresponding
expense in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Unreimbursed expenses and
advances for capital project costs from Capitol Corridor amount to $2,155,000 and $8,503,000 as of
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. All unreimbursed expenses and advances are included as current
receivables and other assets in the statements of net position. As the District has no ownership involvement
or ongoing financial interest or responsibility in Capitol Corridor, its financial statements include only
amounts related to the services and advances it provides to Capitol Corridor.
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East Bay Paratransit Consortium

In 1994, the District and the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District (AC Transit) executed an agreement
establishing the East Bay Paratransit Consortium (the Consortium). The purpose of the Consortium is to
enable the District and AC Transit to jointly provide paratransit services in the overlapping service area of
the District and AC Transit. Revenues and expenditures for the Consortium are split 31% and 69% between
the District and AC Transit, respectively, except the program coordinator’s expenses, which are split 50/50
starting in 2011. The District’s financial statements reflect its portion of revenues and expenditures as
operating activities. The District supported the project primarily through its own operating funds, with
some financial assistance from Alameda County Measure B funds and from the Contra Costa
Transportation Authority Measure J funds (Note 9). The District has no equity interest in the Consortium.

Pleasant Hill BART Station Leasing Authority

In July 2004, the District, the County of Contra Costa (County) and the Contra Costa County
Redevelopment Agency (Agency) entered into a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (JPA Agreement) to
create the Pleasant Hill BART Station Leasing Authority (Pleasant Hill Authority). In 2012, the A gency
was dissolved by California Assembly Bill ABx1 26, and the Pleasant Hill Authority now consists of the
District and Contra Costa County. The Pleasant Hill Authority was created as a means of accomplishing
the cooperation and coordination among the agencies to provide for the development of a transit center
located in BART’s Pleasant Hill station, which includes residential rental and retail units. The Pleasant Hill
Authority leased for a 99-year term expiring on May 14, 2105, a portion of the property owned by BART
adjacent to the Pleasant Hill BART station as the transit center site.

On June 30, 2009, the District received as ground lease payments for the full term of the lease, a cash base
rent of $99 and a noncash base rent in the form of a newly constructed parking structure located at the
Pleasant Hill BART station. The District accepted the completion of the new parking structure, and became
its new owner, effective June 30, 2009. The new parking structure was recorded as a capital asset at a value
of $51,236,000, which is its final construction cost as reported by its developer, and with a credit to deferred
revenue. :

The Pleasant Hill Authority is a public entity separate from any member and as such its debts, liabilities
and obligations shall not be the debts, liabilities and obligations of any of the members. The governing body
of the Pleasant Hill Authority is a Board of Directors consisting of four persons - two from the County and
the District.

Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

The District is involved in various lawsuits, claims and disputes, which for the most part are normal to the
District’s operations. It is the opinion of the District’s management that the costs that might be incurred in
the disposition of these matters, if any, would not materially affect the District’s financial position,

Power Purchases

The District purchases electrical power for self-consumption at multiple points of delivery such as Traction
Power, Passenger Station Power and Miscellaneous Power from the Northern California Power Agency
(NCPA). Power purchase contracts with the NCPA are in place through December 31, 2016, with a total
remaining contract value of $32,058,000 as of June 30, 2014.
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Lease Commitments
The District leases certain facilities under operating leases with original terms ranging from one to fifty
years with options to renew. '

Future minimum rental payments under noncancelable operating leases with initial or remaining lease terms
of over one year at June 30, 2014 are as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

Operating

Year ending June 30: Leases
2015 $ 11,794
2016 12,075
2017 12,376
2018 12,643
2019 : 12,943
2020-2024 34,732
2025-2029 12,500
2030-2034 12,500
2035-2039 12,500
2040-2044 12,500
2045-2049 12,500
2050-2053 9,792

Total minimum rental payments $ 168,855

Rent expenses under all operating leases were $12,005,000 and $11,233,000 for the years ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Fruitvale Development Corp.

On October 1, 2001, the District entered into a ground lease agreement with Fruitvale Development
Corporation (FDC) pertaining to 1.8 acres of land for the purpose of constructing thereon portions of a
mixed-use development project commonly known as the Fruitvale Transit Village, which consists of
approximately 250,000 square feet of commercial, community service and residential improvements. The
lease agreement became effective December 9, 2003 and continues through January 31, 2077.

The terms of the lease require FDC to pay the District a Base Rent and a Percentage Rent. The Base Rent
is a fixed amount determined at the inception of the lease subject to periodic CPI adjustments. Percentage
Rent is calculated equal to 15% of annual net revenues, as defined in the ground lease agreement.

The District provided FDC a Rent Credit with an initial amount of $7,247,000, to acknowledge its assistance
in obtaining grants for the construction of a Replacement BART Commuter Parking Garage near the
Fruitvale Transit Village. The initial Rent Credit earned interest on the outstanding balance at simple
interest based on the prime rate and can only be applied to satisfy the Base Rent.
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In October 2010, there was a second amendment to the ground lease agreement, which recalculated the
initial Rent Credit available to FDC as related to the replacement parking. The amount of the Replacement
Parking Rent Credit was revised to $4,642,000, after a payment of $5,500,000 coming from the proceeds
of the sale of land at the Fruitvale BART Station to the City of Oakland Redevelopment Agency. The
second amendment also stated that no interest shall accrue on the revised Replacement Parking Rent Credit
and that beginning on December 1, 2003 and continuing throughout the term of the ground lease, base rent
shall be subtracted from the Replacement Parking Rent Credit balance, until there is no longer a positive
Replacement Parking Rent Credit. The offset base rent was $169,000 for fiscal year 2014 and $158,000 in
fiscal year 2013. The remaining balance in the Replacement Parking Rent Credit was $3,281,000 as of June
30, 2014 ($3,450,000 as of June 30, 2013).

Based on the agreement, FDC shall not be under any obligation to make any cash payment to the District

for base rent at any time that the Replacement Parking Rent Credit still has a positive balance.
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Employees’ Retirement Benefits
Schedules of Funding Progress on Actuarial Value
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Miscellaneous Plan
Entry Age Unfunded
Normal Actuarial Actuarial Annual ‘UAAL as a
Valuation Accrued Value of Accrued Funded Covered Percemtage of
Date Liability Assets Liability (UAAL)  Ratio (%) Payroll Payroll (%)
6/30/11  $§ 1,661,566 § 1530454 § 131,112 921 § 219,833 59.6
6/30/12 1,728,926 1,581,046 147,880 914 226,128 65.4
6/30/13 1,801,182 1,449,050 ©352,132 ¢ 80.4 233,176 151.0
Safety Plan
Entry Age Unfunded
Normal Actuarial Actuarial Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Accrued Value of Accrued Funded Covered Percemtage of
Date Liability Assets Liability (UAAL)  Ratio (%) Payroll Payroll (%)
6/30/11  § 213,592 § 157,704  § 55,888 738 § 18,864 296.3
6/30/12 225,612 166,268 59,344 73.7 17,406 3409
6/30/13 243,522 157,104 86,417 * 64.5 16,871 5122

*On April 17, 2013, the CalPERS Board of Administration approved a recommendation to change the
CALPERS amortization and smoothing policies. Beginning with the June 30, 2013, the latest available
report, CALPERS will no longer use an actuarial value of assets and will employ an amortization and rate
smoothing policy that will pay for all gains and losses over a fixed 30-year period with the increases or
decreases in the contribution rate phased in over a 5-year period. Prior to this change, CalPERS employed
an amortization and smoothing policy, which spread investment returns over a 15 year period while
experience gains and losses were amortized over a rolling 30-year period.
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Schedules of Funding Progress
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Valuation Accrued Value of Accrued Funded Covered Covered
Date Liability Assets Liability (UAAL) Ratie (%) Payroll Payroll (%)
6/30/11 § 376,063 $ 120,103 § 255,960 319§ 240,465 106.44
6/30/12 328,571 138,933 189,638 42.3 240,465 78.86
6/30/13 297,955 165,639 132,316 55.6 243,406 54.36

Additional OPEBR

Entry Age Unfunded UAAL as a

Actuarial Normal Actuarial Actuarial Percentage of

Valuation Accrued Value of Accrued Funded Covered Covered
Date Liability Assets Liability (UAAL) Ratio (%) Payroll Payroll (%)
6/30/11 § 25919  § - $ 25,919 - § 240,465 10.78
6/30/12 33,050 - 33,050 - 240,465 13.74
6/30/13 33,027 - 33,027 - 245,406 13.57
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Improving Delay Information to Riders

Aging Fleet
+ Increased Unexpected
Trackside Maintenance = &
Needs Planned Delays

Improving/expanding the BART Service Advisory (BSA) System, updating policy, and

increased marketing efforts will help better inform riders during delays.
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Disruption Scorecard

Delay Information Complaints Q2 FY14 | Q3 FY14 | Q4 FY14 | Q1 FY15
per Quarter:

PA/DSS (Destination Sign System) Delay Complaints

BART Service Advisory (BSA) Complaints 3 11 12 21

Building a Better BART





Transportation Delay Communications

5-15
Minute

Major

. Immediate
Train Operator announcement
Station Agent N/A

Communications

Specialist Monftor
p Developments
(ComSpec)

Monitor
Developments
and mitigate
delays

Train Controller
Central Manager

Update announcements every 5 minutes
or when information changes

Local announcements based on OCC
information

PA/DSS announcements every 5 minutes
BSA issued when multiple trains are
delayed 10 minutes or more

Text message sent to Agents terminal
Update traffic reporters who call in
Notify Transit Information Center
(provides live information to customers)
Request Bus Bridge (usually 1-2 hour
lead time and inadequate capacity)

Update Train Operators

Issue TPAs (Train Public Address from
OCC) at 10 minutes

Coordinate information with ComSpec
Implement service plan

Advise field supervisors of service
adjustments

Truncate service as necessary

Due to lengthy lead time, consider
activating Bus Bridge

Delays

Update announcements every 5 minutes or
information changes

Local announcements based on OCC
information

PA/DSS announcements updated every 5
minutes

BSA continue

Text message sent to Agents terminal
Request Communications Department to
update media line/deploy staff to OCC
Update Transit Information Center
Request Bus Bridge (usually 1-2 hour lead
time and inadequate capacity)

Update Train Operators

Update TPAs every 10 minutes

Update information with ComSpec

Adjust service plan as needed

Update field supervisors of service
adjustments

Determine if partial restoration of service is
possible

Determine need for Bus Bridge

Building a Better BART





When Major Delays Occur,

Communicating the Service Impacts and
Mitigation Strategies is a Challenge:

e Unpredictability and fluidity of the situation
 BART network design quickly results in systemwide impacts

* Frequent service, high ridership and lack of robust bus
bridge capabilities frequently leaves few good options

Building a Better BART





Current Rider Communication During Delays

BART Service Advisory policy: A BSA is issued when multiple trains are off
schedule by 10 minutes or more.

« When a BSA s issued, an alert is sent to email/text subscribers (24,000
during peak commute. Total 94,600 subscribers in all categories),
@SFBARTalert twitter account, 3 party apps

 BSA posted: bart.gov, m.bart.gov

* On-demand text options available

« OCC & Train Operators make PA announcements
« Additional staff deployed to platforms

 Media line is activated during major delays

* Real time train info automatically updates on DSS, bart.gov, m.bart.gov

Building a Better BART





Three Tier Approach to Improvements

Medium Term Long Term

Improvements Improvements

Short term improvements:

v' Use of “major delay is developing”

v' Use of BSA for planned delays

v' DSS messages: the shorter the better. All messages
have been shortened by 35%

v" 10 days prior to planned maintenance, service info
posted on bart.gov, Twitter, paper passenger bulletin
in stations.

Iltems complete
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More Early Wins

Complete «  Systemwide BSAs to DSS

@SFBARTalert Twitter Fix ¢ Add active BSA details to more places

throughout web and mobile web sites

* Elevate the presence of active BSA details

on the homepage

ervice Advisories

¢ Launch communication campaign for alerts

_ _ An advisory has been issued.
car cards, DSS, radio buy, info on all passenger

bulletins, info being added to PES pens

To Be Done
1lyr: BSA subscribers i 118% @SFBARTalert i 205%

Add spell check to BSA development system

Building a Better BART





Medium Term Improvements

We have the capability but will require significant staff time
o May need additional staff
o Line specific alerts

o0 Add a secondary drop down to BSA development system to include more
details about the delay progression:

Bus bridge info, message about what BART is doing (crews on scene), planned
maintenance branded messaging (slow train speeds for worker safety).

Building a Better BART





Long Term

Exciting ideas which will take commitment, significant
time and financial resources

Improve granular details that feed into real time information. Using

information from Train Controllers entering work orders, we can better

calculate delays that are coming.

*Benefit to riders: better quality info for BSAs

Building a Better BART





Long Term...More EXxciting Ideas

Make iTrains available to the public for use on their
mobile device.

An interactive map
that shows where
trains are on the
system and if they

are on time.

*’ Benefit to riders: a glimpse at what’s ahead on their line

Building a Better BART





Long Term....The Big One

QuickPlanner currently provides
schedule-based trip plans only

It could be “aware” of dynamic, real
time service conditions

Recommend more accurate trip plans
to customers

Making BART a leader in trip planning
technology

* Benefit to riders: Active delays are factored into trip planning

Building a Better BART
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Service Planning for
Special Events

BART Board of Directors
February 12, 2015






* This presentation
outlines how event
planning and train
service adjustments
are delivered

e [n 2014, 278 days or
almost 78% of service
days had some degree
of service adjustment
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Presentation Topics

* This presentation will
discuss the following:

— The Event Planning
Process

— Types of Special Events
— Research and Analysis
— Service Delivery Tools
— Challenges

— Lessons Learned
/Knowledgebase
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Event Planning

Process Basics

 The Event Planning Process always
starts with three basic questions:
— Where
* |s it near BART or far away?
— Timing/Duration

 What is our schedule leading to the
event and after the event?

— Magnitude

 What’s the expected crowd or
attendance?
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Key Event Planning

Process Considerations

* The Event Planning Process Must Be:
— Data driven
— Involve internal and external stakeholders

— Balance crowd management in the trains and at
the stations

— Customer service and safety conscious
— Aware of the resource challenges

— Aware that BART is a partner in the event and
often a key component in its success

Operations Planning and Support 4





Types of Special Events

* Everything, Everywhere:
— Sporting Events
— Parades
— Festivals
— Concerts

— Reoccurring or Seasonal Big Events such as New
Years, Gay Pride, Bay to Breakers

— Simultaneous Events Throughout Region

Operations Planning and Support 5





How Do We Know?

* Research and Analysis:

— Where, When, Duration?

— Estimated Attendance
(can change rapidly)

— |s the Event Reoccurring?

* Review ridership,
crowding, delays and
customer service
feedback

Operations Planning and Support





Calendar of

Events Example

FACI- [EST. START/APPOX
ATTEND
EVENT LITY END TIME SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS
Tuesday, January 20, 2015
No major events scheduled
Wednesday, January 21, 2015
Warriors vs. Houston A 14K 1930-2215 Cancel 200 and 500 PM breaks.
SF Symphony performs Berg DAV PK 2000-2230 No service adjustment.
Thursday, January 22, 2015
National Automobile Dealers Association MOS [10K 0900-1700 No service adjustment.
2Z|Sallet presents its 2015 Opening Night OP PK 2000-2230 No service adjustment.
CAL Basketball vs. Arizona State R20 BK 2000-2245 Cancel 200 PM breaks
Friday, January 23, 2015
Friday Ridership Cancel 300 AM breaks.
National Automobile Dealers Association MOS [10K 0830-1600 No service adjustment.
\Warriors vs. Sacramento A 14K 1930-2215 See below.
SF Symphony performs Berg DAV K 2000-2230 No service adjustment.
Friday Night Ridership Cancel 200, 300, and 500 PM breaks.
Saturday, January 23, 2015 Track Allocation # 2208
National Automobile Dealers Association MOS [10K 0830-1630 No service adjustment.
Supercross S 40K 1830-2200 Cancel 200 and 500 PM breaks.
Event trains: 4-HY, 2-RY
CAL Basketball vs. Arizona R20 pBK 1930-2145 No service adjustment.
Sly & the Family Stone - Fox Theater K20 PPK 2000-2230 No service adjustment.
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We Always Search

for More Info

e Research and Analysis (continued):

— Are there any reasons to anticipate a difference
from previous occurrences?

* Must consider impacts of simultaneous events and
those that overlap with peak commute

— |s existing capacity sufficient?
e Resource driven

* There are many tools at our disposal beyond adding
additional service

Operations Planning and Support 8





What Can We

Change to Help?

e Service Delivery Tools:

— Deploy Additional Staff in Field (e.g. SAs, BART Police)

* Key at stations for crowd management
» Typically only tool used for large neighborhood events (e.g.
Mission Street Food Festival)
— Lengthening Trains
e Are cars available?
* Alter “make and breaks” and keep trains long (8+ cars) throughout
day or night
— Add Event Trains
e Are cars “in consist” and staff available?
 Where does it make sense to add trains in timetable off-peak?
* Timing is everything
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Oakland Coliseum

“Recipe” Example

TRAIN SERVICE EVENT ADJUSTMENTS
OAKLAND COLISEUM

Weekday
Game
Time

Tickets
Sold

Projected
BART
Ridership

% of
Gate

Ref.
Mod.

ADJUSTMENTS

12:35 PM -
2:35PM

Up to
20K

4,000

20%

1. Cancel 200 AM
breaks (see note 1)

20-35K

7,000

20%

2. Cancel 200, 500 AM
breaks (see note 1)

7:05 PM-
10:05 PM

10-25K

5,000

20%

1. Cancel all PM
breaks (see note 2)

25-30K

6,000

20%

2. Same as "1" plus 2-HY event trains
(see notes 3 & 4)

30-40K

8,000

20%

3. a)
Same as
"2" plus

b) Total of 4-HY
event trains

¢) Swap 400's with 200's starting with T-225 @1720 and
T-447 @ 1713

d) 200's to 6-car trains starting with T-229 normal
SCRAM size @2255

40K-45K

9,000

20%

4. a) Same as "3" plus

b) Total of 4-HY, 2-RY event trains

¢) Swap remaining 200's with 400's as they lay up for
long 200 PM trains

d) Last 5-RY dispatches to A90 (lay up trains) return to

SCRAM sizes

Operations Planning and Support
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Service Delivery

Complexities

 Some things we can control but they can be very complex:

— Storage of Event Trains
* Timing of event trains is dependent on distance to nearest storage yard
— Control Center must coordinate with staff in field to time release of trains
so they serve the greatest need
— Crowd Timing
* Timing of event crowds exiting and entering events can be very dynamic
* Weather and station access distance for pedestrians are huge influences

— Major Downtown SF events require the most discipline
* Pedestrian access to BART along Market Street is everywhere

— Sometimes we change the train stopping pattern and close entrances to
manage flow

* Coordination between train service and passenger flow through faregates and
onto platform must be balanced

— We want everyone to get home safely and in a timely manner
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Hard to Control

Challenges

* Things we cannot control:
— Staff Availability

* Signing up for overtime is voluntary

» Safety driven hours of service limitations dictated by state/federal law are key
— Infrastructure

* Few pocket tracks in central core system to stage trains, especially SF

* Events can conflict with trackside maintenance projects (delays)
— Fleet

* Cars are fully subscribed during weekday peak commute periods

* Cars must be in usable consist to make train (e.g. at least two cabs on each
end)

— Other Factors
* Police incidents
e Weather
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Planning for

Future Events

e Staff debriefs and reviews special events
("Lessons Learned”)

 What went well and what needs improvement?

— Larger events require debrief with key internal
stakeholders
— Prepare and adjust plan for next year
e This can occur months in advance or days beforehand

 All analysis is documented and archived so it can be a useful
tool in the future

 Many events have a somewhat prescriptive “recipe”
* But we always assume that anything can change
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Event Planning /

Train Service Adjustments

Questions

Operations Planning and Support 14











TALE OF TWO CITIES

SACRAMENTO WASHINGTON,DC
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2015
A NEW CA LEGISLATURE & A NEW CONGRESS

SACRAMENTO WASHINGTON, DC

e 35 New Members e 71 New Members

e Democratic Control in e Republican Control in
both houses both houses

e Jerry Brown elected to  President Obama in last
historic 4™ term 2 years (“Lame Duck”)

 Democratic agenda e Continued gridlock?

achieved?






2015
TRANSPORTATION FOCUS

SACRAMENTO WASHINGTON, DC
“..the state must focus funding Let's close loopholes so we
on the priorities that are the stop rewarding companies that
state’s core responsibility - keep profits abroad, and
maintaining and operating the reward those that invest in
state’s network of highways America. Let's use those
and interstates, and improving savings to rebuild our
the highest priority freight infrastructure and make it
corridors. more attractive for companies

2015-16 CA State Budget to bring jobs home.

President Obama
2015 State of the Union






2015
TRANSPORTATION FOCUS

SACRAMENTO WASHINGTON,DC
e (Cap and Trade e Map 21
implementation offers Reauthorization expires
funding in 3 programs May 31
e High Speed Rail e Highway Trust Fund
 Toll Roads e Comprehensive Tax
« Road Usage Charge Pilot Reform?

Program






2015
CA CLIMATE GOALS/FUNDING PROGRAMS

Governor’s New State Climate Goals

Within the next 15 years (by 2030):

= |Increase from one-third to 50 % our electricity derived from renewable sources
= Reduce today’s petroleum use in cars and trucks by up to 50%

= Double the efficiency of existing buildings and make heating fuels cleaner

Cap & Trade for Transit

1. Low Carbon Transit Operations Program
2. Transit & Intercity Rail Capital Program
3. Affordable Housing & Sustainable Communities Program






FY 2016 OBAMA BUDGET PRIORITIES

OBAMATS BUDGET
e o EERS TOLOOS
- | AUSTERIY

“Repatriation” Payment plan:

e $4 Trillion overall budget
*  “Grow America” 6-year $478 billion infrastructure plan

14% tax on $2 trillion of foreign earnings
resulting in $238 billion to Highway Trust Fund

AR L

KERNELS 10 LURE IN G 0. P |

New permanent 19% tax on foreign earnings

A $4 Trillion Utopi&jﬁ
Vision Aims to Drlve
Economic Growth |

By JONATHAN WEISMAN =
and JULIE HIRSCHFELD DAVIS"

~ WASHINGTON — The $4 tml— :
lion budget that President Oba-
ma released Monday is more yto-
pian vision than pragmatic blue- .
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POSSIBLE GAS TAX OPTIONS ?

SEN. ORRIN HATCH REP. PAUL RYAN
SENATE FINANCE COMM. WAYS & MEANS COMM.
“| prefer not to increase “We won’t pass the gas tax.”

taxes, but to me that's a
user fee. People who use
the highways ought to pay
for them. And that’s a small
price to pay to have the
best highway system in the
world.”






BART PROPOSED
2015 S7ATE ADVOCACY PROGRAM

Support Cap & Trade Funding for Transit

Protect Existing & Seek New State Funding

Work to Optimize BART’s Ability to Generate Renewable Energy
Review/Pursue Issues Raised by BART Police

Monitor (support/oppose) all legislation that impacts BART






BART PROPOSED
2015 FEDERAL ADVOCACY PROGRAM

Participate in MAP -21 Reauthorization Efforts:

Support a “full funding” policy for long-term overall funding of Surface Transportation
authorization legislation.

Prioritize State of Good Repair (SOGR) Formula Funding.

Support transportation enhancements and “livability” programs to assist access,
bicycle and pedestrian project goals.

Support the Core Capacity grant program of the New Starts Program. Seek FTA Core
Capacity grant funding.

Monitor ongoing development of rail safety regulation at the FTA.

Seek New BART Railcars Assistance if Necessary

Support Continued Funding for Transit Security Needs

Support a Permanent Transit Commuter Benefit






		BART  2015  State & Federal Advocacy Program 

		Tale of Two Cities

		2015 �A New CA Legislature  &  A New Congress

		2015 �Transportation focus

		2015 �Transportation focus

		2015�CA Climate Goals/Funding Programs

		FY 2016 Obama Budget priorities

		Possible Gas Tax Options ?

		BART Proposed �2015  State  Advocacy Program 

		BART Proposed  �2015  Federal  Advocacy Program 



